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Ferrexpo plc Is a Swiss-headguartered
resources company with assets in
Ukraine. It is principally involved in the
production of iron ore pellets which
are used in the manufacture of stedl.

Ferrexpo listed on the main market
of the LSE in June 2007,
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Highlights 2011

Key Hgures

FUll Capacity

Production volumes from own ore
Production of 8 1 milhon tonnes
(2010 9 O millon tonnes)

+38%

Revenue
Group revenue increased to
US$1 8 biliron (2010 US$E1 3 billion)

US cents
. per share

Total divtdend per share

Final dwdend of 3 3 US cents per
share in ine with 2010

+H%

Production of Premium 65% Fe
pellets (own ore)

Ferrexpo produced 4 3 million tonnes
of higher quality 65% Fe pellets

+3/7%

EBTIDA!
Group EBITDA increased io
US$801 mition (2010 US$585 rmudlion)

+/5"

Capital investment as % of net
operating cash flows
Caprtal nvestment increased to

US$378 3 million (2010 US$166 & mithon)

4P

Sales volumes
Sales volumes increased 2%
to 9 8 million tonnes

+347

Diluted earnings per share

Group diuted EPS increased to 970

US cents per share (2010 72 2 US cents
per share)

23

Net debt
Net debt reduced to
US$80 2 mdlion (2010 US$104 4 million)

1 The Group calowtates EBITDA as profit from continuing operations bafore tax and finance plus depreciation and amartisation and non recumng excepiional items inchsded n other

income and pther expenses and the nat of gans and losses from disposal of investments property plant and equipment
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Ferrexpo at a Glance Reserves and Resources

Ferrexpo produces iron
ore pellets, which are a
premium input used in

steel production.

Compared with iron ore
fines and lump, pellets
improve blast furmace
productivity in the steel
production process.

14 2bt
GKZ Soviet
Classified

4 Obt

28bt 15bt

Brovarskoye Kharchenkovskoye Zarudenskoye

31bt

2 8bt
Manuilovskoye

Vasiievskoye

North

Future Expansion

Gdantsev Succession
& quartzite, schist, filiie

B schist units

6 8bt
JORC
Classified
1 2bt 36bt
0 3bt
Galeshinskoye Yenistovskoye  Gonishne-Plavninskoye
and Lavrikovskoye
17bt
Belanovskoye

South
Current Production
Saksagan Succession Basement
LR BIF units amphilobite

® grante, migmatite
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JORC Reserves and Resources as of 1 January 2012

Rasources
Measured

Proved and Fe grade and Fe grade Fe grade

probable {total) Indicated {total) Inferred {total)

Deposit {mt) % {mt} 9% (mt) %
Gorishne-Plavninskoye and Lavrkovskoye' 859 30 2,140 3¢ 1,449 31
Yenstovskoye? 632 34 828 34 364 30
Belanovskoye? - - 1,485 3 217 30
Galeshinskoye - - 268 55 58 55
Total 1,491 32 4,721 32 2,088 Kh|

1 Femexpo Poltava Mining (FPM }
2 Ferexpo Yanstovo Mining ( FYM )
3 Femaxpo Balanovo Muung { FBM }

Strong Pipeline of .
Organic Growth

Mining operations based 20
kiometres from Kremenchuk in
central Ukraing, on the banks of
the Dnieper River

Total resources, including Soviet
classified, more than 20 bilhion
tonnes of 30% Fe average

Deposits along same ore body
with existing infrastructure

Miring currently carried out at
Gornishne-Plavninskoye and
Lavrikovskoye ((FPM') deposits

FPM operating for 30+ years

Funding in place for
approved expansion

First ore at FYM due late 2012

Low risk brownfield development
offering supenor returns

Dnling works and site
preparation underway at FBM
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Ferrexpo at a Glance Operations

1 89 large haulage trucks
Mining Ore 43 excavators

Open cut, hard rock ron ore mining, using
truck and shovel Average Fe content of 30%

4

Beneficiation

a Gnnding b Wet Magnetic Separation

The ore 1s ground to produce fine particies  The fine ore partcles are collected to produce
of 0-0 44mmin size 63% Fe concentrate, half of which goes to the

pelietiser to produce 62% Fe won ore pellets

18 ore haulage trans

¢ Flotation

Approximately 50% of the concentrats 1S
upgraded 1o 67% Fe content, used to create
65% Fe ron ore pellets, wath unwanted waste
matenal removed to the talings storage area




2

Crushing

Thie ore 1s crushed and screened to allow it to be upgraded
through separation by two crushing plants Input particle size
0-1,20Cmm, output particte size 0-20mm

5

Pelletising

Ferrexpo plc
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3

Dry Magnetic Separation

Ory magnetic separation separates waste
material from the ron resulting in output particles
of 0-20mm wath a Fe content of 40%

6

Distnbution

Four kin grate units which heat and form the matenais ito pellets of around 16mm The won ore pellets are transported by rail,

Temperature of pelletising kin 1,250°C

barge and sea to custommers around the world
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Ferrexpo at a Glance Distribution and Markets

Transport and Logistics

Established Infrastructure m Rall inks to European customers a Port on Black Sea (48 6%

and to poert on Black Sea ownership, 100% of capacity}

® Own niver port at mine site for ® Capesize capability nine capesize
pellet transportation by barge vessels of average 173 thousand

dwt loaded for first tme in 2011

= Own rail wagons which transport
two thirds of pellet production to To be expanded in 2012
border dispatch points Target 1s » Own barges which transport
self-sufficiency to reduce reliance pellets along the Danube/Rhine
on state-owned ral cars Rwver corndor (capacity around

1 Omt)




Well Located to Supply Regional and Seaborne Markets

53%
S T% 40%

7% 27%
& Traditional markats
Sales 8 Natural markets
= Closest major pellet producer to Europe 2011 & Growth markets
» 35 saling days to China 2010 O Target markets
® Ferrexpo

® 16 saling days to Middle East

o
[+

Ferrexpo plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2011
London office
Marketing office

Ferrexpo transportation routes
Competitor routes
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Introduction

2011 was another year of significant
development for Ferrexpo, despite a volatile
financial and political environment globally.
The Group delivered an excellent operational
performance with record production from own
ore further increasing the quality of its pellets.
Sales volumes and average pricing reached
historic highs and net profit grew by 35%.

The Group's growth projects gained
momentum as investment Increased to
record levels at approximately 75% of
operating cash flows This is part of Ferrexpo's
strateqy to upgrade and modemise exsting
mining facilites and to access new ore so asto
ncreasa pellet production cutput by one third
from 2013 onwards and, followng further
Board approvals, to 20 millon tonnes These
projects are proceeding on budget

and schedule

in 2011, Ferrexpo developed s resource base,
expanded and strengthened its customer rmix,
maintained a competitive cost of preduction,
imgroved the quality of its product and

aexpanded its logistics capabiiies while
ensuring sufficient inancial lquidity This has
positioned the Group favourably for the short
and medium-term, increasing value o all
stakeholders - employees, customers, its
country of operation and shareholders

Results and Dividend

Group revenue increased by 38% to US$1 8
hilion for the 12 months ended 31 December
2011 (2010 US$1 3 bilkon), pnmanly driven by
higher sales pnces The Group's Ct cash
cost' of production increased by 28% to
US$50 7 per tonne, compared to the average
C1 c¢ash cost in 2010 of US$3S 7 per tonne

Prices of key inputs increased in line with
world market prices for commodities, in
particular energy and steel This accountad
for 56% of the C1 cash cost increase Local
costs were higher due to Ukrairvan producer
price inflation of 18% Continued progress in
the Business Improvernent Programmme
('BIP'} improved efficiencies, and production
at full capacity further enableg maximum
absorption of the fixed cost base The
Ukrairtan Hryvnia remained stable against
the US Dollar dunng the penod

Overall EBITDA rose by 37% to US$801
milion (2010 US$585 milion) Group profit
after tax ncreased to US$575 million (2010
US$425 million)

Operating cash flow after interest and tax and
before acquisittons was US$503 million for
the penod (2010 US$380 millon) Capital
expenditure amounted to US$378 milion
(2010 US3167 rmulhon) with the increase
reflecting higher spend on growth projects

At the penod end, Ferrexpo had net debt of
US$80 millon 2010 US$104 million)

The Board's strategy remains to fund capital
expenditure out of operatng cash flows and to
pay a modest, consistent dmvdend throughout

1| Tha C1 cash cost of production per tonne s defined
as tha cash costs of producton of Iron pefats from own
ore draded by procucton volume from own ore and
exciudes non-cash costs such as depreciation pansion
costs and rventory movements costs of purchasead o
concentrate and producton ¢ost of gravel




the economic cycle, while mantaimng
adequate igudity 1o develop the significant
proect ppelne The Directors therefore
recommend a final dvdend in respect of
profits generated for the Group In 2011 of 33
US cents per Ordinary Share (2010 final
dmdend 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share) for
payment on 1 June 2012 to shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 4 May
2012 The dvidend wil be pad in UK Pounds
Sterling with an election to receve US Dollars

Market Environment

In 2011 China's crude steel output grew 9%
to 696 milllon tonnes, an increase of 56 millicn
tonnes Global steel production in 2011 grew
7% toarecord 15 bilion tonnes Asia
accounted for 65% of the global production
(sourca World Steel Association)

As aresult of the growth in steel production,
especially in China, the average reaksed price
for wron ore was an industry record in 2011
This reflected a 35% fall in the China CFR
index pnce for 62% Fe fines In September
2011 from US$181 per tonne to a low of
USE117 per tornne in October, before the
pnce recovered towards the year end

A key factor in price realisation and contract
performance throughout the year was the
continued evolution of the iron ore pnce setting
mechanism In Ghuna, the penod of duration for
calculating the average pnce was shortened,
with many of the mayor wron ore producers
moving to monthly time penods In most other
markets, the leading producers continued to
follow a quarterty pnoing mechanism which
moved to the average quarter of loading
following the fall in the spot price in Septermber
and October Such a move assisted contract
perfomance, in contrast with the second hatf
of 2008, when contract pnces did not
immediately adjust to the changing market
condibons and subsequently resulted in
customers baing reluctant to fulfil ther
confractual commitments

In this market environment, Ferrexpo has
continued as a pnce follower but has made
significant stndes towards

1. Establishing Index Linked Pncing:
During the year, Ferrexpo established index
linked pncing using the average for the
quarter of loading as the preferred pneing
mecharism This move was aligned with that
of the major ron ore suppliers who moved to
a similar pncing methodology for the October
to December guarter This 1s the first step
towards ensunng that Ferrexpo achieves
prices In line with its intemational peer group

2 Capitalising on its Geographic
Proximity to Major Steel Markets
Ferrexpo successfully loaded its first capesize
ship in May, allowing it to realise significant
freight cost benefits as compared to using
smaller panamax vessels By the end of
2011, nine capesize ships had been loaded
reducing freight costs, for that volume,
by approxmately US$7 per tonne

3 Strengthening its Customer Base

it1s the Group's strategy te expand sales to
high quality customers and to devalop new
customer retatonships N Asia Sales volumes
to Asia increased to 40% of total sales
compared to 27% in 2010 The increased
Asian sales included additonal tnal shipments
to target blue chip customers in the region
The Group intends to maintain such
geographic diversity in the sales portfolio

As Ferrexpo Ingreases Its production and
sales volumes and targets growth regions,
dependence on some traditional markets 1s
expected to decrease Reliance on these
markets was reduced to 44% of total sales
i1 2011 from 55% of sales in 2010

As a result of the above developments, the
Group achieved satsfactory pncing durng the
year under review While market pnces have
moderated so far in 2012, and are not
axpected to reach the highs of 2008 or 2011,
the Group stll believes that they will be above
average historic levels Meanwhile, Ferrexpo
will continue wath its programme of
developing its customer base and shipping
capabiities as well as ncreasing the quality
of its pellets supplied to global markets

Production

In 2011, Ferrexpo Poltava Mining (FPM), the
Group’s current mining operation, achieved
one of s best production years in history,
once agan operating at full capacity
throughout the year The Dvision produced
9,063 thousand tonnes of pellets from own
oré compared to 9,033 thousand tonnes of
pellets produced in 2010 Over the last 10
years, production, irom own are, has doubled
on a 100% Fe equvalent basis

Ferrexpo has made significant strides towards
improving the qguality of its pellet output

2011 was FPM'’s best performance on record
regarding the production of its Prermium

65% Fe peltets, from own ore, which
ncreased 5% to 4,256 thousand tonnes

The producticn of pellets from purchased
third party concentrate was the second
highest in the Group's history, desprte lower

Ferrexpo plc
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avalability in local markets 747 thousand
tonnas of pellets were produced from
purchased concentrate compared to 988
thousand tonnes in 2010 Total pellet
production, ncluding pellets processed
from purchased concentrate, for 2011,
was 9,810 thousand tonnes compared

to0 10,031 thousand tonnes in 2010

The current level of production from own
ore represents full minng capacity of
approximately 30 million tonnes per year
{30% average ron content) This is expected
to remain at this levet until first ore from the
Ferrexpo Yenstovo Mirung (‘FYM') deposit

1s achveved at the end of 2012 (see Capital
Investment below)

Health and Safety

In accordance with the Group's clearly stated
palicy to improve safety standards, Ferrexpo
15 pleased o report that there were no
fatalites at its mines in 2011, and that the
lost-time inury frequency rate (‘LTIFR'} at FPM
fell 1o 0 82 per millon man hours worked, the
lowest rate in its history (2010 1 43) FYM
experienced no lost-time injunes dunng the
year which was a major accomplishment
GCverall, the Group’s total LTIFR n 2011

was 0 77 as comparad to 146 in 2010

The management of Ferrexpo fosters a
culture of safety in the organisation, inking
safety perflormance to remuneration The
Group has regular safety audits by DuPont
and 15 determined to folow mternational

best practice as well as to set the standard
for mining companies operating In the
Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS')

Cost Environment

In common with all metals and mining
producers, the cost erwironment N 2011 was
impacted by commodity pnce increases and
inflation in Ukraine Specifically, the full year
impact of higher enargy prices, following the
ol pnce hike at the ena of 2010, as well as
ncreased pnces for steel gnnding bodies,
resulted in higher operating costs overall for
the Group Ferrexpo’s C1 cash cost increased
by 28% to US$50 7 per tonne

Within this emvironment, Ferrexpo fecused

on limiting cost inflatron through production
ncreases and BIP intiatives aimed at reducing
consumption nomms  For the year, BIP reduced
the C1 cash cost of production by 1 8%, in lne
with the Group's annual target of 1% to 2%

70% of total operating costs are n Ukrainan
Hryvrua In 2011, the Hryvnia remaned stable
against the US Dollar compared to 2010 at
approximately UAHE per US Doltar
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

continued

Farrexpo is well placed, in the lowest quartie
cf the global pellet cost curve, to sustain its
competitve position should iron ore pncing
decrease Inthe meantme, it will invest up to
80% of cash flows after operating actvities
in the expanston and modernisation of the
existing mire and processing facilities as well
as in new mining operations, starting with
FYM This investment should further ensure
that Ferrexpo at least maintains its position on
the pellet cost curve

Capntal Investments

Ferrexpo 1s curently nvesting substantial sums
of money o its mining complex to Increase
the qualty and volume of its production output,
thersby underpinring future profit and samings
growth The approved investment programmes
are on schedule and will Increase the Group's
output by one thikd by the end of 2013, and the
overall quality of its pellets to 65% Fe for all
proguction

in 2011, reflecting thess programmes,

the Group more than doubied its capital
expenditure investing US$378 millon (2010
US$167 million) This included investments
of US$121 million for mproving the efficiency,
reliabity and output of the existing mining
compiex, and US$43 milion in respect of
extending the life of FPM's open pt and for
Inal engineenng work for the upgrade of

the Group's pellet quality The FYM operation
receved mnvestment of US$129 mifion as
part of its programmae to reach first ore by
the end of 2012

These projects are progressing on time and
to budget and are discussed fully in the
operating review

After this first phase of Investment, Ferrexpo
ntends to increase further its production
output by another 60% to 20 millon tonnes
by 2018, following approval by the Board of
a new concentrating and pelletising facility

Currently, the Group 1s finalising the
engineenng design for the concentrator to
ensure it complies with intermational best
practces and local design institute requirements
Ferrexpo anticipates final approval of this
project, In s entirety, during 2012

Financial Management

Ferrexpo 1ssued its debut Eurobond in 2011
for tUS$500 milion The bond has a duration
of five years and was iIssued at a yeld of
7875% This s the lowest yield achieved by a
company with Ukrainan assets since 2005,
reflecting the quality of Ferrexpo's ron ore
assets and operatons

The Group also refinanced its man bank dabt
faciity dunng the year It replaced its previous
facility of US$350 milion with an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 550 basis points with a
five-year revohng US$420 mitlion facility
paying 225 basis points over LIBOR on drawn
amounts The facility wall begin amortising in
2014 Thisis the lowest priced bank facility
achieved by a corporate In Ukrane and is at
10 bagis ponts lower than the pre-cnsis levels
achieved by Ferrexpo in 2006 and 2007

The above treasury management has
secured the Group's financial posiion

and provides the necessary financial
flexibihty for the Group to develop its

project pipelne The Group's net gearing
(net debt to EBITDA) as of 31 December
2011 was 01 tmes The long-term nature

of Ferrexpo's financing arrangements means
the Group has minimal debt repayments of
approximatety US$11 million per year n 2012
and 2013 As of 31 December 2011, the
Group had total avalable debt faciites of
over US$1 billion, of which US$878 milion
was drawn The Group's cash position as

of 31 December 2011 was US$8390 milion

Ukratne

As a significant employer in the Poltava

region of Ukraine and as its leading pellet
exporter, Ferrexpo 1s committed to the future
development of the local area and the country

Ukramne s a2 young democracy which has been
subject to vanous changes in govermment over
the past 20 years As Is common with
developing economies there 1s a nsk that the
country may develop in a manner that 1s
adverse to general busness practice These
operating nsks are commonly faced by all
mining companies In emerging markets, and
the Board belleves Fermexpo has the expertise
to manage them

As of 31 December 2011, it was estimated that
the Ukranian government owed the indusinal
sector ovar UAH15 bilkon (US$2 billor) of
overdue VAT repayments Ferrexpo 1s not




unique in being affected by this situation and
was due UAHT hilion {US$172 millon) in VAT
repayments at the end of the year, an increase
of US$71 milion compared to 2010 Ferraxpo
15 worlang together with the authonties to
ensure the arraars return to normal levels

I 2011, Ferrexpo spent approximately UAR102
milion (USE12 millon) on community projacts
These included providing financial support to
over 4,000 vuinerabls people, the provision of
free medical treatments and modernisation of
the local hospitat as well as refurbishment of
schools and sporting facilities

Since the Group's IPQ 1n 2007, Farexpo

has invested over US$1 billon in its local
operations benefiting the Ukranian economy
Ferrexpo believes it sets the standard for best
practice within Ukraine by raising operational
standards, maintaining bigh levels of
transparency i all its business dealings and
attracting new Investments through debt
financing, thus demonstrating that Ukraine

15 a sound country in which to invest

Corporate Governance

The Board remains committed to mantaining
the highest standards of corporate
govenance throughout the Group in the
conduct of its business Ferrexpo has fully
complied, since isting 1n 2007, first with the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance,
and since 2011, with the UK Corporate
Govemance Code 2010 Dunng the year,

the Group implemented appropriate

procedures In accordance with the
UK Bribery Act which came into effact
In July 2011

The Board has eight members, a Non-executive
Charman, four ndependent Non-executne
Drectors, one Non-executive Dirsctor and two
Executve Directors The Board befieves that this
1S an appropnate size and structure to manage
the Group successfuly

Paople

The Board would very much ke to thank all
the management and staff for their continued
hard work and dedication which has led to
another excelent vear of progress at Fermexpo

Dunng the second half of the year, Ferrexpo
was pleased to welcome Jason Keys as the
new Chief Marketing Officer Jason has
already made a significant contnbution
towards the evolution of new pncing terms
agreed with customers He joned Farrexpo
from BHP Biliton where he was the global
marketing manager for iron ore for five years
He has significant industry expenence in both
the European and the Asian bulk commodity
markets having also previously worked for
Rio Tinto The Board would like to thank
Yaroslavna Blonska, the Group's Marketing
Manager for the CIS and Eastern Europe,

for acting as the Chief Marketing Officer in
the penod pnor to Jason's arrnval

Ferrexpo plc
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Strategy

115 Ferrexpo’s strategy to develop ts
significant resource base, one of the largest
iron ore deposits in the world, and to improve
the quality of its product mix [n addition, the
Group ntends to remain In the lowest quartile
of the global pellet cost curve so as to ensure
consistent production at full capacity and
thereby a good financial performance through
the commodities cycle Ferraxpo will look to
expand its logistics capabilities and to open
naw markets pnor to the plannad increase

In producton output Finally, as previousty
stated, the Group plans to fund capstal
expenditure out of operating cash flows
while maintaning adequate hquichty

Outlook

Ferrexpo, with ts substantia! iron ore
reserves, 1swell placed to capitalise on the
progress made in 2011 Its low-cost structure
and proxmity to its customer base together
with Its logistics infrastructure makes 1t a key
supplier to ts custormers These factors
enable Ferrexpo to develop long-term supply
relationships to the major stee! producers in
Europe, the Middle East and Asa

The Board beleves that although there 1s
Iikety to be increased volatility in the world
economy In the short term, the Group s well
placed to continue to deliver sustainable
value creation
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Ferrexpo Strategic Priorities

Ferrexpo has defined seven strategic priorities, which it believes will lead to the
achievement of sustained growth and the creation of long-term shareholder value.

It has identified a number of operational key performance indicators ('KPI') against

which to benchmark these priorities

STRATEGIC PRIORITY

To develop the Group's
significant resource base

To improve the quality
of the Group’s pellets

quartile of the global

8 To remain in the lowest
pellet cost curve

OPERATIONAL KPI

Total production from own ore 000 tonnes

Defimtion Total pellst production, including from purchased
concentrate

Production of Premium 65% Fe pellets from own ore 000 tonnes

Defimtion Production of higher quality pellets

C1 cash cost per tonne of pellets US$/tonne

Definition The cash costs of production of iron pellets from own ore
dmded by preduction volume of own ore

Consumption norms US3%/tonne

Defimition The rate of utiisation of raw matenals and labour in the
production of pellets




STRATEGIC PRIORITY

To expand the Group’s
logistics capabilities

To open and develop
new markets and
customers

To maintain adequate

sheet gearing

Tobea responsible
corporate citizen

~N O O B

3 Lost Time Inury Fraquency Rate (LTIFR ) The rate of lost-time injuries per millon
man hours worked Following the increased focus on safaly and tha review by
DuPont Incidents that previously went unreporiad am now bang raported

liquidity and low balance

Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

OPERATIGNAL KPI

Sales volume managed through Ferrexpo's supply chain %

Defimtion The % of sales transported to custormers through
Ferrexpo's port and barging facilities

Sales volumes to the Group's two largest customers %

Definttion The % of sales volumae sold to Ferrexpo’s two largest
customers per annum

Net debt to EBITDA

Defimtion Net debt divided by EBITDA

Fataltties

Definition Work related fatat accidents

LTIFR

Definition Lost-time injury frequency ratg'

13
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Ferrexpo in Action

Largest ron Ore Deposit in Europe

Galeshinskoye

The Group holds licences o explore
or mine a 50 kilometre long strike,
containing 10 identified ron ore
deposits The picture to the nght
shows the first five deposits. Current
operations are situated at the
southern end of the deposit, adjacent
to the Dnieper River at the Gonshne-
Plavninskoye Lavrikovskoye pit
(Ferrexpo Poltava Mining).

First ore is expected from the
Yenstovskoye deposit {Ferrexpo
Yenstovo Mining) at the end of 2012,

Ferrexpo expects to invest in pre-
stnpping at the Belanovskoye deposit
(Ferrexpo Belanovo Mining) in 2012.

Belanovskoye




Yenstovskoye

GPL Pit
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Ferrexpo in Action

Operating to Best Intermational
Standaras




On an Fe equivalent basis the
Group’s output of Iron units has
doubled In the last 10 years of
production. In addition, the average
grade cof its pellets has increased
signficantly reaching 63.5% Fe.

The Group’s strategy Is to reduce
costs in order to reman In the
lowest cost quartile of global

pellet producers This has been
achieved through ongoing efficiency
mprovements over many years
Since 2005, savings of US$6.6

per tonne N the C1 cash cost of
production have been achieved.
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Ferrexpo in Action

Developing Logistics Capabilities

Ferrexpo has dedicated export
capactty at its ocean port terminal of
over five million tonnes per annum In
May 2011, in addition to loading
panamax vessels, this facility began
loading standard capesize vessels

The Group completed nine capesize
shipments by the year end, loading
up to 130 thousand tonnes at the
berth and topping up the vessel
with a further 40 to 50 thousand
tonnes at the anchorage. By moving
INto capesize shipments, Ferrexpo
was able to signficantly reduce
freight costs to Far East and
Western European markets
resulting in ncreased FOB returns
from CFR sales.




Ferrexpao plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2011

OVERVIEW

19

BUSINESS REVIEW

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

20

Review of Operations Reserves and Resources

Ferrexpo’s resource base consists of magnetite ore of
30% ron content, which is particularly well-suited for
pelletising. The ore body is a single 50 kilometre-long strike

divided into 10 adjacent deposits. Five of these deposits

are classified according to the international JORC Code and

as at 1 January 2012 represented estimated resources of
©.8 billion tonnes. The other five deposits, representing an
estimated 14.2 billion tonnes, are FSU classified.

Table 1 JORC Reserves and Resources as of 1 January 2012

Resourcas

Measured

Proved and Fe grade and Fe grade Fe grads

probabls {total) indicated (total) Inferred {total)

Depaosit (mit) % {mt) % {mt) %
Gornishne-Plavninskoye and Lavrikovskoye 859 30 2,140 30 1,449 31
Yeristovskoye 632 34 828 34 364 30
Belanovskoye - - 1,485 3 217 30
Galeshinskoye - - 268 55 58 55
Total 1,491 32 4,721 32 2,088 31

Note Five further deposits are estimated to contain resources of over 14 2 billion tonnes according to the former Soviet Union (FSU’) classification
code Ferrexpo I1s currently working together with international consuitants to convert these resources to the unversally accepted Australasian

Joint Ore Reserves Committes (JORC’) standards These deposits are collectively known as the ‘Northem Deposits’ and are classified under the
names Manulovskoye, Vasikevskoye, Kharchenkovskoys, Zarudenskoye and Brovarkovskoye




Ferrexpo 65% Fe Prermium pellets

Ferrexpo mines and develops its reserves
under the well-astablished laws and codes
governing mining in Ukraine The State
Service for Geology and Use of Natural
Resources of Ukrane has granted Ferraxpo
development icencas for the Gonshne-
Plavnmskoye, Lavnkeovskaoye, Yenstovskoye,
Belanovskoye and Galeshunskoye depaosits
Exploration licences are held for the remaining
Northern Deposits (n general, a development
licence i1s granted for & penod of 20 years and
an exploration hcence 1s granted for 10 years
Renewal 1s deemed automatic, subject to
adherence to stipulated requirements in
terms of development of the deposit and
community obligatons

Production

In 2011, Ferrexpo was the largest exporter of
pellets in the GIS and one of the top 10 peliet
producers In the global seaborme ron ore
market Production continued at full capacity
and a record guantity of iron units was
produced and shipped in the form of pellets
On a Fe equivalent basis, the Group's cutput
of ron units has doubled in the last 10 years
of production In addition, the average grade
of its pellets has increased significantly by
over 1% 0 83 5% Fe

Ferrexpo plc
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0.8bnN

JORC resources

14.2n

resources classified according to the
Farmer Soviet Union code
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Review of Operations Ferrexpo Poltava Mine (‘FPM’)

Pellet production began at FPM in 1977 after
construction of the mine, processing facilities
and local town of Komsomolsk under Soviet
Union ownership The oit (s open cut and
approximately 330 metres deep and seven
kilometres long Sorme key mitestonas of
production cutput have recentty been
reached In December 2010, the processing
faciities reached total production of 250
milion tonnes of pellets, while In 2011, the
mining dmsion extracted the ona bilionth
cubic metre of rock and ore since the start of
mining actmvties

FPM once again increased the amount of ron
ore mined per annum In 2017, it mined 29,637
thousand tonnes, 2 4% higher than 2010 This
1S i ine with Ferrexpo’s strategy to expand the
rining capacity of the pit in conunctien with
the Mina Life Extension project {sea
Development Capital Investment at FPM
below) Stripping volumes Increased N 2011
by 107% to 28,214 thousand tonnes reflecting
the age of the ming and required pre-stnpping
o access new reserves as part of the mine ife
extension

The FPM processing faciliies have latent
processing capacity of approximately 3 0
million tonnes of pellets per annum as a result
of insufficient mined ore from the exssting
operations Dunng the year, 747 thousand
tonnes of pellets were produced frorm
purchased third party concentrate (2010 998
thousand tonnes) The Group purchases third

Table 2 Production Statistics

Change

{000t unless otherwise statad) 2011 2010 +- %
Iron ors mined 29,637 28,930 707 24
Average Fe content 30 30 - 1)
Iron ore processed 29,535 29,007 438 15
Concentrate produced (‘WMS") 11,487 11,226 261 23
Average Fe content % 83 63 - {0 B)
Floated concentrate 7,241 6,195 1,045 188
Higher grade 4,685 4,426 258 58
Average Fe content % 67 67 - 02
Purchased concentrate 864 1,142 {278) {24 4)
Average Fe content % 66 67 1 o7
Purchased iron ore - - - -
Pellets produced from own ore 8,063 9,033 30 03
Higher grade 4,256 4,061 195 48
Average Fe content % 65 85 - 00
Lower grade 4,807 4,972 (164) {33
Average Fa content % 62 62 - 01
Pellets produced from purchased

concentrate and ore 747 998 (250) 25 1)
Higher grade 543 B18 (275) (336)
Average Fe content % 65 65 - 00
Lower grade 205 180 24 135
Average Fe content % 62 62 - 01
Total pellet production 9,811 10,031 (220} (22
Pellet sales volume 9,876 721 1585 16
Gravel output 2,855 2905 {49) 17
Stripping volume 28,214 25,481 2,733 107




party concentrate subject to availabiity n the
local market and will substitute this with own
ore as the capacity expansion and ore from
FYM comes online

In total, the processing facilities produced
9,811 thousand tonnes of pellets (2010 10,031
thousand tonnes) of which 4,799 thousand
tonnas were Premium 85% Fe pellets 2010
4,879 thousand tonnes} and 5,012 thousand
tonnes were Basic 62% Fe pellets (2010 5,152
thousand tonnes}

Health and Safety

There were no fatalites at FPM in 2011, and
lost-time injuries reduced from 191n 2010 to
11, reducing the LTIFR to 0 82 per miflon man

hours worked which 1s the lowest rate in
FPM's history {2010 143 per million man
hours worked) This reduced the three-year
maoving average to a LTIFR of 112 compared
to the pnor three average of 116 per milion
man hours worked

The management of Ferrexpo strongly
encourages a culture of safety in the
organisation Inking safety performancs to
remuneration The Group has regular intemal
safety audits and external audis by DuPont,
and1s committed to following international
best practice as well as to set the standard
for mining compantes operating In the CIS

*  Plgasanote iotiowing an ncreasad facus on salety by the Group from 2009 incdents that wens

praviously unreportad ane now reported on and disclosad
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Business Improvement Programma
{'BIP")

In 2011, FPM completed and implemented

34 projects as part of the BIP This reduced
the C1 cash cost of production by UAHB8m
or 1 8%, inline wath its goal of 1% to 2%

cost savings per annum  Of these projects,

18 concemed transportation efficencies In
the open pit, seven projects were focused
onimproving productmty in the processing
faciittes and ning projects focused on reducing
downtime in the servce departments Table

3 shows the actual resource savings achieved
In 2011

Table 3 Resource Savings under BIP

Resource Savings
Power {millon KWh) 214
Steam {Geal) 65207
Grinding media {tonnes) 12572
Diesel fuet (fonnes) 2780
Lining {tonnes} 603

It s an essential part of the Group’s strategy
to reduce costs In order to reman in the
lowest cost guartile of global pellet producers
This has been achieved through ongoing
efficiency improvements and cost reductions
over many years Table 4 below illustrates the
effect of thesa projects Since 2005, the year
before the start of the BIF, FPM has achieved
savings of US$6 6 per tonne in the C1 cash
cost of production
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Review of Operations Ferrexpo Poltava Mine (‘FPM’) continued

Table 4 Improvement in Consumption
Norms

Norms — examplas 2005 2011 Ch%

Electricity kWh/t 20551792 (15

Gas m/t 220 168 (31)
Gninding bodies kg/t 64 856 (15
Labour productiity

thousand tonnes/

person 07 15 53

Examples of the BIP 1n 2011

Decrease in consumption of steel
gnnding media in concentration plant
Cost no capital cost required

Savings 1,257 tonnes of steel gnnding media,
UAHS million (at current prices)

Descnption of project

A programme was designed to rmonitor
glecincal consumpton of the motors on the
ball mills in the concentration plant Ball mulls
contan steel gnnding media which are used to
gnind the ron ore into an optimum size for
further processing By studying the pattern of
power consumgtion, FPM could assess when
gnntling medha were bemg over or under
lcaded As a resutt, FPM could cptimise the
process for consistent loading of gnnaing
meda and reduce gverall power consumption

Benefits

1 More efficient energy management

2 Reduction of gnnding media required
3 Consistent paricle size acheved

Reduction of power consumption at the
tallings plant

Cost UAH13 million

Savings 18 milton kWh power, UAHT1 million
per annum

Descnption of project

Tahngs, fine particles of waste, which are a
by-product of peliet production, are stored in
atalings dam Dunng 2010 and 2011 FPM
redesigned the piping from the dam to the
processing plant to allow water to flow by
gravity, instead of via glectncal pumps, back
to the processing area for reuse

Benefits

1 Lower electncity consumption

2 Reducton in wear and tear of
water pumps

3 Recycling water

Dispatch system in open pit
Cost UAMH28 million

Descnption of project

Trucks used in the pit to collect ore have been
fitted with GPS tracking systems This allows
for better scheduling of pick-ups thereby
improving overall mining efficiency In 2011,
the focus was to set up the hardware for this
dispatch platform Now that this has been
achueved, the systermn can be expandad 1o
monitor other performance cntena, such as
the pressure and temperature of tyres and
engine performance In trucks The system
can also be used in the future to evaluate the

performance of other equipment in the pit
such as dnling ngs

Expected project outcomes

1 Reduced downtmsa for trucks warting
to load

2 Reduction of instances of ‘zero mileage’
for trucks

3 Increase of mine fleet capacity by 7% atter
first year of operation

The BIP 13 embedded in the Group's cuiture
with targefed outcomes linked 1o operational
managers’ performance evaluations Ferrexpo
beleves the programmae 1s essenhal to ensure
continued mprovement N the cost reduction
of its mining and processing activities

Sustaining Capital Investment at FPM
During the penod, the Group allocated
US$121 million: for the modamisation and
debottienecking of FPM's production faciities
(2010 US348 million)

Included in sustaining capital Investment are
projects to upgrade FPM's faciities to allow
processing capability of 35 milon tonnes

of crude ore per annum by the end of 2013
This will ensure FPM can process addtional
ore from the FPM open pit and first ore from
FYM, increasing the Group's pellet output
to 12 millon tonnes per year Actvities dunng
the year iocused on the redesign and
reinstatiation of parts of the crushing plant
and were completed and commissioned

In January 2012




Sustaning capital nvestment also prowides
for the modermusation of existing assets and
systems to Increase operating efficencies,
benefiting the cash cost of production

Development Capital Investment at FPM
Quality Upgrade Project

Of the total pellets produced at FPM in 2011,
49% reprasented Ferrexpo Premiurm pellets
(65% Fe) while the remaining were Ferrexpo
Basic pellets (52% Fe) The Group's strategy
1S to ncrease the quality so that all cutput I1s
Premium pellets To achieve this, the Board
approved a US$212 milion investment
programime in November 2010

The FPM pit consists pnncipally of two
types of ore seams The Qualty Upgrade
Programme will enable the Oivision to
upgrade (beneficiate) leaner ore to a higher
iron content through the modification of the
existing flotation circuit and the installahon
of two addimonal creuits The project also
irvolves the upgrade and replacement of
filters to remove water from the concentrate
prior to it entenng the pelletising plant

The project 1s schaduled for completion by
the end of 2014

Duning the year, FPM completed the majority
of the engineenng and design documentation
and prepared thea sites for the flotation
sections Long-lead orders for the vertical
mills, used In the beneficiabon process were
placed, with delivery expected to startin
mid-2012

Mine Life Extension

The FPM open pit mine has been in
operation since 1977 and contains cre
beyond tha onginal planned pit trmits and
depths In November 2010, US$168 milion
was approved for expenditure to extend the
Iife of the mine to 2038 This project Nvolves
stripping and removal of overburden to
access further Iron nch ore by 2014 The
project began in 2011 and s scheduled

for completion by the end of 2018

During the year, approximatety 13 milion
cubic metres of overburden was removed

in ne with the plan Higher diesel pnees
resufted in Increased costs, however, the
Group expects these costs to moderate over
the remaning 4fe of the project Orders for a
driling ng and two excavators were placed
and are expected to be deliverad in the first
quarter of 2012, while three dump-trucks
were defivered in September 2011

Total development capital investment at
FPM in 2011 was US349 milion (2010
US355 million)
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Review of Operations Ferrexpo Yeristovo Mine {(‘FYM’)

Development Capital investment
Phase 1 - First Ore

Capital investment at FYM dunng the pencd
was US$129 million (2010 US$43 million)
This project 1s proceeding on time and on
budget {total cost US$267 millon) with first
ore expected at the end of 2012

Overall, 60% of the required pra-stnpping

has been completed In 201, 16 mullon cubic
metres of overburden was removed with

15 milion cubic metres of pre-stnpping
remaning Currently, five draglines, 16 CAT
789 haul trucks, five CAT 793 haul trucks and
a hydraulic excavator are in operation A further
excavator and five addibonal CAT 793 trucks
are expected to be in operation by the second
quarter of 2012 Meanwhtie, construchon of
permanent pit infrastructure 1s well underway
and the Division employed 677 permanent
staff as of 31 December 2011

Oncee first ore 15 achieved, Femexpo wil be
able to increase its pellet output by one thurd
to 12 million tonnes per annum by using the
processing faciiies at FPM

Phase 2 - Construction of Concentrating
Facilities

Ferrexpo intends to ncrease its total
production output by over 60% to 20 miilon
tonnes by 2016 FYM plans to produce
approximately 28 million tonnes of crude ore
output per annum  In order to process this
matenal, a new concentrator faciity wil
process the surplus ore to increase output

from 12 mikon tonnes per annum to 20 million
tonnes per annum

Curenty, the Group s finalising the engineenng
design for the concentrator to ensure it complies
with intarnational best practice and local design
nstitute requirements  Ferrexpo aniicipates

final approval of the project, in its entirsty,

dunng 2012

Although concentrate 1S saleable as a product
i its own nght, Ferrexpo recognises the
benefits of producing ron ore pellets, which are
of higher value to end customers As a result,
approval of the concentrator will also intate

the third phase of the project, subject to Board
appraval, which 1s to construct a 10 milion
tonne per annum pelletiser to be established

in the most favourable kocation

Health and Safety

Since the start of the project n 2008, FYM has
had an excellent safety record There wers no
fataktes or lost tme injunes In 2011

Ferrexpo Belanovo Mining {{FBEM’)

The Femexpo Belanovo depost has total JORC
resources of 1,702 millon tonnes  Dnlling works
and site preparation actvties were undertaken
I 2011 amounting to US$8 milon A Bucynus
RH340 hydrautic face shovel and five Caterpliar
793D haul trucks have been ordered for defivery
11 mid-2012 1n order to begin stpping works

It s anticipated that in 2012 capital imvestment
wil be in the region of US$50 milkon, as part of
the programme to reach first ore at the depost
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Review of Operations Marketing and Logistics

53%

of sales volume to Traditional Markets
2010 66% of sales volume

40"

of sales volume toc Growth Markets
2010 27% of sales volume

%0

of sales volume to Natural Markets
2010 7% of sales volume

Marketing

Evolutton of iron Ore Pncing

In 2011, the majonty of physical iron ore
traded globally was priced aganst the

Ptatts won ore index for 62% Fe fines on

a CFR North China basis Producers and
customers would then agree a quotation
penod to calculate the average fines price
and negotiate a qualty adustment and a
premium for lump or pellets The resulting
price reflected value In use to the steel mill,
taking into account ron content as well as any
impunties, and for pellet producers, the pellst
premium reflected the benefits to the steel mil
of using pellets compared with fines or lump

Within thus context, in 2011 Ferrexpo
commenced index Iinked pncing with a
sigrificant number of long-term customers
using the average of the quarter of loading as
the preferred time penod for calculation of the
prce teading ron ore supphers moved to a
similar pricing methodology in most markets
dunng the October to December quarter

Tha Group, however, has a number of
relationships mainly in Eastern Europe, where
long-term contracts exist and where Ferrexpo
conducted direct negotiabons on a quarterty
basis using international pricing trends as
aguda

In 2011, approximately 76% of sales

were conducted under long-term volume
framework agreements The remaning sales
were made on a short-term or spot basis as

new target customers were introduced 1o the
Ferrexpo product ahead of the considerable
growth n production in coming years Itis
Ferrexpo's strategy to place its products
where it can consistently achieve the best
market prices

During the penod, the Group was able to
further diversify its customer base and, in the
process, reduce Its dependence on its two
largest customers Sales to these customers
reduced to 44% of total sales volume from
55% 1n 2010 This trend 1s expected to
conbinue as Ferrexpo finalises addiional
long-term contracts i China, Japan and
Western Europe in 2012

Logistics Infrastructure

Ferrexpo's mining opearations are integrated
with both port facities on the adjacent
Drieper River and with the Ukrainian rail
network The Group transports maost of its
finished product by ralt to border dispatch
points, and as of 31 December 2011, it owned
1,045 rait cars (31 December 2010 933 rail
cars) which can transport approxmately two
thirds of curent Group output The remaining
production (s transported by state owned rail
cars or by barge Ferrexpo ams to become
self-sufficient in rall car transportation and
expacts a further 600 ral cars to be dslivered
in the first half of 2012 Thus ensures availabiity
of rail cars dunng peak tmes and provides a
competitve advantage on railway costs
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Review of Operations Marketing and Logistics continued

Currently, a quarter of the Group's pellets are
transported via rail to the western Ukrainian
border far custorers in Central and Westemn
Europe The remaining pellets are transported
viaral or barge

i

aeither to the Group's port terminal in
Yuzhny on the Black Sea where the
product 1s shipped to seabome markets
around the world Ferrexpo has
guaranteed capacity at its ocean port
terminal of five midlion tonnes per annum

inMay 2011, in addition to loading
panamax vessels, this facilty began
loading standard capesize vessels

The Group complated ning capesize
shipments by the year end, loading up 1o
130 thousand tonnes at the berth and
topping up the vessel with a further 40 to
50 thousand tonnes at the anchorage

By moving nto capesize shipments,
Ferrexpo was able to significantly reduce
freight costs to Far East and Western
European markets resulting in increased
FOB returns from CFR sales Further
improvernents in loading efficiency and
cost are expected In 2012 as new loading
systems are embedded

or to the Group's barge loading facility
at the Port of lsmail whera the product
1s shipped to customers along the
Darube Rver

From the barge loading terminal at the
mouth of the Danube River, palists are
transported via Ferrexpo's barging
subsidiary, Helogistics, to customers in
Eastemn and Central Europe along the
Danube/Rhine River corndor Since
acquisiion Helogistics has become an
integral part of the supply chain to support
key customers in this region

Qverall in 2011, the proportion of sales
controlled by Ferrexpo along the supply chain
to customers iIncreased to 52% of sales from
14% 1 2010 This was achieved through a
combination of increased use of the Group's
barges, and increased CFR sales to Asia

Logistics Capital Investment

In 2011, Ferrexpo invested US$58 milicn in
its logistics infrastructure (2010 US$iB8 miflion)
This nciudad US$41 million for 112 rail
wagons and part prepayment for delvery

of 600 wagons in 2012 The Group acquired
land for trans-shipment from barge to rall in
Austna for US$4 milkon, which will allow 1t to
access markets in Northemn Eurcpe In
addition, Ferrexpo pad US$38 mullion for
Helegistics in January 2011

Markets

Ferrexpo sells its product to the key steel
producing regions in the world, focusing
on three market segments

w  Tradtonal Markets these lie within Central

and Eastern Europe and include steel
plants that were designed to use Ferrexpo
pelets Ferrexpo has been supplying some
of thesa customers for more than 20 years
Femrexpo has well-estabhshed logistics
routes and infrastructure to these markets
by both nver barge and ral These markets
include Austna, Czech Republic, Hungary,
Sertxa and Slovakia.

In 2011, approxmately 53% of sales
volumes went to these markets compared
with 66% in 2010 The reduction in volume
15 part of the Group's strategy to develop
Growth and Natural markets ahead of the
Increase in production cutput in order to
maximisa returns for this new tonnage

Natural Markets. these include Turkey, the
Middle East and Western Europe and are
those markets where Farrexpo has a
compettive advantage over more distant
producers, but where market share remans
relatvely low N 2011, approxamately 79 of
sales volumes went to thesa markets in line
wath 2010, and

Growth Markats. these are predeminantty in
Asia and have the potental to deliver new
and sgnificant sales volumes to the Group

In 2011, approsamately 40% of sales volumes
went to these markets compared with 27%
n 2010




Financial Review

Highlights

®» Record sales volumes

® Increased revenues

s Strong cash flow generation

» Balance sheet positioned to
develop project pipeline

m Average debt maturity four years,
no significant repayments in 2012
or 2013

a Approved projects on track

a Fnal dvidend maintaned at
3 3 US cents per share

Table 5 Summary Financial Results
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Year andad Yoar endac
USE milions unless otharwise stated IHzn 311210 Change
Revenue 1,788 0 1,284 9 381%
EBITDA 800 9 5853 36 8%
As % of revenue 44 8% 45 2% -
Profit before taxation 690 9 498 1 387%
Income tax 116.0 3¢ 58 9%
Profit for the pernod 574.9 4251 35 2%
Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 970 722 34 3%
Final dmdend per share (US cents) 3.3 33 -

Revenue

Total revenue increased by 38 1% to US$1 8
bilion for the year ended 2011 compared to
US$1 3 billion in 2010

The average realised prce achieved by

tha Group for its pellets rose 28 4% durnng
the penod, which ncreased revenues by
US$349 9 milton 40% of sales were ona
CFR or similar basis adding US$44 7 milion
torevenue Sales volumes reached a histonic
high at 99 milon tonnes comparedto 97
millon tonnes in 2010, enbancing growth

1N margins

Reliance on the Group's two largest
customers, in Central and Eastern Europe,
was reduced to 43 5% of pelet sales from
55 4% of sales in 2010 Ahead of an increase
in production volumes the Group increased
sales to customers in China, Germany, india
and Japan which accountsd for 41 9% of
sales volumes compared to 29 6% in 2010

Other revenue, not related to pellet sales,
amounted to US$88 1 milkon (2010 US$5 8
milion) This included revenue from third party
services, such as bunker fuel sales, at the
Group's barging subsidiary Helogistics
{acquired in Decermber 2010) as well as sales
from gravel

Cost of Sales

Total cost of sales for the year ended

31 December 2011 increased 34 8% o
US$642 5 milion 2010 US$481 9 mullion)
Cost of sales consists of the C1 cash cost of
sales and other costs including deprectation
These are reviewed below

Ct Cash Cost

The C1 cash cost of production per tonne 1s
defined as the cash costs of production of
rron pellets from own ore, dvded by production
volume, from own ore, and excludes
non-cash costs such as depreciaton,
pension costs and Inventory movements,

MIIAGIAN0O

M3IA3H SS3NISNS

JONVYNHIADD

SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIA



Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

30

Financial Review continued

costs of purchased ore, concentrate and
production cost of graved

The C1 cash cost increased by 277% to
US$S0 7 per tonne compared 1o USE30 7 per
tonne in 2010, pnncipally as a result of global
commodity prce inflation

Of the US$11 0 per tanne increass in the

C1 cash cost, commodity related pnce
inflation accounted for 55 5% of the ncrease
compared to 2010 In 2011, gas and electneity
prices rose by 38 0% and 21 8% respectively
whila the cost of diesel fuel was 40 6% higher,

Table 6. C1 cash costs

reflecting a full year impact of the increased ol
price at the end of 2010 Higher steel prices
resultad it a 14 6% increase In steel gnnding
media costs In total, thesae factors added
US$6 1 per tonne to the C1 cash cost

Personnel, repar and maintenance and other
materal costs increased the C1 cash cost

by US$4 9 per tonne These expenses are
pnncipally denominated in local currency

On average Ukrainian producer pnce inflabon
was approximately 19 0% in 2011

1 Average of January 2011 to December 2311 compared
10 averaga January 2010 to Decembar 2010

The Group produced at full capacity
throughout the penod, which helped to
absorb the cost increases In addition,

the Business mprovement Programme
{(BIP"} reduced the C1 cash cost by 18%,
generating savings of $0 8 per tonne

Since the inception of the BIP n 20086,
cumulative productvty gains have achieved
savings of approximately US$6 6 per tanne
of pellets produced, or US$56 1 milhon to
31 December 2011

Just over half of the C1 cash costs are
denominated in Ukramian Hryvnia The
Hryvria remamed on average broadty
stable in 2011 compared to 2010 at
arcund UAHS (O to the US Dollar

Year ended Year ended
311211 311210

USSm % of total ussm %5 of total
Electncity 118.1 257% 97 3 27 1%
Gas 898 130% 431 12 0%
Fuet 471 102% 3z 87%
Gnnding media 409 B.9% 359 100%
Explosives 132 2.9% 81 2 4%
Othar matenals 387 84% 314 87%
Spara parts, mamntenance and consumables 782 170% 589 16 4%
Personnei costs 558 121% 454 i27%
Royalties and levies 77 1.8% 72 20%
C1 cost of sales 4595 3585
C1 caost per tonne 507 387




Non C1 cost of sales relating to pellet
production

Non C1 cost of sales amounted to US$190 0
milion for the penod (2010 US$123 3 mullion)

Depreciation increased by 16 1% to US$28 6
milhen, reflecting capital nvestments at FPM
In 201

The remainder of non C1 cost of sales

related to the purchase of congentrate for
reprocessing into pellets The Group has
nameplats pelletising capacity of 12 milion
tonnes of pellet production per year Ferrexpo
15 currently able to mine ore sufficient to
produce around nme millon tornes of pellets
To utihise the spare pellebsing and process
capacity efficiently, third party concentrate
was purchased when avalable on the local

Table 7 Selling and distnbution expenses

market The Group will continue to purchase
third party concentrate, provided adequate
margins can be achieved Dunng the year,
747 3 thousand tonnes of pellet equivalent
third party concentrate was acquired (2010
9981 thousand tonnes} which generated a
positve contribution

Gross margin

The Group’s gross margin increased

t0 63 6% n 2011 compared to 62 8% n
2010 This reflected higher salas prices
and volumes, which were partally offset
by an incraase in producten costs

Selling and distribution expenses
Seling and distnbution expenses were
US$318 0 million for the year comparad
to US$212 0 milon in 2010
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Seling and distnbution costs to the Ukrainian
border increased by US$10 7 milion to
US$H138 O milion in the penod (2010
US$127 3 millon), equating to US$14 O per
tonne (2010 US$131 per tonne) These costs
prmanly include railway freight to the southem
ports at Yuzhny and Ismail and to the western
Ukrainian border as well as port charges

Rall tariffs Increased on average by
appraximately 10 8% dunng the year, this
was partially offset by a discount for volumes
transported by the Group’s own ral cars
Currently, two thirds of the sales volumes
areralled using Ferrexpo’s wagons receving
a 6 5% discount for these volurnes

Year anded Year endad
{USS million unless otherwise statad) nz2n 311210
Rauway transportation 89.2 815
Port charges 377 323
International freight 152.7 749
Other (commissions, iInsurances, personnel, depreciation, advertising) 384 233
Total selling and distribution expenses 3180 2120
Total sales volume (thousand tonne) 9,876 9,721
Cost per tonne of pellets sold (including international freight) 322 218
DAP/FOB distribution costs per tonne of pellets sold (US$) 140 131
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Financial Review continued

FINANCIAL KPIs

Revenue US$ milion

EBITDA US3 million

Definiion

The Group calculates EBITDA as profit from
continung operations before tax and finance
plus depreciation and amorbsation and
non-recumng exceptional tems included in
other ncome and other expenses, and the
net of gans and losses from disposal of
irvestments, property, plant and equipment

NOPAT US$ miflion

Definthion
Net operating profit after tax

International freight costs amounted to
US$152 7 million (2010 US$74 9 milion)
These costs, which are also reflected as part
of revenue on associated CFR' sales, relate
to the shipping of pellets by ocean vessel to
customers in Asia {on a CIF? or CFR basis),
and by barga to customers in Serbia on a
DAP? basis) and Austria {through Helogistics)
In 2011, Helogistics' operations were
included for the first tme  The Group doubled
shipments of pellets to Asia to three millon
tonnes on a CFR or equivalent basis principally
through the loading of rine capesize vesse!s
thus increasing costs recognised

Depreciation amounted to USES 2 milion
(2010 US$1 8 mullior) and related to
amortisation of Helogistics rver vessels
as well as to capital Investment from the
purchase of new rail cars

General and Adrministrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses were
US$52 0 milion (2010 US$49 2 milion) This
was raélated to an Increase in professional
fees, including legal services reflecting
increased activities and projects

Other Income and Expense

Other income was US$6 9 millon in 2011
(2010 US3%4 5 millor) The increase reflected
higher operating Nncoma from the lease of
premises to third parties at FPM

Cther expensas increased to US$171
milion (2010 USS$5 9 million) This reflected
ncreased spanding on support for the local
communities In the Poltava region, where
Ferrexpo 1s based and s a key part of the
Group's strategy

EBITDA

EBITDA ncreased by 36 8% to US$800 9
milion for the year compared to US$585 3
milion for 2010 This 1s the highest EBITDA
achieved by the Group The increase was
mainly dus to a higher average FOB sales
prce contnbuting US$323 4 million to
EBITDA This was partally offset by increased
produiction costs of US$100 5 million, drven
by domestic and commodity cost inflation,
as discussed previously The EBITDA margin
was In ina with 2010 at 44 8% (2010 45 2%}

1 CFR5 defined as delvary including cost and fraight

2 CIFisdafined as delvery including cost, nsurance
and fresght

3 DAPs dafined as delivery at place

Finance Income and Expense

Finance ncome was US$2 5 milion (2010
US$1 3 milion} Dunng the year, ncomea from
interest earned increased by US$11 milion
to US$2 Smilllon This was daven by higher
average cash balances in 2011 of US$604 8
milion compared to US$165 7 millon in 2010
as well as longer-term deposits recaving
mere attractive interest rates

Finance expensa increased to US$68 2
mdlion 2010 US$41 6 millon) which included
US$28 8 mullion of interest cost on the
Group's US$500 milion Eurcbond, issued
InApnl 2011 at a coupon of 7875% Dus
to financial instability in the global banking
sector, partieulary in Westem Europe,
Ferrexpo drew in full ts US$420 million
revolving banik facility in Cctober 2011
Interest on this faciity 1s 225 basis points
above LIBOR on drawn ameunts The
average gross debt for the penod was
US36971 million (2010 US$346 8 mitkon)

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses
Operating Foreign Exchange Gains

and Losses

Ferrexpo prepares and reports its financial
statemnents in US Dollars and operating
foreign exchange gains and losses reflect
the revaluation of trade racewables and trade
payables that are denocminated in a currency
other than the Group's reporting currency at
the balance sheet date

Dunng the pened, the Ukraiman Hryvnia
remained stable aganst the US Daltar
at an average rate of UAH79573 (2010
UAH79547) As a result, there was no
significant operating foreign éxchange
movernents, with a loss of US$1 4 million
recorded (2010 loss of US$1 1 million)

Non-operating Foreign Exchange Gains
and Losses

Non-operating foreign exchange gans or
losses result from the retranslation of financial
liabiibes, loans and other simiar items

Non-operating foreign exchange losses for
the penod were US$1 9 milklon compared

to US$3 9 milion n 2010 The losses were
primanty related to the revaluaton of ncome
tax payables in Swiss Francs The average
exchangs rate between a US Dollar and

the Swiss Fran¢ was 0 881n 2011 compared
to 104 1n 2010
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Table 8 Summary of Group Liquidity and Debt

As of As of
US$ milion 31122011 31122010
Cash and equivalents 890 1 3195
Gross debt 8703 4239
Net debt (80 2) (104 4)
Total equity 1,393 1 8615
Undrawn facilities 500 650
Total hquidity (faciities plus cash} 9401 3845

Cash Flows

Net cash flow from aperating activiies was
US$502 7 milion for the penod, an increase

of 32 4% compared to 2010 (US$379 8 million)

Working capital increased by US$111 4 million
reflecting higher VAT and trade recevables
As a result of high capital expenditure during
the vear, and a delay in respact of VAT
repayments in May, June and July 2011, VAT
recevables Increased by US$721 million
dunng the period Higher average pnces
increased trade and other receivables by
US$17 4 mitthion

Tetal capital Investment for the year was
US$378 3 millon, which was more than
double 2010's investrment of US$167 4 million

Sustaning and modermisation capital
investment was US$128 O for the Group,

of which US$121 3 milion was invested at
FPM (2010 US$491 millon} The remaining
US$6 7 million was ivested at Helogistics

In November 2010, the Beard approved
US$646 9 milkon for development projects
at FPM and FYM In 2011, the Group

spent US$177 9 millen in this regard

(2010 development capex US$97 5 milion)
US$49 0 milkon was spent at FPM, while
US$129 0 millon went towards achieving
first ore at FYM The expected spend for 212
1 fully funded while the Group's low level of
geanng will undemin future development
spend for processing facilities at FYM

US$8 3 milion was spent on the Belanovo
deposit {FBM) dunng the penod (2010
US$2 4 million) This was for dnikng works
and site preparation activities

In terms of logistics capital nvestment was
US$57 8 milion in 2011 {2010 US$177 milion)
which was pnmarly related to the acquisition
of ral cars

InJanuary 2011, Ferrexpo pad US$38 0
million for the Helogistics acquisition, which
was agreed in December 2010 and disclosed
In the 2010 financial statements

The Group's closing cash balance increased
by US$570 7 million to US$8901 million

as of 31 December 2011, partly as a result

of the net financing inflow of US$521 3 million
following the placement of a US$500 0 million
bond and the increase of the pre export facity
from LIS$350 0 milion to US$420 0 mithon

Ferrexpo's gross debt had an average
matunty of 4 O years at the 31 December
2011 The Group has minmal debt
repayments of US$10 8 million and US$10 4
.millon In 2012 and 2013 respectively Net
debt to EBITDA as of 31 December 2011
was 01 tmes
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Ferrexpo Principal Risks

The list of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group's business that folows
below 1s based on the Board's current understanding. Due to the very nature of risk it
cannot be expected to be completely exhaustive New risks may emerge and the
severity or probability associated with known risks may change over time.

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS

POSSIBLE IMPACT

lron ore prices and market

Mining risks and hazards

Reliance on
state monopolies

Logistics

Counterparty risk

Licences

See also 'Risk relating to the Group's strategy —
Government approvals of expansion’

Fluctuations in iron ore prices as well as in demand may negatively impact the financial
result of the Group

The mining risks and hazards may result in matenat mine or plant shutdowns or pericds
of reduced production Such events could damage the Group's operating results
and reputation

The Group purchases certain goods and services from state-owned enterpnses, and
changes In the related tariffs affect the Group’s cost base Avallability of services can also
be imited, which could affect the Groups ability to produce and deliver pelists Examples
include rallway tanffs and avalability of rail wagons, supply of gas and electnicity and
associated tanffs and mining royalties

The Group's logistics capability 1s dependent on services provided by third parties
and state-owned organisations mainly n relaton to ral and port services Logistical
bottlenecks may affect the Group s ability to distnibute its products on tme
Impacting customer relationships

Fnancial instabiity of the Group s counterparties, especially ts major customers,
could lead to lower sales volumes and adversely affect its financial results

Mining and land allctment icences are cntical to the Group s operatiens, and thera can
be ne guarantee that they will be renewed or that addticnal icences will be cbtained
This could adversely affect the Group's operations and its ability to develop in the future




MITIGATION
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ASSOCIATED STRATEGIC PRIORITY?

Ferrexpo has a low cost base which has enabled it to preduce at full capacity
and remain profitable throughout the commodities cycle

The Group has an established, broad customer base and logistics infrastructure
which can service regional and seaborne markets This provides flexibility should
a particular region expenence a decline in demand

Safety, environmental and operational perfermance is regularly and ngorously
reviewed throughout the organisation including the COO the Executive Committee
and the Board

Through s capital investment programme Ferexpo 15 modernsing 1ts mimng

and production facilities which 1s improving safety, environmental and operational
performance

All acaidents are fully iInvestgated and lessons are drawn and implemented
Appropnate safety traning s regularty provided 1o employees

Employes remuneraton 1s nked to safety performance

The factors affecting the Group's future cost structure are closely managed

Cost reduction iniatives are planned and raported to the Beard

Since 2005, the BIP has reduced the C1 cash cost by US3$6 60 per tonne

of pellets

The Group has purchased its own ras wagons to reduce refiance on state-owned
rail cars

The Group sourced altemative gas supplies In January 2009 when thera were gas
prce disputes between Russia and Ukraine

The Group activaly looks to invest In areas 1o reduce rellance on state monopolies

The Group continues to enhance its logistics capabilities in order to mest the
expected increase of sales volumes and to reduce its reliance on third parties
Beside considerable investment in the rail car flast in 2010 and 2011, the Group
acguwed a barging company operating on the Danube/Rhine River corrider it also
owns a 49 9% investment in the port of TIS-Ruda which guarantees the Group
ndspendent access to the seabome markets avoiding reliance on the state port

Tha financial strangth of the Group's customers is subject to regutar and thorough
raview The results of these reviews are used to allocate pellet volumas and if
necessary amend sales terms with customers, in order to mitigate the potential nsk
of unallocated pellets and bad debts The Group has not expenenced any significant
bad debt losses

The Group ragularly reviews its supplier base In order to avoid excessive dependence

on any supplier actively encouraging a diversity of supply where possible

The Group complies with commitments under its vanous hcences in order to ensure
that the conditions contained within the iicences are fulfiled or if appropnate waners
arg obtained

To develop further the Group’s significant resource
base

To mprove the quality of the Group's pellets

To expand the Group's logistic serices

To open and develop new markets and customers

To be a responsible corporate citizen

To reman in the lowest quartile of the global pellet
cost curve

To consider mvestments o secure production
Inputs

To develop further the Group’s significant
resource base

To maintan adeguate lquidity and low balance
sheet geanng

To expand its logistics services
To open and develop new markets and customers

To open and develop new markets and customers

To develop further the Group's significant
resource base

Plaase see pages 12 and 13 for the KP associated with the
Strategic Pronles
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Ferrexpo Principal Risks continued

RISKS RELATING TO FINANCE

POSSIBLE IMPACT

Exchange rate risk

Interest rate risk

Financing risk

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROQUP'S STRATEGY

Expansion capital
investment

Government approvals of
expansion

RISKS RELATING TO OFERATIONS IN UKRAINE

Political
Ukrainian producer price

inflation (‘PPI’)

Ukrainian VAT receivable

Ukrainian taxes

The Group receives the majonty of its ncome 1 US Dollars while a large proportion
of ts costs are denomunated n Ukratrnan Hryvnia

An appraciation of the Ukrainian Hryvnia aganst the US Dollar could have a negative
impact on the profitabtiity of the Group

A portion of the Group's finance facility 1s inked to US Dollar LIBOR rates An
increase in interest rates will have a negative mpact on the Group's financial costs,
thus affecting profitabiity

The Group's development projects may be funded using debt securad with financial
guarantees There s a nsk that cancellation of contracts as a result of force majeure
events and/or lower iron ore pellet pnices would limit the amount of funding avallable
to the Group, and could prompt lenders of existing finance facilities to require
Ferrexpo to assign additional contracts to meet agreed ratios

POSSIBLE IMPACT

The Group's growth depends on its ability to upgrade existing facilities and develop
1ts iron ore resource base For any major capital project there 1s a nisk of insufficient
controls cost overruns, shortage of required skills, and unexpected techmical
problems affecting the tme taken to complete the project and tha return on the
capital nvested

The Group does net yet have all the governmental approvals required to deveiop
future deposits Although all approvals that have been applied for have been
granted, there I1s no guarantee that others will be granted in the future

POSSIBLE IMPACT

Ukraine 1s a young democracy which has been subject to vanous changes in
government over the past 20 years As i1s commen with developing economies there
15 a nsk that the country may develop in a manner that 1s adverse to general
business practice This could include a weak judicial system that 15 susceptible to
outside nfluence

As the Group's operations are in Ukraine it 1s exposed to cost inflation Ukraine has
expenenced double digt inflation over a number of years In 2011, the average PRI
rate was 190% The inflationary environment increases local costs if not mitgated
by a devaluation of the Ukrainian currency and operational efficiency improvements

As the bulk of the Group's cutput 1S exported, it does not collect substantial
amounts of VAT on sales (which could otherwise be used to offset VAT incurred
on purchases of goods and services) The Ukranin government refunds the
outstanding batance of VAT, although not always on a timely basis The late
repayment of VAT results in increased working capital, which 1s funded by

the Group

The Group 1s exposed to changes it local tax faws especially n Ukrane Ukrainian
tax laws are complex and subject to varying interpretations, and inconsistent
enforcement by local, regional and national authonties Tax authorities can challenge
the Group's interpretation and treatment of these laws resuling in increased tax
labiliies owed by the Group




MITIGATION
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ASSOCIATED STRATEGIC PRIORITY

Histoncal weakness of the Ukrainian Hryvnia in imes of low commodity pnces
has provided a natural hedge dunng downtumns in the commodity cycle All of the
Group's revenues and associated debt are denominated i US Dollars

The Group has optimised its debt structure, mantaning low balance shest
gearng As a result its interest costs are a low proportion of its profitabiity

The Group's financing sk has been mitigated by the 1ssue of a US$500 million
Eurobond and a US$420 million bank faciity

Ferrexpo mantains debt with long matunties  Average maturity of four years at
the 31 December 2011

The Group has minimal debt repayments of US$11 million and US$10 million in
2012 and 2013 respectively

MITIGATION

The Group has established stnict procedures to control, monitor and manage this
expenditure which s regularly reviewed by the Investment and Executive
Committee and the Board

Ferrexpo maintains an open and proactive relationship with various governmental
authonties and is fully aware of the importance of cormpliance with local
legislation and standards

The Group monitors and reviews its commitments under Its various mining
ficences in order to ensure that the conditions contained within the icences are
fulfilled or the appropriate waivers obtaned Ferrexpo mainitaing stnet compliance
with the Ukranian mining code and execution of work in accordance with the
project design through active engagement of Ukrarmian and international

legal advisers

MITIGATION

Management proactvely engages with local, regional and central government
Ferrexpo protects its local and international interests by ensunng it operates to
the very highest international standards

The Group's BIP has achieved continuing efficiency improvements and
cost reductions over many years Since 2005 1t has reduced the cash
cost of producticn by US$6 60 per tonne of pellets The Group alse has a
caonsistent track record of producing at full capacity to achieve maximum
overhead absorption

The Group maintains an open dialogue with the Government and operates to
best international standards, ensuring the validity of the VAT repayments

The Group takes regular advice on tax matters from Ukrane tax experts and
complies with all known requirements  The Group maintains a transparent and
open relationship with local, regional and national tax authorities

To remain In the lowest quartile of the glcbal peliet
cost curve

To mantain adequate Iiguidity and low balance
sheet geanng

To mantain adequate lquidity and low balance
sheet geanng

ASSOCIATED STRATEGIC PRIORITY AND KPI

To develop further the Group's significant

resource base

To improve the quaity of the Group's pellets

To open and develop new markets and customers

To develop further the Group's significant
resource base

ASSOCIATED STRATEGIC PRIORITY AND KPI

To develop further the Group's significant
resouwrce base

To remain in the lowest quartie of the global pellet
cost curve

To consider nvestments to secure production
inputs

To mantain adequate quidity and low baiance
sheet geanng

To remain in the lowest quartile of the global pelet
cost curve

To maintain adeguate iquidity and low balance
sheet gearng
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Group History Building on our Heritage

Ferrexpo 1s the largest exporter of pellets
N the Commonwealth of Independent
States and one of the top 10 pellet
producers in the global seaborne iron
ore market.

Pellet production began at Ferrexpo
Poltava Mining N 1977, after construction
of the mine, processing facilities and

local town of Komscmolsk under Soviet
Union ownership

1960
Mining operations commencea at
Poltava GOK

2004
First production of higher grade
65% pellets

2007

Port joint venture at Yuzhny on the Black
Sea established Enables shipping to
global seabome markets




1970

First concentrate produced

2005
Ferrexpo AG opens sales office
In Shanghal

2008
Commencement of Ferrexpo Yeristovo
Mining

1977
First production of pellets using an
Alls Chalmer Rotary Kiln

billion
tfonnes

2006

First conversion of Sowviet classified
resources into 4 O bilhon tonnes of
JORC resources

2010

Acguisition of Helogistics Holdings
GmbH (December)
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1992
Privatisation of mine Poltava GOK

2007

Farrexpo 1s the first Ukrainian company
to list on the main market of the LSE
and enters the FTSE 250 Index

%

2011

Recard profit and capital investment
growth, 75% of operating cash flows
re-invested into the business for future
development
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Corporate Social Responsibility Review

Chairman’s Statement

Relevance of CSR to the Group

The Ferrexpo Board's commitment to
corporate soclal respensibiiity (CSR") denves
from a shared belef that the Group's hcence
to operate will be underpinned by the Group's
CSR performance For many operations
waithin farmer CIS countres, the tracitional
response has been 1o use legal requirerments
as the sole benchmark for CSR compliance
By contrast, the Board views legal standards
for CSR as a2 mnimum level and 1s strang to
achiever tha highest ntemational standards of
performance in CSR matters Dunng 2012
investment in health, satety and the
enviranment will be maintained

Company Values
The values that the Company strives to iImpart
throughout its operations are set out below

»  Ethical Standards
Ferrexpo aims to maintain high standards
of behaviour with all those with whom
deals, both inside and outside the Group
Its employees’ conduct and business
dealings should be associated with
honesty and integnty, making it an
attractve and refiable business partner

» Community Relations
Ferrexpo's presence and activities should
benefit those arcund 1t, and its cperations
will benefit if local commurites are thmang
Any member comparny of the Group shoutd
be considered an attractive local employer

u  Stewardship
Ferrexpo must develop and manage its
resources and faciibes in a sensible
manner, having regard for the natural and
social environment in which it operates
Companies within the Group should be
associated with a commitment to
achiemng the highest environmental and
safety standards

a  Safety
Ferrexpo ams at all imes to prevent
ruries to s staft

CSR Reporting

Ferrexpo 1s committed to improving its CSR
reporting This ts a continuous process and
wa welcome feedback from interested parties
on this CSR report

Michael Abrahams
Chairman

About this Report

The Board and its Corporate Safety and
Scaia Responsibility {CSR') Committes
(descnbed below) are commitied to
continuing the dnve to improve health and
safety, ermvironmental and social performance
and reporting As part of this programma the
decision was taken during the year to adopt a
maore coherent structure for reporting which
can be buit on as the Company's monitonng
procedures grow To this end, this report uses
the Global Reporting Inibative framework as a
reference point, although at this stage it is not
formally reporting agamnst this index

This report cavers the reporting perod 1
January 2011 — 31 December 2011, and
reporting 18 on an annual basis However, if
there are any significant CSR 1ssues or
developments dunng the ysar, these are
reported in the half-yearly report The last
annual C3R review was n the Company's
2010 Annual Report

Report Content

The scope of this report covers all areas of
Ferrexpo’'s actwities and those of its operating
subsidianes

The content of this report has been defined

by consideration of

s Company pnnciples and policies

»  Consideration of the Company's strategy
and how this may ba affected by
sustainable development nsks facing the
Company

n  Feedback from and interests of
stakeholder groups

n  Key CSR topics identified by senior
management engaged with the CSR
process

" Review against peer group companies

a  |egslation and regulation that affects the
Company

The topics covered are those that have been
assessed to be most matenal 1o the
Company We will take account of
stakeholders' views in order to refine and
buld on our CSR reporting

Report Audience

The report 1s amed prncipally at existing and
prospective sharsholders and Investment
analysts Other users may inciude local and
nationat government, employees,
communities affected by the Company’s
operations, contractors, supplers, customers
and the media

External Assurance

This report has been self-reviewed, which s
considered to be approprats at this stage in
the development of our CSR reporting

Organisational Profile

Information on the Group and its actviies
may be found In the Business Review on
pages 20 to 28 and employee numbers are
detailad innote 35 to the Financial
Staterments For information on the scale of
organisation {revenues, assets, capitalisation,
etc} please see notes 6, 18t0 21, and 28 to
the Financia Staterments

Governance

The general govemnance structure of the
Group 15 explained in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 50

CSR Govemance

The Corporate Safety and Social
Responsibility Commuttea

The Group has a Corporate Safety and Social
Responsibity Committes (the 'CSR
Comrmutteg’) which s a sub-committes of the
man Board and includes two Board
members and two Board non-members It
monitors the wnplementation of CSR policies
The CSR Committes 15 charred by Bnan
Maynard (Group Chref Operating Cfficer} The
other members of the CSR Committee are
Michael Agrahams (Charrman of the Board),
Kostyantin Zhavago {Chief Executive Officen)
and Viktor Lotous (FPM Chief Operating
QOfficer) To assist them in the exercise of ther
duties, the CSR Committee will, from time to
tme, engage speciahst technical advisers

Dunng the year the matters considered by the
CSR Committee and the Board included the
following

= Monitonng the review of targets and
matncs to be set in relation to the CSR
Performance Indicators this work will
contnue in 2012

*  Reviewing the work being done to
implement the Kyoto Protocol on
greenhouse gas emissions (concentrating
mainly on energy-saving measures)

u  Overall review of safety in mining and
processing operations, ncluding analys:s
of Industnal njunes and sickness,
workplace condiions, and labour safety
auchts

= Update on the work of DuPont Safety
Resources (‘DuPont’) and therr
reccmmendatons

Business Conduct

A congcem for high standards of business
conduct informs the Group’s approach to s
actmities A Group Policy on Bnbery and




CSR Strategy

Set out below are the short, medium and long-term strategic CSR goals for the Group

Short-tarm

Madrn term
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Long term

Health and safety Reduce/ehminate recumng inunes
through imprevernant in safe

workplace behavour

Implement effectve systems to

safety standards

ensure complance with company

Imptement hazardous operations
analysis and risk assessment
processes to dnve best practice

Employees
IMng accommodation

Increass avalability of improved

programmes

Increass employee development

Integrate recruitment & retention
systems

Environment

Keep controlled emissions {dust, gas

Adapt production techniques so

and effluent) below permitted timits and  as to minirmiss use of nputs and

reduce further where possible

minimise waste

Improve workplace conditions through
the mplementation of modern

aquipment and processes

Increase productive output while
reducing the impact on the
environment through new processes
and technology

Community

Contribute to the development
of the education and skills of the
local poputation, and support the

modermisation of local community
Infrastructure and senvices, (i order
to develop and maintan the local

labour pool

Algn the growth of operations with
land acquistion and eity planning
processes for rural and urban Imng

Conduct successful negotiations with
jocal communities In order to faciitate
land acquishion for mining Infrastructure

Work jointty with local communities
to create new infrastructure, social
programmes, and leisure actmties

Corruption was introduced and circulated to all
rmanagers and commercial employess dunng
the year, with training provided, In order to
ensure best practice and complance with the
UK Bribery Act It 1s the responsiiity of the
Chief Financial Officer to monitor the Group's
anti-bnbery polcies and report to the
Committee of Independent Oirectors on therr
effectvenass The Committee of Independent
Drrectors oversess the operation of business
ethics and anti-bnbery policies and makes any
necessary recommendations for mprovernent

Structure

Commitment to CSR 1s demonstrated
through

= Group policies

» Board and management focus

m  Asset level management systems

» Performance management at all fevels

Tha Board considers that Ferrexpo has
contnued to make good progress in 2011 The
Group's values (see the Chamman’s Statemenit
at the beginning of this CSR review) are
reflected In a Group-wide Code of Corporate
Responsibiity and Business Ethics

The CSR Framework

Management recogrises that reaching the
highest standards will entail a continuous
process of evaluaton and improvement
founded on a sound CSA framework
Ferrexpo has adopted a seven point CSR

framework covering values, strategy, policies,
objectives, targets, monitonng and auditing,
and communication

CSR at FPM

As 1t 13 still much the largest asset within the
Group, FPM provides the main focus for
development and implementation of the
Group's CSR procedures, based on
estabiished Group policies Within FPM a
single department has responsibility for all
aspects of health and safety, secunty and
environmental protection This department 1s
responsible for ar and water testing
laboratones, the medical centre, fire
pravention service, gas service, cvl defence
and emergency response headquarters and
workshops This department reports directly
to the FPM Chief Operating Officer

CSRatFYM

The number of staff at FYM grew steadity
during 2011, from 385 to 677 CSR matters
form an increasing part of FYM’s regular
reporting procedures

CSR at Helogistics Holdings
See section on Helogistics on page 47

All Employees

All Group employess are expected to take
personal respensibility for thew conduct, and
management recognises the need to create a
cultural and behawoural environment among

the Group's workforce that will allow
the policies agreed by the Board to be
successiully mplemented

Adherence to External Charters

Safety

Management continues to tzke into account
bast practce both in Ukraine and abroad In
2011 there was further co-operation with the
safety consultants DuPont in the area of
labour safety trainng and auditing

In 2006 FPM iritated the development of

a health and safety management systern
consistent with the requirements of OHSAS
18001, the internationally recognised standard
for health and safety management This
systern was extemnally audited under the
Ukraiman UkrSEPRO systermn in March 2007
and accreditation was obtained in Apnl 2007
The accreditation 1s renewed each year after
an audit, most recently in March 2011

Environment

FPM and FYM are currently In compliance
with all apphcable standards under
environmental faws n Ukraine, which set
requirements for the protection of the natural
environment, the use of natural resources,
emissions into the atmosphere and water and
waste disposal FPM halds a number of
environmental icences and permits, including
permits for atmosphenc emission control,
solid waste disposal, talings disposal, mine
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waste disposal and industral use of fresh
water In 2006, the Environmental Department
started to develop a {ull Environmental
Management System (EMS’) in accordance
with ISC 14001 The EMS was externally
audited by the Ukrainian UkrSEPRO authority
and gven a certificate of conformity with IS0
14001 in the second quarter of 2007 The
system was last audited in May 2011, and the
accreditation was confirmed by external
auditors At FYM, which s at an earlier stage
of development, preparations have been
mada for ISO 14001 certification whichis
expectad to be achieved in 2012

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholders

Stakenolders are those groups or incividuals
who are significantly affected by Ferrexpo's
actmties or those whose actions may affect
the ability of the Group to implement its
strategies and objectives

The stakeholder groups that the Group
engages with are described below

Shareholders and the Investment
Community

Directors and senior executives have frequent
discussions with institutonal nvestors and
major shareholders on a range of Issues
ncluding performance, strategy and
govemance The Head of Investor Relations
manages programmes and communications,
particularly at the time of the full and half-year
results announcements when presentations
are givan to analysts, brokers and major
shareholders The Annual General Meeting 1s
an important avent in the calendar, gving all
shareholders the opportunity to engage
directty wath Directors and management

Customers and Suppliers

Ferrexpo has had successful business
relationships wath several of its customers for
over 20 years Marketing plays an important
role in developing new relatonships in order
to diversify the customer base in anticipation
of the ptanned increase in production

Employees

Successful communication with employees
15 crucial In helping Ferrexpo to achieve its
ohjectives Communicabion starts ata
personal level when employees begin ther
employment through an induction
programme, and continues throughout ther
tirne with Ferrexpo It takes a vansty of forms
according to the arcumstances — from
face-te-face discussion to formal group
traning programmes, from job-specific
traning to programmes for ensunng
cornphance with legal or regulatory

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2011 AND CHALLENGES FOR 2012

Highlights

Safety

s Amarked decline in the accident rate, and no work-related fatalities dunng
2011 This reflects constant efforts to increase safety standards and reduce
INJUNES

= No incidents requinng evacuation of staff or members of the local community

Environment

= Emissions levels (NO,, CO, SO, dust) fell n both absolute terms and per
tonne of pellets produced

w Further regulatory permits were obtained, alowing Ferrexpo to proceed
with planned mine developments

Community Intiatives (see also panel on page 47)

= Major overhaul of a retrement home in Dmytrivika village including insulation,
windows and heating system

» Renovation of the secondary schools in Pryshyb & Dmytrivika villages

s Prospecting for water reserves, and construction of water pipeline to
Pryshyb vilage

= Prowision of sports facilibes in Komsomolsk

Community Resettlerent
= Successful resettlement of 10 homesteads at Voloshyno village away from
the area in which the new Yenstovo Concentrator 1s planned to be built

Medical Sponsorship

= Sponsorship of state-of-the-art X-ray diagnostic equipment for three operating
theatres, and a fluorograph apparatus with digital data processing, for the
Kremenchug Distnct Hospital So far this equipment has been used for
examinations of more than 1,000 patients Ferrexpo also sponsored the
repar of the surgery department at the same hospitat

Challenges

Environment

= Mantain the trend towards lower emissions while continuing to develop
the site and increase production

Skills Availability
» |n order to secure alarge pool of labour, FYM runs a job placement
programme for local residents (see “Case Study’ panel on page 47)




raquirements (such as that undertaken in
2011 inimplementing anti-bnbery procedures
across the Group) Communication 1s of
coursa two-way, and employees arg
encouraged to give feedback ether through
their managers or occasional employee
surveys (for example, a recent survey on
employee percaptions of safety, conducted
with DuPont)

Local Communities

Ferrexpo has a positive impact on iocal
communities through being a major employer
As a mining company, it also recognises the
sensitvities that surround the occasional
necessary displacement of small
communities Ry its operations, and those
operations’ impact on the physical landscape
It works hard to mantan dialogue with local
communities, and has a dedicated
department through which communications
are channelled

Local Traiming Institutions

Ferrexpo works towards establishing a closer
relationship with the local training institutions,
with a view to developing accelerated traring
programmes that wnprove the flow and qualty
of new recruts to its operations

Government (National and Local)
Engagement with local and natonal
govemment Is open and proactive
Communication often revolves around project
rnplementation and land acquisition, as well
as routine submission of Information as
required by the authonties Recent activities
nciuded sponsored development of future
town planning in the Kremenchuk distnct

Risks and Opportunities

The main CSR-related business nsks are

& Mining nsks and hazards

8 Licences

s Governmental approvals for expansion-
related projects

u Relocation of communities

Mining Risks and Hazards

The Group's mining operations are subject
1o nsks and hazards ncluding industral
accidents, equipment failure, unusual

or unexpected geological conditions,
environmental hazards, extreme weather
conditions {especially in winter) and other
natural phenomena Many of these nsks
are outside management's control

Mitgation The Group 1s dedicated to a
zero-harm objective, and the mitigation

How Ferrexpo Engages with its Stakeholders

SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTMENTS COMMUNITY

= Annual Report and Accounts

= Website

= Analyst and investor meetings and
conferences

» Annual General Meeting

» Whtten communication and email

= Prasentations

= Site visits

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

= Whtten communication and email
= Face to face

= Annual Report and Accounts

= Networking at conferences

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

= Sponsorship {finance and know-how)
» Funding of community projects

» Local TV

® Local press articles and interviews

» Site visits
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of rmining nsk 1s one of its pnmary operational
goals All safety intiatives and processes are
regularly revewed by management and
adiusted to changing circumstances, with
the support of third-partv serace providers
(ie DuPort) Appropnate safety trainng and
re-traning s gwven to all relevant employees,
and ther remuneration 1s partly inked to
safety performance The modernisation

of plant and equipment has also allowed
safer working practices and improved
environmental performance Acaidents are
fully nvesbgated and remedies proposed and
imptementsd However, given the nature of
mining operations there can be no guarantee
that accidents and fataiities waill not occur

There were no fatalites n 2011, and the
acadent rate has fallen duning the year

Throughout the Group's 40-year history
of operation it has not expenenced any

significant shutdowns

Licences

All icences for FPM’s operations have been
renewed upon expiry The nsk of icences
being revoked s low, but reguires timely and
close monitonng in order to prepare for all
externally controlled situations

EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNIONS

» Face to face regular meetings with
employees and unions

= Information boards arcund the site

» Traning

® Whtten communication and emait

® Surveys

= Specwd programmes (e g anti-bribery
procedure trarng)

GOVERNMENT (NATIONAL
AND LOGAL}

» Whitten communication and email
» Face to face

» Site visits

s Audits and inspections

= Annual Report and Accounts
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Mrigation The Group continues to monitor
and revew its commitrmants under its vanous
Iicences in order to ensure that the conditions
contained within the icences are fulfiled or
the approprate wavers obtained Thera i
careful assessment of the situation regarding
transfers of lcences

Government Approvals of Expansion
The process of obtaining governmental
approvals Is time-consuming  The Yenstovo
mine 1s being developed according to plan,
which should mean that there will be no
problem with the extension of the current
mining icence The Group does not yet hold
all governmental approvals required to
conduct all of its future expansion projects
that are under study, although none of the
approvals applied for to date has been
refused by the authontiss The nsk s kept
under careful review

Mitigation The Graup continues to mantan
an open and proactive relatenship with
various governmental authonties and 1s aware
of the mportance of compliance with local
legislation and standards The Group
maintains stnct compliance with the National
Rescurces Code of Ukrane and execution of
work In accordance with the project design,
through the active engagement of Ukrainian
and intemational legal advisers

Relocation of Communities {this1s a
subsidiary nsk, and for that reason 1s not
included in the Principal Risks on pages
3410 37)

Certan small rural settlements will have to be
relocatad n order to allow us te proceed with
somge of our miNe expansion projects
Potential solutions have been explored, and
progress has been made dunng the recent
months

Mitigation The reselution of the 1ssus 1s
supported by strong actvity at the local level
Including continual meetings and dialogue
with community representatives, pointing out
to them the benefits of relocation n terms of
improved accommodation and utiiies and
better access ta transport infrastructure and
social services Communities are paid a far
pnce for ther land and compensation for
disruphion As it is included in the approved
funding of the Capital Prgject, the topic 1s
under constant review, including weekly
meetings at sit, and when necessary at
rmonthly Executive Commitiee meetings
{See also 'Community Resetement’

under ‘Highlights' above}

Ferrexpo’s Approach

Health and Safsty

Policy

s The prevention of injunes to employees
1S the highest pronty of the Board and
management Pclicies and practices at
all levels reflact this

1 Within the operating assets, accountability
for health and safety performance hes with
senior line management

u Al operating assets are requrred to
develop and imptement health and safety
management systams in Ina with Group
policy, including performance
management

® Performance metncs will reflect the
Group's commitment to stnve to achieve
the highest standards of health and safsty
performance

a  Senor ine management 1S responsible
for ensunng that adequate resources are
committed 1o health and safety They have
an obligation to secure therr resources
through the Group’s planning and
budgeting processes

8 Adequate health and safety traming will
be given to all employees and contractors

»  Specific focus needs to be apphed to
behavioural safety at all levels, to fatal
nsk prevention and to the major industnal
health hazards assoctated with our
opearabons

= Employees are personally responsible
for theirr own safaty and that of therr
colleagues

Goals

Ferrexpa's goal ts to develop a culture in
which safe production 1s recognised as
cost-effective, and which leads to improved
workplace condittons and behawviour The
objective {onginally set in 2009) of achieving
the best mining safety record in Ukraine 1s
supported by targets including a reduction
of 20% in the lost-tme injury frequency rate
For 2011 management set itself the task

of further reinforcing the safety culture at
Ferrexpo, through an increase in safety
spendng as a proportion of sales revenue,
through the development of the safaty training
programme, and through a contnuing ink
between safety performance and staff
remuneration (safety KPIs now apply to all
staff down to middle management level)

Performance

Monitonng the effectiveness of health and
safety policies includes the review of health
and safety performance, as measured by key
KPls as shown below

201 2010 2009

Lost Time Injury

Frequency Rate

LTIFR - gee note) 077 146 111
Fatal accidents (V] 1 0
Total accidents 1 20 15
Lost days 468 916 530
MNotas

LTIFR - Numbex of work ralated lost ime inunas per mion
man hours

The prevention of injuries to employees

15 the highest pnonty of the Board and
management, who foliow the pnnciple that
all acaidents are avoidable There were no
work-related fatalites within the Group during
2011, and the accident rate in Ferrexpo's
operations has fallen

In Ine wath policy, all accidents are
investigated to determine the cause

and identify appropriate remadial action

This analysis, which also covers minor
accidents not iInvohing time spent off work
(‘rrucrotraumas’y 1s camed oul according to a
methodology agreed with DuPent Fatalites
and other senous accidents are additicnally
investigated by the State authonty The Board,
the CSR Committee and the Executive
Committee require senior management to
prowde full reports on the causes of fatal ang
senous accidents, details of corrective actions
to prevent these types of accident from
recurnng, and plans for enhancing overall
safety management based on the lessons
leamit Senior managers are expected to
present these reports, In person, at the first
Executive Committee meeting after the
accident concerned

In accordance with Ukraimnan compulsory
social nsurance laws, compensation
equivalent to ugp to five tmes annual satary

1S payable to the victms of accidents (or

thetr farmulies in the case of fatalities) Workers
coninbute to a statutory insurance fund whch
1S responsible for paying the compensation
FPM 1s aware that it has a moral as well as

a legal responsibility towards the familes of
employees affected by accidents at work
and will also make additional voluntary
payments to the family of employees on

a case-by-case basis to ensure that they

do not suffer hardship




Orgamsational Responsibiiity

In accordance with the legal requirements
of the unsdictions within which Ferrexpo
operates, it has developed health and safety
pelicies appropnate to its operations and
types of activity Compliance with these
paolicies 1s montored via a three-tiered
system daily control 1s conducted by
operating personnei, engineers and
technicians, production managers carry

out weekly Inspections, senior management
conducts penodic inspections (N conunction
with government parsonnel

There 15 a centralised Directorate for Industnal
Labeur Safety and Environmental Protection
taking the place of the previous more
localised structure, in this Cirectorate the
remuneration of safety engineers 1s no longer
directly inked to operational output (thersby
contrnibuting to the mantenance of health and
safety standards) Procedural manuals on
labour safety and envircnmental protection
at the operational level continue to be
developed

Training

Staff are trained In Health and Safety
matters as part of therr general technical
traring In 2011 safety traning at the FPM
Traning Centre was provided to 4,717
employees at all levels of the Group (see
‘Traning and Development’ under
‘Employees’ below)

Employees

Policy

Ferrexpo's employment principles include
policies and practices on company
standards, secunty, recrugment,
remuneration, equal opportunities and
traming and development These are backed
up by subsidiary company employment
manuals to cover local legal and regulatory
requirements

Goals

Femrexpo 15 aware of the Increasing demand
for staff with mining expertise in the CIS
countres and elsewhere, and 1s constantly
looking for ways to motivate and retain its
employees by involving an increasing numbar
of staft in its employee development
programmes and by providing competitive
compensation packages

Ferrexpo also ams to combine employees’
local knowledge with modern technology so
as to enhance the capacity and utiisation of
its physical plant and equipment

Ferrexpo also intends to implement more
up-to-date HR systems

Performance

In 2011 56 staif were able to join the
employes housing programme, which
enables selected employees o take out loans
for the purchase of accommaodation in
Komsomolsk, at a highly subsidised rate of
interest and without the normal requirement In
Ukraing of a substantial down payment This
plays an important part In Ferrexpo's strategy
for retaning key employees

Further informaticn on employee numbers 1s
set out in note 35 to the accounts

Orgamnisational Responsibifity — Trade
Umons and Industrial Relations

The Group does not have indmdual contracts
with its employees in Ukraine cther than with
its senior managers Every year a Collectve
Labour Agreement 1s signed which states,
inter alia, that indmdual salanes will be
Increased at least in ine with inflation
Management believes, having conducted
market research, that wages paid by the
Group are higher than average wages In
Ukraine There has been no major industnal
achon or labour dispute at Pottava since its
privatisation in 1995
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Traiwng and Development

The Group 15 committed to developing its
employees The Group provides techrical
fraining for all employess consistent with therr
dutes and responsibiities in particular,
investment has been made in faciites for
hezlth and safety training Training takes the
form of basic and speciahsed tranng,
retraining and refresher traning courses, both
internal and external In 2011, 152 employees
and 3 high school graduates were sponsored
by Ferrexpo at institutes of higher education
Total educational spending for employees n
higher educational establishments was
UAHB75 thousand (US$85 thousand) In 2011
a total of 6,611 employees recenved vanous
forms of n-house and external traning, at a
cost of UAH4 5m (US$565 thousand)

Environment

Policy

s (Operating practices and growth plans will
be implemented N a manner consistent
with the pnnoiples undertying long-term
sustanable resource development,
Ferrexpo wilt always bear in mind the
long-term envircnmantal consequences
of its actions

» Al gperating assets are required to
develop and implement environmental
management systems, in ine with
Group policy

m Al new capital projects will include
envircnmental nsk assessments
faccording to IFC Environmental and
Social Performance Standards) and
mithigation plans

Goals

»  Maximise recovery of iron from ore, talngs,
and concentrate so as to ensure the best
use of Fermexpo's natural resource

®»  Minimise use of production consumables
such as water, slectncity, natural gas,
diesel fuel, and explosives in order to
reduce demand for externally-sourced
natural resources

®  Use timely nvestment to sustain existing
operations, and develop new projects so
as to allow mineral resource to be
converted INto new Iron ore reserves

= Utilise stnpping matenals (fopsoil, sand,
clay, rock) to support the creation of new
plant and transport infrastructure

= Eliminate workplace waste through
improved management systems, and
utilse plant faciities to re-use scrap
matenals
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8 Monitor processes and employes
behaviour In order to minmise waste and
by-product contaminants and improve
the condition of plant and equipment

= Monitor dust and gas emissions and
wasta effuents in order to keep them
below the permitted imits and reduce
them further wherever possible

» Work with engineers and National Design
Institutes to ensure that modermsation and
production growth plans include designs
and documentation that reduce therr
overall mpact on the emaronmant

= Monitor new technologies that could assist
In the re-processing of iron ore talings

Performance

Monitonng the effeciveness of environmental
polcy ncludes the review of key KPIs for
emissions which are shown below
Emuissions in Tonnes

2009 2010 2

Total gas emissions 6,167 6,294 5,803
Of which

Nitrogen dioxide 2876 2922 2475
Carbon monioxde 2,306 2,336 2345
Suiphur dioxade 8386 937 887
Total solid emissions 3,212 3,575 3,968

Total ermissions 9379 9882 9,77

In 2011, FPM spent UAH76m (US$9 5m)
(2010 UAH48m (US$5 8mij) on the
simplementation of environmental protection
meaasures, this Increase was due manly to
work on the talings slurry storage area
Additicnally, UAHBSm (US$8 7rm) (2010
UAHB3m {US$7 9m}) was spent on
environmental monitoring and maintenance
actvties Charges payabile under emissions
regulations Increased from UAH23m

(USS$2 9m) In 2010 to UAH32m (US$4 Om) in
2011, largely because of an ncrease in tanffs
rather than in emissions

0Ongoing environmental management
actmties in 2011 included the bulding of
reservors for water conservation (using
mining overburden to buld dams), further
developmant of the closed water cycle for
production actvities, and fandscaping work

Qrgamisational responsibiiity

Ferrexpo has a dedicated Environmental
Department the pnmary responsibility for
which IS to ensure that all necessary permits
are in place, to undertake monitonng in
accordance with the prevaling regulatory
requirements and to supervise the
Implementation of an agreed programme

of environmental improvements based on
the Department’s own assessments

Communities

Pohicy

s Ferrexpo’s presence shoutd benefit those
communites around its operations,
operaticns wil beneft f local communities
are thriving

= Ferrexpo strives to be recognised as an
attractve local employer and a concerned
corporate cizen

a  Ferrexpo will assist in the development of
tha micro-economic enviranment within
the communities in which It operates, so
as to ensure that ther dependence on us
for their ivelihood is reduced

= Farrexpo ams to have a positive
relationship with and enhance the
communities around e, to hold an open
dizlogue with those communities, and to
ensure that its nvolvement wath them s
cost effectve and relevant to therr needs

Community Context

The Poltava region, in which Ferrexpo's
mining operations are Situated, 1s an area of
predominantly flat agncultural land close to
the River Crieper, one of the largest European
nver systems and an importart transport
artary for Ukrane, Belarus and Russia Iron
ore mining in the area dates from the 19th
century, aithough the major expansion of
mining actmty occurred in the sarly 20th
century The town of Kormsomolsk was
established adjacent to the mine to support
the mining operaticn and ancillary industnes
{transport, power etc) Ferrexpo (s still by far
tha largest employer in the town, which has
a populaton of around 55,000 peocple, with
approximately 47% of the working populaton
of Komsomolsk being employed by the mine
In one capacity or another

Goals

= Maks operational leadership accessible
to the vanous local ciizen groups and
organisations, so as to allow Ferrexpo to
assess and prnontise ther concerns about
its vanous initiatves

®  Provide expertise and voluntary services
n order to sustain and/or mprove
cormmunity Infrastructure, supphying
financial assistance where appropnate

& Participate in the development of modem
cultural and social programmes and
actmties in the local area {Ferrexpo's
employees and their famikes form the
majonty of the local population)

s Work consistentty with local town and
vilage councils in order to understand thew
expectations of Ferrexpo, 56 that Ferrexpo
can within reason provids value added
solutions or alternatives

»  Give preference to suitably-qualfied local
rasidents when hiring to fil vacancies




CASE STUDY

Community
Initiatives
achieved

in 2011

During 2011, FPM and FYM continued to

pursug the policy of fostenng relationships

with the communities around the pernmeter

of the site At the village of Pryshyb this

ncluded

8 Modernising the water supply, and

® Repar and modernisation work at the
village school and kindergarten

Work In Kemsomolsk, the town where
FPM and FYM are based and where much
of the workforce lives, has concentrated
on intatrves designed to increase its
attractions as a place in which to live, and
thus create favourable conditions for the
development of the pool of labour on
which Ferrexpo reles

W Renovations and repairs to schools
and sports facilities, and hostel
accormmodation for families,

u Job placernents with FPM under the
‘My First Job' schema for 118
graduates of the local technical
schools, and

B Purchase of advanced equipment for
local hospitals

Parformance

Community Inittatives

FPM

FPM has been a significant iInvestor in local
community iniatives from the outset,
Investing substantial funds in the social
infrastructure of Komsomolsk and the
surrounding area These funds have been
spent on chanties, medical faciives, social
sarvices, education, religion, culture and
sporting actvities, as well as on the
maintenance of certain of the city’s social
and cultural structures

Links with the local community are
strengthened by meetings of senior
management with heads of schools and
colleges, supperting local celebration days,
gving vocational guidance and vacaton work
to the students of local schools (including
prowding financial sponsorship to indmduat
students whom FPM may subsequently
employ) and organising student excursions
to FPM and its museum

Histoncally, FPM has employed a significant
number of pecple In providing support
services to the Group's mining actvities In
many cases, these services could be made
avallable on a cormmercial basis to other
entarprises within the kocal community which
in turn Improves the viability and sustanabiity
of the local economy To encourage this
process, FPM has offered financial and other
support to employees who provide these
In-house services so as to encourage them
to transform internal departments into
stand-alons businesses

FymM

FYM strves to contribute to all spheres of the
Iife of the local community, believing that a
healthy and flounshing community is of crucral
importance for sustanable growth inits
operations As a rapidly expanding company,
FYM has been able to provide significant
employment opportunities for iocal people
and ams to have good relationships wath the
communities near its operations
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Helogistics

The Group acquired the nver transport
company Helogistics Holding GmbH

{ Helogistics') at the end of 2010 Because
of the different naturs of its actvities its CSR
is reported on separately from that of the
Group's mining operations Ferrexpo's
strategy s to integrate Helogistics fully

into Ferrexpo’s CSR culture

{a) Health and Safety

The accident rate at Helogishics dunng 2011
was 13 lost-ime accidents, equating to a
LTFIR of 1214 accidents per milhon man
hours and a total of 468 lost days, with no
work-related fatalites Accidents were manly
due to njunes caused by shipping and faling
on wet or iy decks or by handing equipment
dunng frequent moonng operations
Accidents are reported to and discussed

at monthly meetings with the seruor
management of the Group, and steps are
under way to improve the safety culture

(b} Employees

Helogistics prowides training for staff so that
they can develop the knowledge, skils and
values necessary for the performance of ther
roles

{c) Environmental

Helogistics complies with the applicable
environmental regulations of the countries
along the Danube n which it operates (for
example, regarding the prevention of fuel
leakagas and the grounding of barges)

{d) Community

As a transport company operating over a
wide area rather than concentrated n one
place, Helogistics does not at prasant
consider it appropnate to incur significant
expenditure on community intiatives
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Board of Directors

1. Michael Abrahams, CBE DL (74)
Non-executive Chairman

Michagl Abrahams joined the Board on 14
June 2007 He s chaman of the London Clinc
and the Prudential Staff Pension Scheme Ha
was deputy charman of Prudential plc until
May 2000, and has served as chairman and
as a director of a number of quoted and
unquoted companies

2 Kostyantin Zhevago (38)

Chief Executive Officer

Kostyantin Zhevago joned the Board as a
Nor-executive Director on 14 Juna 2007 and
was appointed Chief Executive on 1 November
2008 He s ultmately the controling
shareholder of Ferrexpo He hasbeena
member of the Ukraimian Parliament since
1998 He s currently a member of the
Parbtamentary Committee on Law Policy and
Chairman of the Parlamentary Group for
Inter-Parlamentary Relations with Japan Since
2002, he has been a member of the
permanent delegation of the Ukrainian
Parliarment in the Parlamentary Assembily of
tha European Council and a member of the
Ukranian faction of the Commitee for
Parlamentary Cooperaton between Ukraine
and the European Urion He has previously
served as chamman of the management board
and deputy charman of the supervisory board
of CJSC Commercial Bank Finance and Crecit
(‘Bank F&C') and as a member of the
supervisory board of JSC Ukmafta Between
1993 and 1996, he was financial drector of
F&C Group of companies He s a non-
executve director of New World Resources
pic, a subsiciary of BXR Group Limited He
graduated from the Kyw State Economic
Unwersity in 1996, specialising In interational
SCONOMICS

3. Chnstopher Mawe, FCA (50)

Chief Financial Officer

Chns Mawe joined the Board on 7 January
2008 He qualified as a Chartered Accountant
with Coopers and Lybrand in 1991, having
gained a First Class Honours degree n
Engineenng Me has held senior financial
positions for the past 16 years, first with IMI
plc n both the UK and Europe, and then with
Carclo plc as finance director Most recentty
he was finance director of UK Coal pic

4 Oliver Baring (67)

Sanior independent

Non-executive Director

Clver Banng joned the Board on 1 Decernber
2007 He has been charman of Mwana Afnca
ple since its reverse takeover of Afncan Gold
plc in September 2005 He retired from UBS
Warburg in 2001, having led the Intemational
Mining Group with responsibility for Afnca and
Europe Previously he hac been head of the
UBS Warburg mining equity sales team and
was responsible for its respected coverage
and sales capability He was a partner in Rowe
and Pitrman before its merger with SG
Warburg He 1s non-executive chairman of First
Afnca Holdngs Limited, and 1s a non-executive
director of BlackRock Word Mining Trust pic,
and a member of the Adwsory Council of
Sentient Resources Fund

5 Raffaele {Lucio) Genovese (50)
Independent Non-executive Director
Lucio Genovese joined the Board on 14 June
2007 He s the chief executve officer of Nage
Capital Management, a Swiss-based adwisory
and propnetary compary specialising in the
medals and mining sector He s the non-
exscutive Charman of Firestone Diamonds
pic and serves on a number of other boards
of drectors He has previcusly served as
investment officer and a member of the board

of Ty Investment Limited with respensibility

for its Inchian public and prvats investment
portfoho Pror to that, he held a number of
positions with Glencors International, Including
senicr member of the Copper Dmsion, CEO of
CIS Operations, manager of the Moscow office
and trader in the Ferrous Dmsion He s a
Chartered Accountant (South Afnca)

6 Wolfram Kuomni (45)

Independent Non-executive Director
Woliram Kuoni joined the Board on 14 June
2007 He s the founder and senior partner of
Kuori Attomeys-at-Law, Zunch, Switzerland,
and serves on a number of boards of directors
He has over 12 years of expenence In
irvestment banking Prior 1o 2005, he held a
number of pesitions within UBS Investrment
Banking (Zunch and New Yori), including head
of the Eumpean Export and Project Fnance
Team Healso onginated and structured
cross-border acquisitions and equity capital
markets fransactions He graduatad with a law
degree from the Unuversity of Berne, and hoids
a doctorate in law from the Uneversity of Zunch
and an MBA from INSEAD in France Meisa
member of the Zunch Bar

7. lhor Mitiukov (59)

Independent Non-executive Director
Ihor Mrtiukov joined the Board on 14 June 2007
He 1s the managing drector and head of
country for Ukraine, Morgan Stanley He was
the general director of the Financial Policy
institute untl March 2008 From 2002 to 2005
he served as Extracrdinary and Plenipotentiary
Ambassador of Ukraine in the United Kingdom
Ha also represented Ukraine in the Intemational
Mantme Organisation From 1997 to 2001 he
served as Minister of Finance of Ukraine and,
from 1995 to 1997, as Ukraine's Speacal
Representative to the European Union in
Brussels In 1994, he was deputy governor of




the National Bank of Ukraine and then
Vice-Pnme Minister of Ukrane for Banking and
Finance Pror to that, he held vanous positions
at Agranan-industnal Bank Ukraine, and was
apponted as its deputy governor in 1992 He
graduated from the Cybemetics Department,
Kyw State University and has a PhD in
Econormics {1985} from the Instriuts of Economy,
Acadermy of Sciences (Ukrane}

8 Miklos Salamon (57)

Non-executive Diractor

Mike Salamon joned the Board on 27 March
2009 He s executive chaiman of New World
Resources pic, a subsidiary of BXR Group
Limited He s also a non-executive member

of the board of drectors of the New Word
Resources subsidiary OKD, and a non-
execubve director of Central Rand Gold, Gern
Dramonds and Minera las Cenizas With a
caregr spanning more than 30 years, recently
with BHP Billiton, he has extensve knowledge
of the ntematicnal minng and extractve
industries Batweert 2003 and 2006, he served
as an executve director of BHP Billiton with
responsihiiies for the alurnirum, copper and
nicke! businesses From 2001 to 2006, he also
chaired BHP Biliton's Operatng Committee,
which was accountable for inter ala the BHP
Billiton group's health, safety and ervironment,
projects, purchasing and operating excelence
In 2001 he oversaw the merger ntegration of
Buliiton plc and BHP Lmited Hewas a
co-founding director of Blliton plc in 1997,

and oversaw the company’s isting on the
London Stock Exchange n 1997 Before 1997
he held a number of positions, first at Anglo
Amencan and later in the coal dvsions of Shel
and Gencor Ltd He graduated in 1975 from The
Urwersity of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg
with a degres iIn Mining Engineenng {Cum
Laude} and obtained an MBA from the London
Business Schodl, Unnersity of London in 1981
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Executive Committee

1. Kostyantin Zhevago
Chief Executive Officer
{See profile under Board of Directors)

2 Chnstopher Mawe, FCA
Chief Financial Otficer
(See profile under Beard of Directors}

3 Nikolay Goroshko (52)

Chief Financial Officer, FYM

Nikolay Goroshko joined Ferrexpo in 1984
Ha was Acting Group Chief Financial Officer
i1 Apni 2007 and Chief Commercial Officer
in charge of the Group's Growth Projects in
December 2007 pnor to his current role He
15 & graduate of the Ky Instiute of National
Economics, specialsing in Industnal Planning

4 Jason Keys (40)

Chief Marketing Officer

Jason Kays joined Ferrexpo in July 2011 He
held sales and marketing posts at Rio Tinto
Coal and Iron Ore and at BHP Billiton Coal for
12 years, and then led BHP Billton’s Iron Ore
commercial marketng team for five years
before joning Ferrexpo He holds a Bachelor
of Commerce degree from the Unversity of
Western Australia and 1s a Certfied
Professional Accountant

5 Nikolay Kladiev (39)

Chief Financial Officer, FPM

Nikolay Kladiev joined FPM in June 2005
Qver the course of his career Nikolay Kladiev
spent several years as an audt manager with
Ernst & Young and CFO of alarge Russian
factory He holds a Masters in International
Economic Relatons from the Ky National
Unversity of Economics

& Viktor Lotous (47)

Chief Operating Officer, FPM

Vikior Lotous joined FPM in 1986 He became
chief engineer in 1897, and General Director
and Cheef Operating Officer In April 2007 He
1S & graduate of Ky Rih Mining and Ore
Institute, and of the Kyiv State Economic
University, specialising in Finance

7 Brran Maynard (52)

Group Chief Operating Officer

Bnan Maynard joined the Group In January
2011 He spent 30 years with Vale Inco & Vale
Austraha in ther nickel and coal operations
respectively, working in technical, operations
management, and executive roles In 2007

he was appointed Vice President, Mining

In the Vale Inco Ontano, Canada operations
He moved to the President’s role in the
Manitoba, Canada operations in 2008 and
was accountable for the fully integrated
mining, miling, smelting and refireng complex
Most recently he was the Global Coal Director
- Technical & Administrative Support
(ncluding finance, sustanabiiity, logistics,
technical seraices) In the Bnsbhane head office
of the Vale Austraka operations He graduated
in 1981 from the University of Manitoba,
Canada with a BSc in Geological Engineenng
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

The Ferrexpo Board remains committed to good corporate
governance prachices, In its management of the affairs of the Group
and in its accountability to shareholders, and keeps under review
the Group's own policies and procedures i these areas As detaled
1n this report, tha Directors’ Report and the reports of the Audit,
Nominatons and Remuneration Commuttees, the Group has
implemented an effective corparate governance framework ancl

has established Board committees, intemal procedures and Group
policies which are considered vital for the proper management

of the Group and good governance of Ferrexpo as an international
business The Board and managemenit of the Group have a policy of
conducting all business affars in a far ang transparent manner and in
maintaining high ethical standards in dealings with all relevant parties
As an Enghsh incorporated company with a pnmary listing on the
L.ondon Stock Exchange, the Company is in respect of the 2011
financial year subject for the first tme to the 2010 UK Corporate
Govarnance Code (the '2010 Code’} The 2010 Code 1s avalable
from the Financial Reporting Counci's website, www fre org uk

Information pursuant to the EU Takeover Directive

The Company has provided the additronal information required by

the Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7 2 7 of the UK Listing Authority
{Directors’ interests 10 shares, appontment and replacement of
Directors, powers of the Directors, restrictions on voting nghts and
rights regarding control of the company) in the Directors’ Report

and the Remuneration Report

Statement of compliance

(in accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 6R)

During the year to 3t December 2011 the Company complied with
all relevant provisions of the 2010 Code

The 2010 Code establishes principles of good govemance in five
areas Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration, and
Relations with Shareholders This report explains how these pnnciples
were apphied, with the exception of those relating to Directors’
rermuneration which are included in the Remuneration Report on
pages 56 to 62

The Group's auditor has reviewed those parts of this staterment which
it 1s required to review under the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authonty

Leadership and effectivenass

The Board

The Board 1s composed of a Non-executive Chairman Michael
Abrahams, two Executive Directors Kostyanuin Zhevago, CEQ
and Chnstopher Mawe, Chief Financial Officer (‘CFQ'), and five
Non-executive Directors Otiver Banng 1s the Senior Independent
Director The other Non-executive Directors are Lucio Genovese,
Wolfram Kuont, thor Mitiukov and Mike Salamoen

Biographical details of the Directors at the dats of this report ars set
out on pages 4B and 48, and detalls of ther membership of Beard
committees are set out on pages 52 and 53 A summary of the roles
of the Chairman, the CEO and the Senior Independent Director i1s set
out befow

The structure and business of the Board are designed to ensure that
the Board focuses Its attention on strategy, management, govemance
and control issues The Board has a formal schedule of matters which
sets out those matters requinng Beard approval and specifically
reserved to It for decision {such as approving the Group strategy and
budget, annual and long-term capial expenditure plans, and
contracts for more than a certan menetary amount) The Board 1s
responsible for setting the Group's objectivas and polcies, providing
effective leadership and control required for a public company and for
approving the Group strategy, budgets, business plans and major
capital expenditure It also monitors financial performance and cntical
business 1ssues Major project approvals, contract awards and key
polcies and procedures alse requirs the approval of the Board

Certain aspects of the Board's respensibiities have been delegated to
appropniats committees to ensure compliance with the Companies Act
2008, FSA Listing Rules and the 2010 Code It 1s the responsibility of the
CEO and the Executve Committee to manage the day-to-day running
of the Group The Board is supportad by the Executive Committas
which meets approximately monthly All of the information that 1s
submitted to the Board by management 1s reviewed and approved by
the Executive Committes

All Drrectors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who 1s responsible for ensunng that Board procedures are
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with
The Company Secretary 1s also responsible for adwsing the Board on
governance ISsues

Dwectors have the nght to request that any concerns they have are
recorded in the appropriate committee or Board minutes

The Beard met five trmes during the reporting perod Attendance by
Directors at Board meetings and Board committee meatings 1s shown
on page 52 All Board meetings are held in Switzerland

Chairman, CEQ and Sermor Independent Director

The roles of the Charman and CEQ are held by different ndividuals
The division of responsibilites between the Chairman and CEO has
been clearly established in wnting and agreed by the Board

The Charman Is responsible for leadershiup of the Board, ensunng
its effectivenass, seting its agenda and ensunng effective
communication with shareholders The Charman also ensures that
thers 15 a constructive refationship between the Executive and
Non-executive Directors From time to time the Chairrnan holds
meetings with the Non-executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present

The Chairman’s other current responsibilities are set out In the
biographical notes on pages 48 and 49 There has been no increase
in those commitments dunng the reporting penod

The rols of the CEO s fo provide leaderstip of the executive team,
to develop proposals for the Board to consider, and to oversee
and implement Board-approved actons Detalls of Mr Zhevago's
other appointments are set out in the btographical notes on
pages 48 and 49

The Senior Independent Cirector, Oliver Banng, n conjunction
with the other independent Non-executive Directors, assists in




communications with shareholders concerning corporate governance
matters f that 1s required He also chairs the Nominations Committee
and the Committee of Independent Directors At least once a year, the
Senior Indspendent Director meets the Non-executive Directors,
without the Chairman present, to evaluate the Chairman’s
performance

Board balance and independence

The Board considers that its membership of two Executive Directors,
a Non-executive Charmnan and five Non-executve Directors, four of
whom are deemed by the Board to be independent, 1s of an
appropnate size and structure to manage the Group inan effective
and successiul manner It also considers that no single Director can
dominate or unduly influence decision making The Relationship
Agreement with Kostyantin Zhevago specifically deals with decision
making More details are given below

The Board has carefully considerad the guidance cntena on
independence of Non-executive Directors under the 2010 Code In
the opimon of the Board, all the Non-executive Directors biing
independence of judgement and character to the Board and to the
Board commitiees on which they sit The Board considers that, with
the exception of Mike Salamon who represents a significant
shareholder, all of the Non-executive Directors as at the date of this
report are independent of the Group within the terms of prowision
811 of the 2010 Code

In 2009, as part of the annual process of performance evaluation (sea
below}, the Board revewed the amount of tme neaded by the
Non-executive Directors to perform their duties, and recognised that
Lucio Genovese and Wolfram Kuoni were required to devote maore
time to their duties as Non-executive Directors of Ferrexpo AG than
had been expected at the time of therr appointment The Board
therefore iIncraased ther remuneration with effect from 1 January
2009 (as set out in the Remuneration Report on page 60} In reaching
this decision the Board also concluded, in the ight of the superasory
and non-executive nature of their duties as directors of Ferrexpo AG,
that both Mr Genovese and Mr Kuoni remained ingependent in
character and judgement, as defined by prowvision B 11 of the 2010
Coda The Board believes this still to be the case

Mr Zhevago 1s a beneficiary of The Minco Trust which owns 100%

of Fevamotinico S ar |, the major shareholder in the Group
Consequently ha and Fevamotinico S ari have entered nto a
Relatonship Agreement with the Company to ensure that the Group s
capable of carnyng on its business independently, that transactons
and relationships between the Group, Fevamotinico S arl and

Mr Zhevago are at arm's length and en normal commercial terms, and
that there shall be at all trmes a majonty of Directors independent

of Fevamotimco Sar! and Mr Zhevago on the Board (the
‘Relationship Agreement’)

Conflicts of interast

A procedure 1s In place to deal with Directors’ conflicts of interest and
the recording, reporting and, where appropnate, approval of related
party transactions and review of relevant disclosures This procedure
IS In kne with published guidance, the Company’s Artictes of
Association and the provisions in saction 175 of the Companies Act
2006 on conflicts of nterest Schedules of a Director's actual or
potential conflicts and related party transactions have been compiled
based on disclosures made by the Diractor These are updated and
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raviewed on a regular basis by the Executive Committes, the
Executive Related Party Mattars Committee (ERPMC) (which 1s
composed of certan members of the Executive Commuttee and other
members of senior management} and the Committee of independant
Directors (‘'CID’) Any changes to the schedules are noted at the
baginning of the next Board meeting The CID has delegated authonty
to carefully consider and (if deemed appropriate in the circumstances)
approve conflicts of interest on behalf of the Board This procedure
operates effectvely, and the Group undertakes to follow emerging
bast practice in this area

The Board has established the CID to consider and, If appropriata,
approve related party transactions and conflicts of interasts to the
extent foreseen within Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules (whether in
relation to Mr Zhevago or any other Director), and to consider any
matters referred to it concerning the operation of the Relatonship
Agreement and ensure that decisions are taken objectively in the
Company's interest This Committee also oversees anti-bnbery
compliance matters on behalf of the Board

Appointments to the Board and re-election

Under its terms of reference the Nominations Committes 1s
responsible for leading the process for appontments to the Board
The process for election and re-slechon of Directors 1s set out In the
Directors’ Report on page 63

Information and professional development

Directors receive briefing notes and reports for thewr consideration in
advance of each Board meeting, ncluding reports on the Group's
operations o ensure that they are up to date on the latest
developments and are able to make fully informed decisions These
notes and reports take into account the factors set out In section 172
of the Companies Act 2006 {Oirectors’ duty to promote the success
of the Company), which are considered by the Executive Commuttee
when making any proposals and recommendations to the Board
Decisions made by the Board are set within the framework of the
Directors' statutory duty to promote the success of the Company for
the benefit of ts members as a whole

Professional development and traning are prowded n a number of
ways, Including updates given to the Board on changes and proposed
changes in laws and regulations affecting the Group Ste visits to
ensure Directors are familiar with the Group’s operations ara held at
least annually, and Directors may visit the operations of the Group
Independently to the extent that they feel this 1s necessary Dunng

the year, as in previous years, the Board spent two days visiting the
site n Ukraine
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Corporate Governance Report continued

All Directors may take independent professional advice at the expense
of the Group In the furtherance of therr dutes On appointment, all
Drrectors ara advised of ther duties, responsibiities and habilities as

a Director of a public Iisted company In addition an appropriate
Inducton programme 1$ provided to a Director on appontment

taking inte consideration tha individual qualifications and expenance
of the Director

Performance evaluation

A process of evaluatron of the Board and its Audit and Rermuneration
Committees has been conductad in 2011 By the Chairmen of these
bodies This 1s done by the Chawrman of the relevant body Interviewing
hus colleagues whilst referring to a questionnare covenng matters
Including the balance and diversity of the body's membership, the
body's and its ndmdual members’ effectiveness and performance (in
terms of contnbution to good governance), and the administration and
conduct of the body’s business, and then discussing his findings with
the body as a whale The conclusion of the evaluation process was
that the Board as a whole and its committees had functioned
effectively during the year, and no particular areas were (dentified as
needng improvernent The mixture of skills and expenence on the
Board and the committees was falt to be appropriate

The Board's intention 1s to hold an external assessmant once every
three years, in ing with the 2010 Coda

The Senior Independent Director and the other Non-executive
Directors have evaluated, and will continue to monitor, the
performance of the Chairman

Board committees

The Board has a number of committees consisting of certain
Birectors, and In the case of the Executive Commuitee and Corporata
Safety and Social Responsibility ({CSR’) Committee, certain semor
managers, to which specific respensibiites have been delegated and
for which wnitten terms of raference have been agreed The terms of
reference of the Audit, Rermunaration, Nomination and GSR
Committees are available for nspection on the Group's website at
www ferrexpo com Membership of the vanous committees, including
the Chairman of each committee, 1s shown below

The Board periodically reviews the membership of ts committees to
ensure that comrmittes membership is refreshed The Group provides
the committees with sufficient resources to undertake thewr duties,
including access to the Company Secretary

Tables of attendance of members of the Board and its pnncipal
committees at meetngs dunng the financial penod together with a
summary of the terms of reference are set out below

Board
Frve Board meetings were held during the year

Attendance
Boarnt members record
Michaal Abrahams Non-executive Chairman 5/5
Kostyantin Zhevago Chief Executive Officer 5/5
Chns Mawe Chief Finangial Officer 5/5
Olwer Barng Senwr Independent Non-executve Director 5/5
Lucio Genovese  Independant Non-executive Director 5/5
Wolfrarm Kuoni Independsnt Non-executive Diractor 5/5
lhor Mitukov Independant Non-executive Director 4/5
Mike Salamon Non-axecutve Director 5/5

Audit Committee
Four Audit Committee mestings were held dunng the year

Altendance
Commuttes members racord
Wolfram Kuoni Charman 4/4
Lucio Genovese 4/4
Ihor Mitiukov a/4

Under its terms of reference the Audit Committee 1s required to meet
at least threa times a year at the most appropnate tmes in the
reporting and audit process The Committes monitors the integnty of
the financial statements of the Group, including its annual and interm
reports, intenm management statements, preliminary results
announcements and any other formal announcement relating to 1ts
financial performance, reviewing the significant financial reporting
Issues and judgements that they contain The Audit Committee is also
responsible for revewing internal controls and nsk management
systems, whistle-blowing procedures and internal audit processes,
and oversees the relatonship with the external auditors

Remuneration Committee
Four Remuneration Committee meetings were held dunng the year

Attendance
Committas mambars racord
Lucio Genovese Chairman 4/4
Michael Abrahams 4/4
Ihor Mitiukov 3/4
Oliver Baring 4/4

The Remuneration Cornmittee mests at laast twice a vear, as required
by iis tarms of reference, and 1s responsible for reviewing and
approving alt aspects of remuneration for the Executive Directors and
members of the Executive Committee Further detals concerning the
Remuneration Commuttee are set out In the Remuneration Repart on
pages 56 to 62

Nominations Committee
One Nominations Committee meeting was held durnng the year

Altendance
Committee members racord
Oliver Banng Chairman 11
Michasl Abrahams 11
Wolfram Kuom 11
Ihor Mitiukow on
Kostyantin Zhevago 17!

Nominations Committee Report

The Neminations Committee meets at least once a year, as required
by its terms of reference The role of the Nominations Cormmittes 1s to
dentify and nominate, for the approval of the Board, candidates to fil
Board vacancies, having due regard to the need for appropnate
balance and dersity (including of gender) on the Board

No vacancies arose dunng 2011, however, when seeking to recruit
new Board members in future the Committee will have regard to the
recommendations of the Davies Report

Ferrexpo operates equal-opportunities policies with the aim of
encouraging the employment of women wherever this 1S reasonable




and acceptable, so that over trme women will increase as a proportion
of the work force and of the pool from which senior appointments are
made

Dunng the year the Committee and the Board also gave censideration
to succession planning at the Board and senior executive leveals,
including the CEC and the CFO

CSR Committee
One CSR Committee meeting was held dunng the year

Atlendance
Commiltes mampers record
Brian Maynard Chairman ifal
Michael Abrahams N
Viktor Lotous in
Kostyantin Zhevago M

The CSR Committee's role 1s to formulate and recommend to the
Board the Group's polcy on corporate safety and socal responsibility
1ssues as they affect the Group's operations 0 particular it focuses con
ensuring that effective systems and standards, procedures and
practces are in place in the Group The CSR Committes 1s
responsible in conjunchon with the Executive Committee for reviewing
management’s mnvestigatron of incidents or acaidents that occur in
orger to assess whether policy improvemenits ara required Further
detaills concerning the actmties of the CSR Committee

are set out in the Corporate Social Responsibility Review on

pages 40 to 47

CiD
Five CID meetings were held dunng the year

Attendance
Commitiea mambers recard
Olver Baring Charman 5/5
Michael Abrahams 5/5
Lucio Genovese 5/5
Wolfram Kuoni 5/5
Ihor Mitikov 415

The CID 1s composed of the Serror Independent Director (OQliver
Baring), the Chairman of the Board, and the three other Independent
Directors The Committee considers and, if appropriate, authonses
on behalf of the Board related party transactions within the terms of
Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
and otherwise ensures compliance with Chapter 11 and with the
Relatonship Agreement entered Info between Fevamotince Sarl,
Mr Zhevage, The Minco Trust and the Company The CID holds
delegated authonty to consider and, f appropriate, authonse conflicts
of interast of any member of the Board under the relevant section of
the Companies Act 2006 Dunng the year the Committea’s terms of
refererice were extended to cover the oversight of anti-bnbery
procedurs implementation

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee 15 a key decision making body of the

Group lts members are detated on page 48 Itis responsible for
managing and taking all matsenal decisions relating to the Group apart
from those that are reserved for the entire Board It meets regularty
dunng the year No meetings are held in the United Kingdom It 1s the
responsibility of the Executive Committee to ensure its duties are at all
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times sat in the context of the requirernents of the Schedule of Matters
Reserved for the Board The Board has delegated to the Executive
Committee responsibility for the execution of Board-approved
strateges for the Group, for ensunng that appropnate levels of
authorty are dalegated to senior management, for the review of
organisational structures and for the development and implementation
of Group policies

Accountability and audit

Financial Reporting

The Board 15 aware of its responsibity to present a balanced and
clear assessmant of the Group's financial position and prospects
This assessment is primarly provided in the Charman's and Chuef
Executive's Statement and the Financial Review contained in this
Annual Report Statements of the respective responsibiliies of the
Directors and auditors are set out on pages 67 and 68

Audit Committee Report

The 2010 Code recommends that all members of the Audit
Committee are ndependent Non-executive Directors and that at
least cne member should have recent and relevant financial
experence The Audit Commuttes complies with these requirernents,
and all membars of the Audit Committee are considered to possess
appropriate knowledge and skills Wolfram Kuoni, an independent
Non-executve Director, 1s Chawrman of the Audit Committee The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee and attendance by
members at ts meetings are outhned on page 52

Dunng the reporting penod the Audt Committes met four times,

and its activites included

o Raviewing with Ernst & Young LLP, the external auditors, the
annual and intenm financial statemants and associated documents
and the preliminary rasults staterent, ensunng that all matenal
information was properly and clearly disclosed

n  Reviewing with Ernst & Young LLP the scope of the audit work
propased for 2011 and audit fees

= Reviewing the nsk matnx at each meeting, and discussing with
the Head of Internal Audit the internal audit plan and the findings
of the internal audit reviews conducted dunng the year

= Revigwing the Group's internal controls and nsk management
systems

»  Reviewing the Group's whistle-blowing arrangements

= Reviewng the effsctiveness of the external auditors, ther
independence and the non-audit services they providad, and
considering whether to recommend ther reappointment

A statement on the Board's position regarding the Group as a going
concam 15 contaned in the Directors’ Report on pagse 66

Internal control 2nd nsk managament

The Board has overall responsihility for the Group's system of intemal
controi, which includes nsk management and reviewing Its
effectiveness The system of internat control 1s designed to identify,
evaluate and manage significant nsks associated with the
achievement of the Group's objectves Because of the imitations
inherent In any system of internal control, this systerm s designed to
meet the Group's particular needs and the nsks to which it 1s
exposed, rather than elminate nsk altogether Consequently it can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or loss
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board has delegatad its responsiibty for reviewing the
effectveness of these controls to the Audit Committee The Audit
Committee reviews these systemns on an annual basis The day-to-day
responsibilty for managing nsk and the maintenance of the Group's
system of internat control s colfectively assumed by the Executve
Committee Key nsk and control issues are rewewed regularty by the
Executive Commuttee

On behalf of the Board, the Executive Commuttee has established a
process for dentifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Group in accordance with the Tumbull Guidance This
process was followed throughout 2011 and up to the date of approval
of this Annual Report The Group has also adopted a nsk-based
approach in establishing the Greup's system of internal control and in
reviewing Its effectiveness To assist In managing key internal nsks, it
has astablished a number of Group-wide procedures, policiss and
standards and has set up a framewaork for reporting matters of
significance

Full detalls of the Group's policy on nsk and uncertanties are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements on pages 112 to 119 See also the
Risks section of the Financial Review on pages 34 to 37

The Board has, through the Executive Commuttee and the Audit
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's system of
intermal controls

As aresult of the continual review of internal control procedures
saveral key elements have been established within the Group to
ensure a seund system of intermal control which 1s descnbed in

detail below

These include

s Regular review of nsk and identification of key nsks at the Executive
Committes which are reviewed by the Audit Committes and by the
Board

» Clearly defined crganisational and reporting structurs and imits of
authonty for transaction and investment decisions, iIncluding any
with related parties, applied to subsidiary companies including
FPM and FYM, the key Ukrainian subsidianes, and the Helogistics
Group acquired at the end of 2010

= Clearly defined information and financial reporting systems,
inclucing regular forecasts and a ngorous annual budgsting
process with reporting against key financial and operational
milestones

»  Rigorous Investment appraisal underpinned by the budgstary
process, where capital expenditure imits are applied to delegated
authorty imits

= AnInvestment Committes (an executive sub-committae) meets
approximately twice a month to approve capital expenditures
within irmits delegated Dy the Executive Committee and the Board

a  The Financial Risk Management Committee (FRMC') {an executve
sub-committes) reviews financial information and management
accounts, and mests monthly

a Clearly defined treasury policy monitored and apglied in
accordance with pre-set Imits for investment and management
of the Group's hquid resources including a separate traasury
function

a |nternal audit by an in-house intermal auditor based in Ukraine
(see below) who monitors, tests and improves internal controls
operating within the Group at all levels and reports directly to
the CFO and the Audit Comuttee

A standard accounting manual s used by the finance teams
throughout the Group, which ensures that information is gathered
and presented In a consistent way that facilitates the production of
the consolidated financial staternents

a A framework of transaction and entity level controls to prevent and
detect matenal error and loss

= Fraud management through an independent department operating
in the Group's key cperating subsidiary FPM

= A whistie-blowing policy 1s in place under which staff may in
confidence, via an Independent, secure website, raise concerns
about financial or other impropriety

Treasury

Details of the Group treasury palicy are referred to In the Charrman's
and Chief Executive Officer's Statement on page 10, the Risks section
of the Financial Review section on pages 34 to 37 and In the notes to
the financial statements on pages 112 to 119

Investment proposals

A budgetary process and authonsation levels regulate capitat
expenditure For expenditure beyond specified levels, detallad wnitten
proposals are subrmitted to the Executive Committes and then if
necessary to the Board for approval

Internal audit

A Group-wide internal audit function has been established, and
operated dunng 2011 using an expenenced Internal auditor based n
Ukraine but independent of operational management, who reported
directly to the CFO and the Audit Committee This arrangement will
continue N 2012 with a new internal auditer In the process of being
appointed

An internal audit programme for 201012, approved by the Audit
Commuttee, focuses on the areas of nsk identified by the nsk reviews
carned out on an ongoing basis by the Executive Committee and the
Board

Auditor independence

The Audit Committee and Board place great emphasis on the
ndependence and objectmty of the Group’s external auditors, Emst &
Young LLP, when perfarming tharr role in the Group's reporting to
shareholders

The effectiveness of the audit process and the overall performance,
independence and objectvity of the auditors are reviewed annually by
the Audit Committee, taking into account the views of management,
and the outcome of this review 1s relayed to the relevant partners of
Ernst & Young The Audit Committes has regular discussions with the
extemal auditers, without managernent being present

The Audit Carnmittee has approved separate policies i respect of the
provision of non-audit senices and employment of former employees
of the auditors These policies ensure that the external auditors are
restncted to providing only those services which do not compromise
ther iIndependence The policy on the provision of non-audit services
prohibits the use of the audttors for the provision of transaction or
payroll accounting, cutsourcing of internal audit and valuation of
matenal financial statement amounts Any assignment that i1s
proposed to be given to the auditors above a value of US$500.000
must first be approved by the Audit Committee or its Charman The
auditors ara also expected to provide to the Audit Committee
information about policies and processes for maintaining




independence and momitorng complance with relevant current
requiIremants, \including those regarding the rotation of audit partners
and staff, the level of fess that the Group pays n proportion to the
averall fee income of the firm, and other regulatory requirements The
Committee reviewed thaese arrangernents dunng the year and bekeves
that they are stll appropnate

Fees for audit-related and non-audit-related services performed by the
external auditors are shown in note 3 to the financtal statements on
page 89

Recommendation on reappointment of auditors

Tha Committee considered whether Ernst & Young should be
proposed for reappointment by the shareholders at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting, or whether the audit should be put out to tender as
a matter of policy Taking into account ther general satisfaction with
the auditors and the relative shortness of the auditors' tenure to date,
the Committee agreed to recommend to the Board that Ernst &
Young should be proposed for reappointment for another year

Implementation of requirements of UK Bnbery Act 2010

At tha time of the introduction of the Brbery Act in July 2011, and
follownng a thorough nsk assessment and the establishment of dug
diigence procedures for business counterparties, all employees were
informed (and given nstruction where necessary) about the policies and
procedures introduced N order to ensure compliance with the Act
{which took the form of the Group Policy on Brbery and Carruption)
The Board delegated responsibility for implernenting the Policy and
menitenng its effectveness to an anti-bnibery compliance officer
{currently the CFO), who reports to the CID at its meetings and makes
any recommendations ansing from the meetings to the full Board

Reiations with shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to effective commumnication with
shareholders Executive Directors and senior executives have freguent
discussions with instituttonal shareholders on a range of Issues
affecting the Group’s performance, which include meetings following
the announcement of the annual and intenm results The CEQ,

the CFO, and the Head of Investor Relations meet major shareholders
to discuss performance, strategy and governance, and the
Non-executive Directors are avalable for discussions with
sharsholders if required

J P Morgan Cazenove, the Group's brokers, also provide regular
reports to the Board on changes to the shareholdings of the Group's
mayjor Investors Information about the views of major investors is
provided to the Board on a regular basis by the CEO, the CFO and the
Head of Investor Relatiens

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting (AGM') each year to
cormmunicate with shareholders and welcomes therr participation
The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Committees endeavour to be present at the AGMs to answer
questions from shareholders Notice of the AGM and related papers
are sent to shareholders at feast 20 working days before the meeting
The voting results of the AGM are avallable on the Company’s website
following the meeting

Information on matters of interest to nvestors can ba found on the
Group's website at www ferrexpo com

The Board approved this report on 13 March 2012
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

This Report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board and complies with the reguirements of the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authonty, Schedule 8 of the Large and
Madum-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 and the 2010 Code Part A of the report, which s
not subyect to audit, sets out the Company's rermuneration policy and
Part B, which has been audited, provides detalls of remuneration and
share incentivas of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2011

This Report will be subject to an adwisory shareholder vots at the
Company's 2012 AGM

Part A Unaudited Information

Remuneratton Committee

The Remuneration Committee {the ‘Comimitteg’) 1Is composed of four
ndependent Non-executive Directars Lucio Genovase s the
Charrman of the Committee, and its other members are Michael
Abrahams, Oliver Baring and lhor Mitiukov The Cormmittes met four
tumes dunng the year Attendance at meetings of the Commuttee by
indinadual members 1s detaled in the Corporate Governance Report
on page 52

Terms of reference for the Committee have been approved by the
Board, and its duties include the determination of the policy for the
remuneration of the Executve Directors and the members of the
Executive Committee, as well as therr specific remuneration
packages, including pension nghts and, whera applicable, any
compensation payments n determining such policy, the Committes
15 expected to take inte account all factors which it deems necessary
to ensure that members of the semor executive management of the
Group are provided with appropnate incentves to encourage strong
performance and ars, in a far and responsible manner, rewarded for
ther ndwidual contnbutions to the success of the Company

The composition of the Committee and its terms of reference comply
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and are
available for mspection on the Company's website at

www ferrexpe com

The CEQ usually attends mestings of the Cormmittee at the invitation
of the Chairman of the Committee, and the Company Secretary acts
as secretary to the Commuttee No Director 1s present when his own
remuneration I1s being discussed

Advisers

Tha Commuttee retains Kepler Associates as its advisers to provide
advice on remuneration policy, with particular emphasis on the
structure of long-term incentives for senior management Other than
advics to the Committae no other services were provided by Kepler
Associates to the Company

The CEO provides gudance to tha Committes on remuneration
packages of senior executives employed by the Group (but not In
respect of his own remuneration}

Activities of the Committee
DOunng the year the Commuttae considered the following items of
business

n raview of the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors
and members of the Executive Committee,

s |ong-Term Incentive Plan {'LTIP') performance and the Company's
performance compared to its peers,

» general market considerations surounding executive remunaration
packages and structure, and

a performance evaluation of the Committee

Remuneration policy

Ferrexpo’s remuneration policy 1s designed to help attract, motivate
and retan talented executives to help drive the future growth and
performance of the business The policy ams to

& align executive and shareholder interests,

s |ink a high proportion of remuneration to performance,

n reward a balanced portfolo of performance measures (e g relative
Total Shareholder Return { TSR) outperformance of sector peers,
annual business pnonties and indwvdual performance), and

s provide competrtive rewards assessed against the relevant market
to attract, motivate and retain talented executives

In determining the Company's remuneration policy, the Committee
takes into account the particular business context of the Ferexpo
Group, the Industry segment, the geography of its operations, the
relevant tatent market for each executive and best practice guidsines
set by institubonat shareholder bodies Dunng the year, the structure
and competitiveness of performance-related and fixed elements of
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors were reviewed
aganst mining comparators and FTSE-listed companies of similar
size No major changes were made to the policy as a result of the
review

The Committae will be keeping under review remuneration and
incentive plan policy during the forthcoming year The Commuttee will
continue to give full consideration 1o the pnnciples set out in the 2010
Code inrelation to Directors’ remuneration and to the guidance of
investor relations bodies It will continue to impfement policy 50 as to
align executive remuneration with shareholders’ interests and also to
engage and retain the talanted indvduals that the business needs in
order to succeed

Executive Directors’ remuneration

In setting the basic levels of pay for the Executive Directors, the
Committes seeks to ensure that salanes are market-competitive, with
the potential for total remuneration to be above average subject to
satisfaction of sutably stretching performance conditions At stretch
level performance, performance-related pay makes up the majonty of
the remuneration of the Chuef Financial Officer (CFO?) In making this
determination, the Committee makes reference to pay levels of
international mining companies and other FTSE-listed companies of
similar size and to pay and conditions elsewhere in the Ferrexpo
Group
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Incentive plans
A substantial proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration 1s based on performance via the LTIP and the Shart-Term Incentive Plan (STIP'),
as described below

» LTIP - aims to motivate participants to deliver appropnate ionger-term returns to sharsholders
= STIP —aims to focus management efiorts on delivery of annual business prionties, based on a scorecard of key performance indicators
relating to both Company and indmdual performance

The Board intends to continue to operate the LTIP and STIP for the Executive Directors and senior executives in 2012 while keeping under review
their motvationat effectiveness

Lme

The LTIP framework was approved by shareholders at the 2008 AGM The LTIP prowides for annual awards of performance shares and options
up to an aggregate lmit of 200% of salary In normal circumstances Total outstanding awards granted under the Plan from its inception in 2008
until the end of 2011 are equivalent to 0 16% of issued share capital Actual awards are made on the basis of a smilar number of shares to
participants at comparable levels In the orgarusation None of the awards granted to Executive Directors in 2011 exceeded 100% of salary These
awards are in the form of performance shares which vest according to the extant to which Farrexpo’s three-year TSR matches or outperforms
that of a comparator index {see below}

The Committee has chosen relative TSR as the pnmary long-term incentive measure as it considers this to be the most objective external
measure of the Company's success The Committee reviewed the constituents of the comparator index and theirr weightings pnor to the grant of
2011 LTIP awards and decided to increase the number of ‘focused won ore miners” in the comparator group (see table befow) from 4 to 10
companies, and retain the aggregate weighting of 40% on this component

Aggregate

Indax componant Constituents waighting
Global diversified miners {10% each} 50%

Vale Rio Tinto

BHP Billiton Astrata

Anglo Amencan
Focused ron ore miners (4% each) 40%

Atlas Iron' Gindalbie Metals'

Brockman Resources’ Kumba Iron Ore

China Vanadium T#ang' Mount Gibson Iron

Cliffs Natural Resources MMX Mineragao & Matalicos'

Fortescue Metals Group Northern lron!
Single commedity/emerging market miners 10%
{0 5% each) Afncan Rainbow Minerals Industrias Penoles

Alcoa Katanga Mirning

Alumina Kazakhmys

Aluminum Corp of China KGHM Polska Miedz

Antofagasta Lundin Mining

Balhden MMC Norilsk Nickel

ENRC OZ Minerals

Eramet Peabody Energy

First Quantum Minerals Teck Resources

Fraeport McMoRan Vedania Resources

1 Companies added to comparator groug for 2011 LTIP awards

TSR 15 calculated on a common currency basis to ensure that compansons with international comparators listed overseas are far As descnbed
In the 2010 Remuneraton Report, the TSR share-price averaging penod was extended from three to six months for LTIP awards granted w1 201
fand subsequent awards) to help improva the companson of the management long-term incentive In relation to potential short-term movernents
in Ferrexpo's share pnce or the share pnce of comparator companies

The Commuttee has discretion to review the comparator index if any of the constituent comparues 1s affected by corparate events such as
mergers and acquisitions

The Committes also reviews the constituents and thew weightings pnor to the start of each LTIP cycle in order to ensure that they remain
appropnate  The index will be adjusted In 2012 to reflect the Iisting of Glencore international pic and any eventual merger of Glencore
with Xstrata plc
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Remuneration Report continued

No performance shares wifl vest if Ferrexpo’s TSR underperforms
the comparator index 20% will vest if Ferrexpo’s TSR 1s equal to
Index TSR, full vesting will oceur only if Ferrexpo'’s TSR exceeds the
Index by at least 8% p a, thers will be straght-lne pro-rata vesting

In between those points In addition, for any shares to vest, the
Committee must be satisfied that the recorded TSR s a farr reflection
of Ferrexpo's undertying business performance The vesting
parameters are lustrated delow

Ferrexpo three-year TSR
% of award vesting
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Oimdends will accrue on performance shares over the vesting penod,
and be paid on shares that vest In the event of a change of control,
awards will be pro-rated for tme and performance The Committea
will retain discretion to vary this treatment sf it déems it to be in
shareholders’ interests to do so

2009 LTIP award vesting

From 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011, Ferrexpo's TSR
performance was 506 5% and index TSR was 150 0% This
outperformance of 32 8% pa of Index TSR resulted in 100% of

2009 LTIP awards vesting for TSR Tha Committee has considered
the Compary's overall performance and determined that the recorded
TSR cutperformanca was a farr reflection of Ferrexpa's underiying
performance over the performance penod and has therefore
determined, in accordance with the rules of the plan, that 100%

of the 2008 LTIP awards vested

Proposed 2012 LTIP awards
The Committee Intends to operate the LTIP framework n 2012 in the
same manner as in 2011

LTIP share ownership guidelines

With effect from the 2010 award, Executive Directors and memicers
of the Executive Committee are encouraged, In ine with the growing
practice among FTSE 250 companies, to build up a holding of shares
of equivalent value to a year's salary {in the case of Exacutive
Directors) or six months’ salary {for other members of the Executive
Committag) Executives will be encouraged to retan therr vasted LTIP
shares on an after-tax basis until the applicable guideline level 1s
achieved

STIP

The STIP apples to the members of the Executive Committee,
excluding Mr Zhevago The STIP is a discretionary annual bonus
scheme For 2011, the maximum STIP opportunity for members of
the Executive Committee ranged up to 150% of salary

Kay performance indicaters ('KPIs’) for 2011 were set at tha start of
the year for each member of the Executive Committee and were
waighted to reflect the contrbution of each executive to the
achievernent of that KPl KPls during the year (with their respective
waightings in the case of the CFO shown in brackets) related to
financial perfermance (EBITDA and NOPAT) {20%), operational
performance (production and sales volumes) (25%), corporate social
responsibility (5%), and personal performance, project performance
and governance (50%} Financial KPls were adjusted to take account
of market and raw matenal cost pnce developments, as appropnate,
to the extent that these were not under the direct contrat of
management Adjustments were at the full discretion of the
Committes

The Company's overall performancs In 2011 was assessed as being
between the 'target’ and ‘'stretch’ levels Taking account of this and
also his strong personal performance, the Committee made an award
fo the CFO under the STIP of 131% of salary in respect of 2011

The outcoma of the KPIs for ather members of the Executive
Comimittes under the STIP, as determined by the Remuneration
Comimittes, ranged between 20% and 120% of satary depending on
the achievermnent of the relevant KPls, which were weighted towards
the responsibiiities and targsts of the executive concemed

The STIP frameawork for 2012 1s in ine with the principles of the 2011
frarmework CSR, projects and personal KPIs continue to be set as in
previous years Weightings for the CFO in 2012 wall be 22 5% for
financial (EBITDA and NOPAT), 10% for CSR, 22 5% for production
and sales volumes, and 45% for personal, projects and govemnance
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Service agreements, notice periods and termination payments
The Executive Directors are employed under contracts of employment wath Ferrexpo AG, a Group company

The prnincipal terms of the Executive Directors' service contracts (which have no fixed term) are as follows

Currant base foa
Nama Pos tion Data of contract Notca perod pa)

Six maonths from the employee,
Kostyantin Zhevago  CEQ 1 November 2008 six months from the employer US$240,000!

Six months from the employese,
Chris Mawe CFO 7 January 2008 12 months from the employer CHF626,160

1 Kostyantn Zhevago s basic fee of US$240 000 i donaled et his reguest to Ukrainian chanties

The Remunerabion Commuttee sets notice penods for the Executive Directors at 12 months or less, which reduces the likelhood of having to pay
excessive compensation in the event of poor performance The policy on termination payments is to pay no more than what may be stipulated in
an indvidual’s service agreement The Executive Drectors' service contracts contan a provsion exercisable at the option of the empiover to pay
an amount on early termination of employment equal to the respective notice penod

If the Company elects to make a payment in lleu of notice, the Executive Director will also be entitied to recewve ak componants of his
remuneration, allowances and expenses for the extent of the notice penod In s far as it relates to the STIR, this entitlerent 1s unique to

Chns Mawe among the Directors of the Company, and reflects the practice in the Company at the tme when Chns Mawe was appointed 1tis
the Committee’s policy to review contractual arrangements pnior to new appointments in the light of developments in best practice Tha paymant
In lieu of notica clauses will ba Invoked when the speed and certainty afforced by such clauses are thought to be in the best interests of the
shareholders

Benefits in kind

Under his service agreement, Kostyantin Zhevago I1s entitled o 25 working days' paid holiday per year He 1s also entitled to furmished
accommoedation in Switzerland (and elsewhare in Europe if necessary for the performance of his duties) which cost US$100,000 in 2011,
and up to US$5,000 per annum for professional tax advice

Under his service agreement, Chns Mawe s entited to 25 working days’ paid holiday per year Ferrexpo AG also provides him with CHF167.790
of accommadation allowance per annum

Pensions

The Group does not operate a separate pension schema for Executive Directors Chns Mawe and Kostyantin Zhevago are members of the
Ferrexpo AG pension plan which 1s a mandatory insurance scheme under Swiss law, prowded for all employees of Ferrexpo AG, to which the
Company contnbutes an average of 6% of ther annual basse salanes

Pension benefits earned by the Directors in the year ended 31 Decernber 2011 were

Increase n

transtar va'ua

dunng the

Acorusd Increasen  Transfar velue Accrusd Transter Transfer panod lass
Lerwhl sl ponod (et of of Increase Forex bengli at valug gt value at Diractors Crractors Forax
USE200 Age atotn indexaton) 0 period effact 3112n o1giNn atzn contributions contributions effact
Chris Mawe 50 452 11 B8 -6 526 214 292 28 54 -5

Kostyantin

Zhavago 38 24 12 8 -1 43 13 19 5 2 -1

Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the Charman of the Board and the Non-executive Directors consists of fees that are paid monthly The Charrman and
Non-executive Directors do not participate in any of the Company's long-term incentive or short-term incentive schemes, nor do they accumulate
any pension entitlement Neither the Chairman nor any of the Non-executive Directors has a service contract with the Company, however, each
has entered nto a letter of appointment with the Company

M3IAH3AD

MIIAIH SSIANISNEG

JONVNYH3IAOD

SINIWILVLS TYIONVYNIA




Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

60

Remuneration Report continued

Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment

Each of the Non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company The Non-executve Drectors are each appointed for
an inimal penod of three years, and ther appointments may then be renewed on a three-yearly basis, subject to re-election when approprate by
the Company = general meeting, n 2011 the Company adopted the practice of annual re-election of all Directors Unless otherwise determined,
neither the Company nor the Director concemed may give less than three months' notice of termination of the appointment

The Non-executive Directors' fees are reviewed each year in ight of the tme commitment and leval of nvolvernent that Non-executive Directors
are required to devote to the actiihies of the Board and its committees, market practics, and surveys by Kepler Associates In July 2011, the fees
were reviewed and the annual remuneration of the Chatrman was increased from US$400,000 to US$500,000, the annual base fee of the
Non-executive Directors was increased from US$120,000 to US$150,000, and the fee paid for chainng a Committes increased from US$20,000
to US$40,000 The Charman's fee was last increased in 2008 and the Non-executive Directors fees were last ncreased in 2007 The key
appontment terms of the Non-executive Directors are as follows

Date of mtial Curaton Feaspa
Drrectar Pos tion appontmant of term [V
Michael Abrahams Chaitrman 14 June 2007 3 years® 500
Olwer Banng' Non-executive Diractor 1 December 2007 3 years® 190
Lucio Ganovese?* Non-executive Director 14 June 2007 3 years® 230
Wolfram Kuoni®4 Non-executive Director 14 Juna 2007 3 years? 265
Ihor Mitiukov Non-executive Director 14 June 2007 3 years® 150
Mike Salamon Non-executive Director 27 March 2009 3 years? 150

1 Olver Banng receives a fes of US$150 000 p a as a Non executive Director and an additional fee of US$40 000 pa i total for his rolss as Senior Indegendent Director and Charman
of the Norminabions Commuttes and Cornmittes of Independant Directors

2 Luco Genovesa recenvas a fés of USS150 000 pa as a Non axecutive Director and addibonal fees of US$40 000 p a for tus rele as Chasrnan of the Remuneration Commitiee and
US340 DOO for hus role as a Non executive Dwector of Ferraupo AG

3 Wolfram Kuon: recenes a fea of US$150 000 p a as a Nen-axecutive Directar ang additional fees of US$40 000 pa for his role as Charman of the Audit Committes and US$75 00D
for fus role as a Non exaculive Director and as Chawrman of Ferraxpe AG

4 See note on Board balance and independance in Corperata Governance Report on page 51

S Intal term was for three ysars from tha date of the 2008 AGM  Appoinimants were renawed by the Board for a further term of three years (untl the date of the 2014 AGM) in March
2011 sulbyact to the requirement for panodic re election at the AGM

6 Inal term was for three years from 27 March 2009 Appontment was renewed by the Board for a further tarm of thraa years (untl the data of the 2015 AGM} n March 2012 subject lo
the requirement for penod:c re-elecbon at tha Annual General Meeting

External appointments

It 1s the Board's policy to allow the Exacutive Directors to accept directorships of other quoted companies provided that they have abtained
the consent of both the Chairman of the Board and Kostyantin Zhevago Any such directorships must be formaliy notified to the Board
Kostyantin Zhevago's external directorship, for which he retains no fees, Is mentioned in the biographical section of the Company overview
on page 48
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The above graph shows the value, at 31 December 2011, of £100 invested in Ferrexpo's shares at the time of the IPO compared with the current
valug of the same amount nvested in the FTSE 250 index or in the shares of the LTIP comparator group The FTSE 250 index 1s chosen because

Ferrexpo 1s a constituent member of this group

PartB Audited Information

Directors' remuneration for the penod from 1 January to 31 December 2011

Salary, annual bonus and other benefits

Salary or fees Pansion Henehits Bonus Totat 2011 Total 2010
US8000 USS000 US$000 US$000 UuSS000 USS000

Chairman
Michael Abrahams 450 - - - 450 731
Exacutive Directors
Kostyantin Zhevago 240 8 100 - 348 3412
Chris Maws 706 94 189 825 1,914 16443
Non-executive Directors
Qliver Baring 165 - - - 165 140
Lucio Genovese 2056 - - - 205 180
Wolfram Kuoni 240 - - - 240 215
Ihor Mitiukov 135 - - - 135 120
Mike Salamon 135 - - - 135 120
Former Non-executive Director
Marek Jelinek - - - - - 50
Total 2,276 102 289 925 3,592 3,541

1 Relates to accommaodation allowance
2  Total for 2010 ncludas pension ralated benafits of USS8 000
3 Total ior 2010 inchudes pension refated benafits of USS78 000
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Remuneration Report continued

- -

Directors’ intarests in shares of the Company
Interests of the Drectors in office as et 31 December 2011

M N

3 g

Michasl Abrahams 168,690 167,646
Kostyantin Zhevago® 300,198,213 300,108,313
Christopher Mawe 67,439 0
Cliver Banng 20,130 20,130
Luco Genovese 169,180 189.005
Wolfram Kuom 28,466 28,290
Thor Mitnukaov 31,522 N,327

Mika Salamol 100,000 100,000

1 Kaostyartin Zhevego a inierastad in these sitvams by reason of being a benatiaary of Tha Minco Trusl which = the wlimata shamhioider of Fevamolinico S arl which owns
300,198 313 Qranacy Shares in the Company

There have been no changes n the interests of the Directors from the end of the panod under review to 12 March 2012, being a data not more
than one manth prior to the date of nohice of the AGM

Listing bonus awards
The Chaimnan and the Non-exacutive Directors were all awarded shares in the Company folowing they appointment to the Board s follows

LI e, Peeg “ 4

e frrote @ v b oo
e I Y L B R ] - 1 Tl -zey
AT Anrt e gvewe it dap Ay TRt R PURE {8 LSRN}
tMichael Abrehauns 15 June 2007 il 90,657 80 657 90,657 271,971
Olrver Banng 1 December 2007 12,060 12,060 Ni Nl 24,120
Lucio Genovese 15 June 2007 16,318 16.318 Ni N1 92636
Wollram Kuor 15 June 2007 16,318 16318 Ni N 32,6358
Ihor Wi nisov L 15 June 2007 16,318 16,218 Ni N 32,636

LTIP awards

In 2011 the following performance shares were awarded to Executve Directors as nil cost options under the LTIP Further details of the LTIP and
the apphicable performance conditlons ara shown on pages 57 and 58

Qi Lorges MUThe! oo
i LTE Totol ml Tsdaw A Koy Iz 24 Givtom on Cr ~
s ML Ly~ el t 1w 3 W a1 1 e e LT (5}
Chns Maws 100000 92,000 8000 o 411 - 01012011 168052018
SO0 0OGF - - 100,000 143 - D11 2012 14092019
100,000 - - 100000 275 - 01012013 17062020
1200007 - - 120,000 341 - 01012014 07 08 2021

Tatel 320,000

1 Datn of grant 8 August 2011
2 Tha oward has vostod 10085 unter ths 18R pariemance condion descriped above At tha dats o vesting (31 December 2011} the market pice of 8 shane was 288 Spence

QOther ransactons nvoiving Drectors are sat out in note 34 (related party disclosure) to ths financial statements
This Report was approved by the Board on 13 March 2012
Sgned on behalf of the Board.

Luclo Genovese
Chasrman of the Remuneration Committee

S




Directors’ Report

The Directors present therr report to shareholders for the financial year
ending 31 December 2011

Tha Company was incorporated under the nama Ferrexpo plc as a
publc company imited by sharas on 22 Apnl 2005 Ferrexpo pic Isted
on the London Stock Exchange in June 2007 and 15 a member of the
FTSE 250 ndex

Business review

A review of the business, its principal actvities and hikely future
developments can be found in the sections listed below which are
incorporated into this Directors' Report by reference The pages
referred to Incorporate all requirements of sectron 417 Companies
Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), Including detalls of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertainties facing the Group and analysis using Key Performance
Indicators (as set out in the Business Review)

& Thg Charman's and Chief Executive Officer's Statement on
pages 8to 1

The Review of Operations cn pages 20 to 28

The Fnancial Review on pages 2910 33

The Risks section on pages 34 to 37

The Corporate Social Responstbility Review on pages 40 to 47

Directors’ duties

The duties of Directors are set out in sections 170 to 177 of the Act
The duttes that are specifically referred to in the Corporate
Govemance Report on pages 50 to 55 include the duties under
section 172 {to promote the success of the Company), section 175 (to
avoid conflicts of interest), section 176 (not to accept benefits from
third parties), and section 177 (to declars any interests in existing or
proposed transactions or arrangements with the Company)

Results and dividends
Resuits for the year are set out in the Consoldated Income Staterment
on page 89

The Directors recommend & final dwvidend of 3 3 US cents per
Ordinary Share Subject to shareholders approving thes
recommendation at the AGM, the dividend will be paid in UK Pounds
Sterling on 1 June 2012 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 4 May 2012 Shareholders may receve UK Pounds
Sterling dvidends by direct bank transfer, provided that they have
notified the Company’s registrars in advance Shareholders may also
elect to receve dividends in US Dollars (the procedure for this is set
out in the Notica of the AGM)

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served dunng the year were
Michael Abrahams

Oliver Banng

Lucio Genovess

Wolfram Kuon

Chris Mawe

Ihor Mitiukov

Mike Salamon

Kostyantin Zhevago

Ferrexpo plc
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In compliance wath the 2010 Code ali of the Directors will retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, baing eligble, wil offer thernselves for
re-election

Further detaits about the Directors and therr roles within the Group ars
given in the Directors’ biographies on pages 48 and 49 Detalls of the
remuneration of the Directors, ther Interests in shares of the Company
and their servica contracts are containad in the Remuneration Report
on pages 56 to 62

Appointment and replacement of Directors

Dwrectors may be elected by the shareholders (by ordinary resolution)
or apponted by the Board A Director appointed by the Board holds
office only until the next following AGM and 1s then elgible for election
by the sharehclders

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles, the Act and any directions given
by special resolution, the business of the Company will be managed
by the Board who may exercise alt the powers of the Company

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company maintans Directors' and Qfficers’ Liability Insurancs
in respect of legal action that may be brought against its Directors
and Officers

Dhrectors’ indemmity provision

Dunng the penod under review, the Group had in force a qualifying
third-party ndemnity provisicn in favour of one or more of the
Directors of Ferrexpo plc against hability in respect of proceedings
brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set out In the Act

Share capital and nghts attaching to the Company's shares
The Company has a single class of Ordinary Shares of 10 pence
each

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders' nghts, shares
may be 1sslued with such nghts and restnctions as the Company may
by ordinary resolution decide, or (if thare 15 no such resolution or so
far as it does not make specific provision) as the Board may decide
At each AGM, the Board proposes to put in place annual shareholder
authonty for the Company’s Directors to aliot new shares in
accerdance with the Insttutional Investor Guidelines

Details of tha 1ssued share capital of the Company are shown in ncota
28 of the financial statemants
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Directors’ Report continued

Vanation of nghts

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the nghts attached to a class of
shares may be vaned or abrogated ether with the consent In writing of
the holders of at least three-quartars of the nomenal amount of the
1ssued shares of that class (excluding any shares of that class held as
treasury shares) or with the sancton of a special resoluton passed at
a separate meeting of the holders of the 1Issued shares of that class
vaidly held in accordance with the Articles

Transfer of shares

Any share in the Company may be held in uncertficated form and,
subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares may be transferred
by means of a relevant system Registration of a transfer of an
uncertificated share may be refused in the crcumstances set out in
the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 and where, In the case
of a transfer to joint holders, the number of joint holders to whem the
uncertificated share s to be transferred exceeds four

Supyject to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfar in any usual form or in
any cther form which the Board may approve The Board may decling
to registar a transfer of a certificated share if it 1s not 1 the approved
form The Board may also dechne to register any transfer of any share
which 1s not a fully paid share The Board may decline to register a
transfer of any of the Company’s certificated shares by a person with
a0 25% or greater interest if such a person has been served with a
notice and has faled within 14 days o provide the Company with
information concerming interests in those shares required to be
provided under the Act, unless the transter 1s shown to the Board

to be pursuant to an arm's length sale

Repurchase of shares

Subject to authonsation by shareholder resclution, the Company may
purchase its own shares in accordance with the Act Any shares
which have been bought back may be held as treasury shares or
cancelled Irmmediately upon completion of the purchase

The Company was given authonty to make market purchases of

up to approximately 10% of its axisting Ordinary Share capial by a
resolution passed on 26 May 2011 This authonty will expire at the
conclusion of the Company's 2012 AGM A special resclution to
renew the authonty will be proposed at the forthcorming AGM Details
of the reselution renewing the authonty to purchase Ordinary Shares
are sat out In the notice of AGM enclosed with this report

The Company did not make use of the authonty menticned above
during 2011

Dmvidends and distnbutions

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the sharsholders may by

ordinary resclution, from time to tme, declare dmdends not exceeding
tha amount recommaeanded by the Board The Board

may pay intenm dividends and also any fixed rate dwvidends

whenever the financial position of the Group, n the opinion

of the Board, justifies ther payment

Under the Company’s Articles, the Board may withhold payment of all
or any part of any dimdends or other monias payable in respect of the
Company's shares from a person with a 0 25% or greater interest (as
defined In the Articles) If such person has been served with a notice
under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and has faled within
14 days to provide the Company with nformation conceming interests
In those shares reguired to be provided under the Act

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, every member has one vote on
a show of hands and on a poll, one vote for each share held Under
the Act, members are entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to exercise
all or any of therr nghts to attend, speak and vota at a general meeting
A member that Is a corporation may appoint oneg or more indviduals
to act on its behalf at a general meetng as a corporate representative

Restrictions on voting

No member 1s entitied to vote at any general meeting in respect of any
shares held by him if any call or other sum outstanding In respect of
that share remans unpaid Currently, all issued shares are fully pad In
acidition, subject to the Articles no mamber shall be entitled to vots If
he has fallad to provide the Company with information concerning
interests in those shares required to be provided under the Act

Shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust (‘EBT")

The trustees of the Company's EBT may vote or abstain from voting
on shares held in the EBT as they think fit and in doing so may take
into account both financial and non-financial interests of the
beneficianes of the EBT or their dependants

Deadline for voting rights

The Articles provide a deadline for subrmission of proxy forms of not
less than 48 hours before the meeting The Directors wilt also specify
n the notice of any general mesting a time, being not more that 48
hours befare the meeting, by which a person must be entered In the
register of members in order to have the nght to attend and vote at the
meeting The Directors may decide, at ther discretion, that no account
should be taken of any day that 1s not a working day when calculating
the 48 hour penod
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Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had been advised in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the followang notifiable
interests in its voting nghts  There were no changes in thase Interests between 31 December 2011 and the date of this report

% of the

Company 5

fotal voling

Numbaer of votng rghts at date of

Name cl sharaholkder Ord nary Shares nghts natficaton
Fevamotnico Sarl? 300198313 300,198,313 5100%
Wigmore Street Investments No 3 Ltd? 76656035 76,656,035 1302%

t  Fevamolinico $arl 18 a wholly-owned subsidiary o The Minco Trust of which Kostyantin Zhevago 1S a beneficiary
2 BXR Group Lid 1s the ulumate parent undertalong and indirect controler of Wigmare Streel Investments Mo 3 Ltd which holds 78 856 035 shares through 1ts nomines Lynchwood
Nominees Ltd In addition Wigmore Strest Investments No 3 Lid s nterestad i 1otal return swaps covennyg 70 500 000 shares

Free float

On 14 December 2011 the FTSE Group announced that the FTSE Policy Group had approved a change to the Ground Rules of the FTSE UK
Index Series, Increasing 1o 25% the minimum free float (as calculated by FTSE) for a company to be eligible for ncluston  The FTSE Group also
indicated that Ferrexpo does not currently satisfy this requirement as it calculates that Ferrexpo's free float 1s approximately 24% Companies not
currently satsfying this requirement have been given a time frame of 24 months from 1 January 2012 to reach this free float level if they are to
continue to be included in the UK Index Senes  Ferrexpo I1s considenng with its adwisers the options avallable to it

Significant agreements - change of control
The Company does not have any agreements with Direclors or employeas that would prowvide for compensation for loss of office or employmant
resulting from a takeover

There are no crcumstances connected with any other significant agreements 1o which the Company 1s a party that would take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control folfowing a takeover bid, except those referred to below

LTIP

The rules of the Company’s LTIP set out the consequences of a change of control of the Comparny on employee rights under the plan Generally,
such nghts will vest on a change of control to the extent that the performance conditions have been satisfied and on a tme pro-rated basis,
subject to the discretion of the Remuneration Committee Participants will become entitled to acquire shares in the Company, or n soma cases,
to the payment of a cash sum of equivalent basis

Bank loan facility

Under the US$420 million revolving pre-export finance faciity with ING Bank NV, Uni Credit Bank AG, Societé Générale and other banks
enterad nto in September 2011, If Kostyantin Zhevago ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 30% of the issuad and allotted share capital of
the Company, or any person {other than Kostyantin Zhevago) becomes the beneficial owner of the shares in the Compary carmang more than
£0% of the voting nghts normally exercisable at a general meeting, then the lenders are not obliged to fund a drawdown

Corporate Bond due 2016

Under the conditions of the Notes issusd in Apnl 2011, if Kostyantin Zhevago ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 30% of the 1ssued and
allotted share capital of the Company, or any parson (other that Kostyantin Zhevago) becomes the beneficial owner of shares in the Company
carrying more than 50% of the voting nghts normatly exercisable at a general meeting, then any Noteholder will have the nght 1o require the
repurchase of its Notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpard interest

Relationship Agreement

Detalls of the Relationship Agreement entared into between Fevamotinico S arl, Kostyantin Zhevago, The Minca Trust and the Company can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report (page 51) The Relationship Agreement caases to apply if the holding of Fevamotinico S arl, The
Minco Trust or Mr Zhevago indmidually or collectively falls below 25% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company

Events since the balance sheet date
Information on events since tha balance sheet date 1s provided in note 41 to tha financial statements on page 123

Market value of land and buildings

Land 1s cammed in the balance sheet at deemed cost resulting from a valuation undertaken on 1 January 2003 as part of the Group's
transtion to reperting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS') It 1s not practcable to estmate the market value of land and
mineral reserves and resources at each balance sheet date

Policy on dervatives and financial instruments
The Group does not hold any denvative financial iInstruments Group pokcy on financtal nstruments is set out N note 37 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 112 to 119
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Creaditor payment policy and practice

It 15 the Group's policy 1hat payinents o supplers aie inade n
accordance with the terins and condibons agread between the
Company and is suppliers provided that all ilevant tracking tenms,
and conditicns have been complied vath The average creddor
payment penod for the pencd ended 31 Decambe 2001 fon the
Cotnpany was 24 days (2010 20 days)

Chartable and polittcal donations

Thie Group imade ner political denations dunng the year Sroup
chnalions 1 chanties won ldvade werez USSal (201 USSaily watly LIK
chaates recening USSnd (2010 USSmil (For conmuimty supsort
donntions pheasa sea nota 11 1o the Cunsolivatad Fnangiat
Slalemernts )

Risk management policies

Fult delaits of the Groupr s policy on nsk and tncertanty and an
overview Of the Group s exposuie to credit iguidity and markel nshs
are et cut nnote 3. of the Notes ta the Consolklated Finsnciai
Infevenatics on pages 1o Y faether referoncrs o nok ate macle
e Risks secton onpagrs § 1030 andin the Intermal Conted

564 om0 1he Low o ale Governane 2 Hoport e pages 5413 bwhich
provides a srnmoary of the wlornal control proceduas [t npace by
the Board 10 olentfy key rake arsd re view tsk inanagemsent ared -
effocinenass

Going concern

Fle Corongy s IEsine »s nctiniie s ogethen wath tha nsh Lrdons kely o
affeet 0 uture developie nf predonnand e and peubion are set oul i
hie Business Review on pages 2910 37 1The iinancal pasmon of the
coipdny 1ts cash fows b juany posibon anct boncwing * wiiies are
dews nihed wr the Binarrial Resiew on pages 29 1273 Inaddiion note
37 of the Notes to thie Consehdated Finanaal State ments an pacges
o 119 50, ot e Gioup 2 of jectve s, prioee aevd procosses for
g e ds cpital 1S henor sk i anagoment gb] «ta s anit
Al onie finan aal m anmonts ek s © osLines 1 i 3 sk
et srmb 36 o sseunene o ko onedistore Laotongk The

e tore e of e opunie gt e Groonpsany wadl conlze o 10 6P e
Akt s sue b the ac C oo iy crpropruedu ny i, L i}
Cene rrm poipie

Corporate governance statement

The Disclosure and Transparency Rulas [DTR 7 2) roquire cerlam
nlormation 1o be ncluded N a copormio governdng e statement «of
autin a company s Direclors” Reporl I comnen wath many
companes, Feriexpo has an existneg prachce of ssting witm iis
Annual Bepori o Gorporate Govemnance Report that 15 separale from
w4 Diectors Renort The mtormation that futfil, the rocgueeeaents of
DIR 7245 loc ated m1 f errexno s Corporata Governane Beport on
s Mo s land s neorpornted oty e Directors Report by
relpronce vaty e eacepuon ot the nfarmeabon refeceed Lon DITR
24 wheenns located o 1bn Biclors Reporn

Statement on disclosura of information to auditors

1o Do tors who held office at the deate of approval of this Oieectors
Report corfim that so tar gy they are srel awaie thore s Noelevan)
awlit nformation of wish the Gioup's auditors are. unawaie and thiat
each Diretlor has laken alf reascnahle stiens 10 inake hrnsell aveae of
amy 1elevant aucit miormation and to establish that the Group s
audnors are aware of that mformatinn

A Statement of the Respongibites of the Daedtons for puepanng the
Grou and Company financiul slatements 5 sat out on paqge 67

Amendments to Articles of Association
The Artictas migy he amended hy specal 1esolution n accondance
wath the Act

AGM

The AGM of the Company wilt be hald at 11 Glaum en Thirsday 24
May 2012 at the Intercontnental Hoted 1 Hamilton Place Pk | amne
Loncon W13 7QY A separ e Jetier from the Chiasrian st nansang
the usinGss of 1ha e cimag and thg Notd e wonwvenng the AGW have
tizen sent 1o sharetolo s vty g Annual Report

Auditors

Hevingg teviewod 1o medtpendeoe o aned e v ne 55 of the awhilers
the ALkt Sommutten e enome ended 1o the Boad that the raosning
aucitoas Einat & Younsy LLP b reappointect Eenct & Young LE bBave
ncicated ther wilingness to continue © oiice and an oidinary
reSoiUlor reapponting thent as augditors and authonsirg the Dircctors,
to sot thew remoneration will be proposeac at the 2012 AGM

This report was approved by tne Boand on 13 March 2012
Dawd Leonard
CooypangpSrciitan MM/_J

Fenexpo sk

Registered ofice

2-4 King Steot

London SW1Y 6OL
Regpstered numixer 54732915

Headcuarters
Bahnhofstrasae 13
CH-6340 Baar
Switeerand
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

In relation to the Group financial statoments
fiee D tors are respoosile for prapeanog e luunoad Slatensntsa
Jurordaneg with appsed i Lea e regulations

Congrirsy by reguares e Dreelons 0 prepaas inan gl Shtermncnits

Tor 200 T wd v Undler Hu Lo he Diege lors have paey e the
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Repxorting Stnndards as g ded by e LU Uncor o onngany v i
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Cirupy anid of the pealit o [0as of the Gredn 1 thal ponoed In

prepann thoso fancal statement « he Directors aaaegenrod o

& sedpnl auatablo ded ountiey poik1es anct than apply them
consstonily
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e g ot Bygretoine el e 0 oong army 24000 s e o,
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In relation to the parent company financial statements
1w L heeglors gud o pere g o a0 nny o 1 stalem nds iy
WK CORITRa At apy it vy ond sguizteens

{acst iy K e 08 The DIeclons 10 prepare fnooe st dennent,
01 X 11 isancial yeer Undes thal dove the Daec ns haw olr e 1o
precpsare $10 ool Salernests naocondznea wath Liied Kok gsom
Canerally Accep'ac! Aceoausibig Prac bice (Unite ¢ Kinggcdom Acccant ng
Sl weds and cppi cable kv Hndor coveogy iy By e Dnoetcs
unr Lol gpgnove the Braneud stercms nts onios s they e satinfies§
that fhusy g v trae s b e of the stade of idfons ol e Gomgoany
wud G B e i e T BOr Hod gitans ) oeeoganois tho o st
THeren!  the e bors o revioris o
8 etenh aalad v o g Al aniE D gpaly et
I
koo pieoarad osina Vet ot o @ regs nabidy
o datewbe thes gl 2l UIKACCoontng © tandhad s i Exeen
o ard sunp ¢ Uiy hy ingtbenad flep) wlind s ehiva losod ard
cApipmed 0 the fmain ol ~lat menty 2kl
A n2pErG 1 o esAl slelBIk re On e gomeg ¢ ong e Dee 15 pnleds
15 Nappropitate 1o presame hal the oy will conbinue in
g v

Inedaton to the Groug and parent compuany funcal staternents

The Direr tors a0 responwihle it heeping « CGograte Jo aovntig

100 Oneds el are suefficnend 10 =0 A cxpilaan s Croups s andd
Cormpany's rane achions and chaelose vath reasonable acoar aey at
ey Tine 11 heaancl postoon of the Geoup and Caxnpaey and ciiab,
Tt o crure that fw Coougr and € canpaay fiiguoal slatcient 3
conply wath the Compeaes Art 2006 and wath respoct 0.0 0 Ganp
Iinant il statements At e 1 of 1 IAS Begudanon  Thiy two ad <

e ponsid e lor satcOueadaing o as ety of thes Group dawl G ooy
and bence 1o takitg 1casmo e stegry o the prevenbion dl
detecttn ol frannd ard ather erecguantios

Undet apphcalse LIS Ly cod requaratnents ot e Financidb Senac,
Avihardy the Dnectoes are esponst do Dethe preparstion of o
Phackas Fepord Deecwn > Hermunesanon Hopon b and Covpaosate
Caovernared Bepat that conyfy wally e ked s b ieguanoses ot iy
Aldion the D o tors aee o spaonaible ko the v antenase & cew
wagnly < the e oporate aned 0 el adoer Qe 1 e el o s
oyt wh gl L eegrlnhic va oy the UK gosmaiug iy ) reysu st 1
(RIS AR TS PR 1) NIRRT B LT TR PRNTIR PRSI T TR A ST A T S
Yhet junut tuda,

Uwier the eogone-ve s o E0vondor dob e Descdo iy awf

Fran st e mcy ke, e A dree e e tevgent tile i anead oy o b
reniew OF s Qracdc el v pechowan ane o oDt Baesaness , angd e
posmon of e Cxcip ok @ 0 wnol Baethoy b coese ipunnet
hie ey G g wey Soaniics Bl hoy e

Responsibility statemaont of the Directors in respect of tho

Annual Reporl and Accounls

W el on biohall of the B that 80 1004k OF Ot hniowsd Jy,0

@) thes nareanl stes o el QU a e and Lo vy of the feger
Bbnhtes Beane sed pooahion sk proht of e Gonvgaany e e
wgiertaknep o nchided by o ovmobrdadicas takeonas whel 2

U enara f rest repen L alrled Buanests Besaow e hdo 5 a L
tracar ol thadke < b canond nd preafumei oo of e Borun-a, toeld
gt gl s i and ertanbies [ g, "o

Fer ko nehadf of fhe ioand

Michael Abrahams h" LANMAA AN AN AA g

! I ul

Christopher Mawo

[ I e |




Fermexpo pic
Anral Repdrt and Accourts 2011

68

Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of Ferrexpo plc
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We have audited the financral statements of Ferrexpo pic for the year
ended 31 December 2011 which compnse the Consolidated Incame
Staement, the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Incomne,
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Postion, the Consolidated
Staterment of Cash Flows, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1
to 40 for the Group financial statements and notes 1 1o 9 for the
Parent Compary firancial statements The financial reporing
framework that has been appked in the preparation of the Group
financiat staternents 15 applicabla law and International Financial
Reporting Standards ( IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union
The finanaat reporting framework that has been apphed in the
preparation of the Parent Carnpany financial statements is applicable
law and Urnited Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report s made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008

Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the
Company s members those mallers we are required to state to them in
an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone
other than the Company and the Company $ members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective of Directors and auditor

As expianed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilibes Statement
set out on page &7, the Directors are responaible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and far view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opirion on
the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and
intemational Standards on Auditng (UK and Ireland) Thosa
standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statoments

An audit mvobves obtaring evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
rmisstatament, whether caused by fraud or ermor This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting poicies are appropnate to
the Group s and the Parent Company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonabieness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the
Dwectors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In
additon we read all the financlal and non-financial information in the
Annual Report and Accounts to identify matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements f we becoms aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies, we consider the
imphcation for our report

Opinlon on financial statemonts

In our opimion

w The financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company's affars as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

= The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion

= The Parent Company financiat staternents have been property
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Account Practice and
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= The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Comparves Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements  Article 4 of the 1AS Reguiation

Opinion on cther matters prescribed by the Companies Act
2008

I our opiron

= The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Campanies Act
2006, and

= The information given in the Directors Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with
the financial staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by excsption
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 10 report to you if,

N our opinion

w Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company or retumns adequate for our audit have not been
recenved from branches not visited by us, or

= The Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Oirectors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not n
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

»  Certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

= We have not recenved all the nformation and explanations we
requre for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» The Dwectors' Statement, set out on page 66, in retation to going
concem,

®» The part of the Corporate Govemnance Statement relating to the
Company s comphance with the nine prowisions of the UK
Comorate Governance Code specified for our review; and

= Certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Owrectors remuneratlon

LR
Emist & Young LLP
Bob Forsyth (Sensor statutory audnto

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London
i3 March 2012
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Year anded

US$000 Motes Mtz 31210
Revenue s 1,788,012 1,294,800
Cost of sales 7 (649,544) {481,857)
Gross profit 1,138,468 813,043
Seling and distribution expenses 8 (317,951) (212,006)
General and adminstrative expenses 8 (51,969) (49,175)
Other income 10 6,843 4515
Other expenses n (17,091} {5,938)
QOperating foreign exchange losses 12 {1,360} {1.078)
Qperating profit from continuing operations before adjusted items 787,040 549381
Under recovery of VAT receivable 26 - (10,938)
Write-offs and impairment losses 13 {478) {1,618)
Share of profit of associates 14 2,012 4,155
Gain on bargain purchase 20 - 2,623
Initial public offenng costs - (55)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment {46) {1,305)
Profit before tax and finance from continuing operations 758,528 542,225
Ftnance income 15 2,511 1357
Finance expense 15 {68,205} (41,568)
Non-operating foraign exchange losses 12 (1,934} {3.888)
Profit before tax 690,900 498,126
Income tax expense 18 {(115,964) (73 0D2)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 574,936 425124
Profit attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc 567,822 422,906
Non-controlling interssts 7,114 2,218
574,936 425,124
Earnmings per share
Bastc (US cents) 1”7 97 09 7234
Diluted {US cents) 17 96 97 72 24
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Yaar anded
Ussoco Jnzn 331210
Profit for the year 574,936 425,124
Exchange differances on translating foreign operations (3,0249) 533
Incoma tax effect - -
Exchange differences ansing on hedging of fereign operations (894) 110
ncome tax effect 153 27
Net (losses)/gains on avalable-for-sale investments (1,868) 1,915
Income tax effact 437 (465}
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {5.196) 2,066
Total comprehensive income for the year, nat of tax 569,740 427,190
Total comprehensive income attnbutabts to
Equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc 562,883 424,923
Non-controling interests 6,857 2,267
569,740 427,190
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at Agat

[ k) Hoes EIRF AL Jriag
Assets
Property, plant and equipment i 924,690 647 137
Goodwill and other mtangible assets [LEG] 103,240 102 317
hwestmeants in associates 4 19,186 21,132
Avalablo for sale finanuat assets 0 1,200 3356
Qther non-current assuls 21 93,258 24 767
Deferred tax assets FI¥) 23,426 13,495
Total non-current assets 1,165,190 812,204
kwentonas Fd 117,046 104,827
Trade and other recawvables 2+ 128,808 111890
Prapayments and other cuirant aesets 25 22,720 18 922
Income taxes recoverable and prepand " a4 35
Other taxes recoverable and propaid ma 172,951 104,824
Cadsh and cash equivalants 890,154 319470

1,332,160 659,968
Asaels Clasullied as held [or sale 1,845 3,149
Total currant assets 1,334,005 663 117
Total assets _ 2,499,195 1 475,321
Equity and ltabilities
Issusd capital £ 121,628 121628
Share premstim 28 185112 185 112
Other reserves 24 [348,603) (J44 420)
Rotained earungs 1,414512 885353
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc 1,372,649  B47 673
Non-controlling interests 20,480 13 801
Total equity 1,393,129 861474
Interest-beanng loans and borrowngs m 951,430 401 290
Behned benetl pensan bty 1l 13,329 17 819
Prowvision for site rastoration v 3,015 2745
efarred tax habilihes 22 2,232 2,432
Total non-current habilities 970,006 424 287
In.erast-baanng loans and borrowngs 2 18,048 22 563
Trade and other payables a0 42,648 88 089
Accruad habiites and dalerred) micome -0 29,713 23 174
Income taxes payabla , 26 36,674 41,841
Cther taxes payable EX] 8,077 13923
Total current liabilities 136,060 189,560
Total tiabilities 1,106,068 613,847
Tot.alvquuy and liabilities 2,499,195 1475321

fhe ficanoal slaterne nbs wire gpproved by Rie Boaed of Oreetors oa 13 Masch 2012

Kostyantin Zhevago @\/}L\/ Christopher Mawe
| . [ 1 t 1 1 1

ETIN
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Yaar ended

Year snded

LUS$000 Notes 31211 311210
Profit before tax 690,900 498,126
Adustments for

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets 41,003 30.415
Interest expense 15 62,321 41,568
Under recovery cf VAT receivable 26 - 10,936
Interest Income 15 {2,511) {1,357)
Share of Income of associates 12 {2,012) {4,155)
Movement in allowance for doubtful recevablaes 24 {2,406) (3,685)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 46 1,305
Write-offs and imparment losses 1a 478 1,618
Site restoration provision az 269 1,478
Employee benefits a1 1,069 3,281
1PO costs - 55
Share-based payments 38 891 1,366
Gan on bargan purchasea from business combination 40 - (2,623)
Operating foreign exchange losses 12 1,360 1.078
Non-cperating foreign exchange losses 12 1,934 3 888
Operating cash flow before working capitat changes 793,342 583,295
Changes in working capital

Increase in trade and other recevables (17,391) (74,020)
Increase In invantories {12,220) (42 938)
{Decrease)/increase In trade and other accounts payable {9,788) 11,215
Increase in VAT recoverable and other taxes prepad’ 26 {72,051) (31,062)
Cash generated from operating activities 681,892 446 490
Interest paid {43,266) (25 437)
Income tax paid 26 (132,176) (37.827)
Post-employment benefits paid {3,741) (3,468)
Net cash flows from operating activities 502,709 379,758
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18 (378,302} (186,775)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Purchases of intangible assets 19 {2,092) (B33)
Interest raceived 2,067 1270
Proceeds from Ioans to associates 21 1,000 1,550
Dwidends from associates 2,207 2,831
Cash payment for acquisition made in 2010 a0 {38,045) -
Pre-acquistion loans provided a0 - (10 881)
Acguisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 40 (390) 582
Net cash flows used In Investing activities (413,555) (171,956)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings and finance 952,260 688,802
Repayment of borrowings and finance (410,027) (505,359
Arrangemsnt fees paid {21,021) {21,074}
Dhwvicends paid to equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc {38,663) {41,744}
Dvicends paid to non-controlling shareholders (880) (47}
Net cash flows from financing activities 481,678 100,578
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 570,832 308,380
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 319,47 11,991
Currency translation differences {149) {301)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year? 27 890,154 319,470

1 The movement w1 the prior year ncludes effect of VAT receivable amounting to US$72 318 thousand which was recoversd through VAT bongs See nota 26 for further delals

2 Tha prior year balance of cash ang cash equivalents includes rastricled cash of US$37 768 thousand
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Employes Nest
Uniting of Traasury  bonefit trust unrealised Non
Issuad Share ntarest share resarva gains Teanslation Total controlling
capital pramium reserve raserve {Note 28 raserve reserve Retanad  capiatand interasts Total

US3$000 (Note 28) (Note 28} [Nate 28} {Note 28) and 38) (Nota 28} (Nate 28) aarnings rasarves Nola 1) aguity
At 1 January 2010 121628 185,112 31,780 (77.260) (11593) 1,114 (291,899) 501,175 460,057 11387 471,444
Profit for the penod - - - - - - - 422,908 422906 2,218 425,124
Other comprehensive

nceme - — - - -~ 1,401 616 - 2,017 49 2,066
Total comprehensive

income for the period - - - - - 1,401 616 422806 424923 2,267 427,190
Equity dvidends paid

to shareholders of

Ferrexpo plc - - - - - - - (38,581) (38581) - (38,581)
Share-based payments

(note 38) - - - - 1,421 - - - 1,421 - 1,421
Adjustments relating to the

decrease in non-controlling

interests! - - - - - - - {147) {147) 147 -
At 31 December 2010 121,628 185,112 31,780 (77,260) (10,172) 2,515 (291,283) 885,353 847,673 13,801 861,474
Profit for the penod - - - - - - - 587,822 567822 7,114 574,936
Other comprenansive

income - - - - - (1,431) (3,508} - {4,839 (@57) (5,196)
Total comprehensive

income for the peniod - - - - - (1 431) (3,608) 567,822 562883 6,857 569,740
Equity dividends paid

to shareholders of

Ferrexpo plc - - - - - - - (38,663) (38663 322} (38,985)
Share-based payments (note

38) - - - - 756 - - - 756 - 756
Effect from acquisition of

subsichary - - - - - - - - - 144 144
At 31 December 2011 121,628 185,112 31,780 (77,260} {9,416) 1,084 (294,791) 1,414,5121,372,649 20,480 1,393,129

1 Transfer of sharahoidings 1n subsidianes resulted i changs of non controling Interests
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Corporate information

Organisation and operation

Ferrexpo plc (the ‘Company’) 1s incorporated in the United Kingdom with registered office at 2—-4 King Street, London, SW1Y 8QL, UK
Ferrexpo plc and its subsiuianes (the ‘Group’) operate a mine and processing plant near Kremenchuk in Ukraine, an interest in a port n
Odessa and sales and marketing actvities In Switzerland, Dubal and Kiev The Group also owns a logrstic group located in Austrna which
operates a fleet of vessels operating on the Rhine and Danube waterways The Group's operations are vertically integrated from ron ore
mining through to ron ore concentrate and pellet production and subsequent logistics The Group's mineral properties lle within the
Kremenchuk Magnetic Anomaly and are currently beng exploited at the Gorishne-Plavninsky and Lavrikovsky deposits These deposits
are being jointly mined as one mining complax

The majority shareholder of the Group 1s Fevamotinico S ar| (‘Fevamotinico’), a company ultimately owned by Thae Minco Trust, of which
Kostyantin Znevago, the Group's Chief Executive Officer, 1s a beneficiary At the time this report was published, Fevamotinico held 51 0% (31
December 2010 51 0%) of Ferrexpe plc's tssued share capital The Group's operations are largely conducted through Ferrexpo ple's pnncipal
subsidiary, OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining and logistics for Western Europe are managed through the Helogistics subsidianes The Group
comprises of Ferrexpo ple and 1ts consolidated subsidiares as set out below

Country of 31zn 311210
Name INCOrporaton Principal actlaaty % %
QJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining' Ukraine Iron ore mining 973 97 3
Ferrexpo AG? Switzerland Sale of iron ore pellets 1000 1000
DP Ferrotrans? Ukraing Trade, transportation services 973 973
United Energy Company LLC? Ukraine Helding company ar3 97 3
Ferrexpo Finance plc (formerly Ferrexpo UK Limited)! England Finance 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Services Limited' Ukraine Management services & procuremsnt 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Hong Kong Limited' China Marketing services 1000 1000
LLC Ferrexpo Yenstovo GOK? Ukraine Iron ora mining 1000 1000
LLC Ferrexpo Belanovo GOK* Ukraine Iron ore mining 1000 1000
Nova Logistics Limited? Ukraina Service company (dormant) 510 510
Ferrexpo Middle East FZE® UAE Sala of ron ore pellets 1000 -
Ferrexpo Singapore PTE Limited® Singapore Marketing services 1000 -
Helogistics Holding GmbH® Austria Holding company 1000 1000
EDDSG GmbH? Austna Barging company 1000 1000
DDSG Tankschiffahrt GmbH3 Austria Barging company 100 0 100 &
Helogistics Transport GmbHS Austria Barging company 1000 1000
Mahart Duna Cargo Kft 3 Hungary Barging company 1000 1000
Pancar Kft ® Hungary Barging company 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Port Services GmbH’ Austna Port services 1000 -
Helogistics Asset Leasing Kft 7 Bungary Asset holding company 1000 -
Ferrexpo Shipping International Limited? Marshall Islands Holding company 1000 -
Iron Destiny Limited® Marshall Islands Shipping company 1000 -
Transcanal SRL® Romania Port services 776 -

DO & LR -

Ferrexpa Middla East FZE

W~

Tha company was acquired on 1 O¢tober 2011

The Group s interest in these antilies 15 held through Farexpo AG

Farraxpo AG was the holding company of the Group until as a result of the pra IPQ restructuring Ferrexpo plc bacama the holding company on 24 May 2007
The Group s intsrest in thase antities 1s hald through QJSC Farrexpo Poltava Mining

Tha Group § interast in this entity 1s held through both Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Sarvice Limited
Ths Group s interest in these entities are heid through Farraxpo AG Helogistics Holding GrbH and s subsichanes were aeguired in Decamber 2610
Baoth subsidianaes ware ncorporated in March 2011 The Group s intarest in Ferrexpo Middle East FZE 1s hald by Fermexpo AG whereas Ferraxpo Singapore PTE Lid 18 a subsichary of

Tha sl ware incorporated in April 2011 and December 2011 The Group s interest is held lhrough Helogistics Holding GmbH
The subsichanes were incorporated on 14 July 2011

The Group also holds an interest of 48 6% (2010 48 6%) in TIS Ruda, a Ukrainian port located on the Black Sea As thus 1s an associate,
1t1s accounted for using the equity methed of accounting and further disclosed in note 14

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Ferrexpe plc and its subsidianies have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted by the Eurppean Union (EL) IFRS as adopted by the EU differs in certain respects from IFRS as
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board [IASB’) However, the consolidated financial statements would be no different had
the Group applied IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB, as It applies to accounting penods ended 31 December 2011
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting pohcies continued

The consolidatad financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, except for post-employment benefits and avallable-for-
sale financtal instruments, the latter measured at farr value in accordance with the requirements of lAS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recognition
and measurement’, the formsr measured in accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits” The consolidated financial statements are presented
In thousands of US Daollars and all values ars rounded to the nearast thousand except where otherwise indicated

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group's annual financial statemants for the year ended 31 December 2010, except for those changes detailled In note 3

Basis of consolidation

The consohdated {financial statements comprisa the financial statements for Ferrexpo plc and its subsidianes as at 31 December
each year The financial statements of the subsidianes are prepared as at the same reporting date as Ferrexpo plc’s, using consistent
accounting policies

Subsidianes acquired are fully consolidated from the date of effective control, when the Group obtans effective control Simiarly, subsidianes
disposed of are deconsohdated from the date on which the Group ceases to hold effective contral

All ntercompany balances and transactions including unreafised profits ansing from intra-group transactions have been elminated in full
Unrealised losses are ekminated unfess costs cannot be recovered

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 January 2010

On the acquisition of a subsidiary, the business combination Is accounted for using the acquisiion method The cost of an acquisition 1s
measured as the aggregated amount of the consideration transferred, measured at the date of acquisiton The consideration paid 1s allocated
to the assets acquired and labihties assumed on the basis of farr values at the date of acquisiion Acquisition costs are expensed when
incurred and ncluded in general and administrative expenses

If the cost of acquisition exceeds the identifiable net assets attnbutable to the Group, the difference 1s considered as purchased goodwill,
which i3 not ameortised but annually revewed for impairment or in case of an indication of mpairment In the case that the identifiable net
assets attnbutable to the Group exceed the cost of acquisition, the difference 1s recogrised in profit and loss as a gain on bargan purchase
For each business combination, the Group measures the non-controling interest in the acquiree either at far value or at the propoertionate
share of the acquiree’s identfiable net assets If the INtial accounting for a business combination cannot be completed by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, onty provisional amounts are reportad, which can be adjusted during the rmeasurement
penod of 12 months after acquisition date

After mitial recognition, goodwill s measured at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses Detalls to the mpairment testing are given in
section Imparment testing of assets on page 96

Business combinations pnor to 1 January 2010
The following accounting treatment was appled for business combination pnor to 1 January 2010 In companson to the above-mentioned policy

Transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acguisition were considered as acquisition costs and had an impact on the goodwill calculation
Tha non-controlling interest (formerly known as minonty interest) was measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identfiable
net assets

Busingss combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps and any additional acquired share of interest did affect
either previously recognised goodwill or profit and loss in case of a bargain purchase

Similar procedures are applied in accounting for the purchase of interests 1 associates

Investments in associates
The Group's mvestments In associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting An associate 1s an entity in which the Group
has significant influsnca ang whichis naeither a subsidiary nor a joint venture

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate s carmed in the statement of financial positon at cost plus post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of net assets of the associate Goodwill relating to an assoaate 15 included in the carrying amount of the investment and
15 not amortsed nor indmdually tested for mparment  After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it 1s necessary to
recognise any additional imparment loss with respact to the Group's investment in the associate

Tha share of profit of an associate 1s shown on the face of the Income statement This 1S the profit attributable to the Group and therefore 1s
profit after tax and ron-controlling interests in the subsidianes of the associate
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
The reporting dates of the associates and Ferrexpo plc are identical and the associates' accounting policies are generally n conformity with
those applied by the Group

Functional and presentational currencies

Based on the economic substance of the underiying business transactions and circumstances relevant to the parent, the functional currency
of the parent has been determined to be the US Doilar, with each subsidiary determining its own functional currency based on its own
circumstances The Group has chosen the US Dollar as 1ts presentational currency and QJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining ithe principal
subsidiary) has determined that its functional currency is the Ukrainian Hryvnia

Foreign currency translation

For individual subsidiary Company accounts, fransactions in foreign currencies (1 e other than the functional currency) are recorded at the rate
ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency
at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and non-monetary assets and liabiities at the historic rate Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation are recognised in tha income statement

For presentation of Group consolidated accounts, if the functional currency of a subsidiary 1s different to the presentational currency as at the
reporting date, the assets and liatxiities of this entity are translated into the presentational currency at the rate ruling at the reporting date and
the income statement 18 translated using the average exchange rate for the penod The foreign exchange differences ansing are taken directly
to a separate component of equity On disposal of a feraign entity the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to the
particular foreign operation 1s recognised in the Income statermeant

Revenue recognition
Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow 1o the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured The following specific recognition criteria must also be met befare revenue 1s recognised

Sale of goods including peflet sales
Revenue 1s recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and can be reliably measured

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods provided in
the normal course of businass, net of discounts, customns duties and sales taxes Risks and rewards of the ownership of goods passes when
title for the goods passes to the customer as determined by the terms of the sales agreement The sales ars typically made under the
following terms

CIF (Cost Insurance and Freight),

CFR (Cost and Freight),

DAP (Delivery At Place), or

FOB {Free on Board)

Under the CFR and FOB terms the title passes on the bill of lading date whereas under the other terms revenue is recognised when goods
arrive at agreed destination or at border crossing

If the sales agreement allows for adjustment of the sales pnces based on survey of the goods by the customer (e g ore content) the revenue Is
recognised based on the maost recent determined proguct specification

Other sales
Other sales include the processing and sale of ore and ore concentrats, the sale of spare parts, materials and erushed rocks and the repair
and rental of rallway wagons

Logistic services
Revenue from logistic services rendered 1s recognised as the services are completed Where services are invoiced in advancs of discharge,
armounts attnbutable to the tme between the end of the reporting period and the discharge date are deferred

Rendering of services
Revenua from the rendering of services 1s recognised when services are complete Sales of services pnmarily include repars, canteen
revenue and recharges to local customers for elecinicity consumption and railway usage

Rental income
Rentat ncome ansing from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-ine basis over the lease terms

Foreign exchange gans and losses

Foreign exchange gamns and losses are reported on a net basis Operating foreign exchange gains and losses are those items that are directly
related to the production and sale of pellets (e g trade receivablas, trade payables on operating expenditure) Non-operating gains and losses
are those associated with the Group's financing and treasury activiies (& g interest-beanng loans, cash and cash equivalents)
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Finance income and expense

Finance income compnsas interast ncome on funds invested interest income 1s recognised as It accrues in the ncome statement using the
effective interest method

Finance expenses compnse the interest expense on borrowings and other financial 1abiities

Taxes

Current income lax

Current tax assets and habilities for the current and prior penods are measurad at the amount estimated o be recovered from or pad to
the taxation authernies The tax rates and tax laws used to computs the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax 1s prowded using the llability method on temporary differences at the reporting date betwean the tax bases of assets
and habilities and ther carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax labiles are recognised for alf taxable temporary differences, if it 1s probable that they become taxable, except

= where the deferred tax liatylity anses from the initsal recogrition of goodwill or of an asset or lability In a transaction that 15 not a
busingss combination and, at the me of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

n nrespect of taxable temporary differences assccoiated with investments in subsidianes, associates and interests in joint ventures,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the tempoarary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeabls future

Deferred Income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utdised, except

® whera the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the snitial recognition of an asset or liability
In a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss, and

s nrespect of deductible temporary differences assocated with investments in subsiciaries, associates and interests in joint venturas,
deferred tax assets are recognisad only to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxahle profit will be avalable against which the tsmporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be avariable to alfow all or part of the deferred income 1ax asset to be utlised Unrecognised deferred income
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered

Deferred income tax assets and labiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 1s realised or the
llability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date

Income tax on items recognised directly in equity 1s recognised i equity and not in the income statement

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable nght exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and the same taxation authonty

Valus added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recogrused net of the amount of vatus added tax { VAT'), except

= where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services 1s not récoverable from the taxation authonty, in which case VAT Is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition ¢f the asset or as part of expense item as applicable, and

®» racewvables and payables ars stated with the amount of VAT included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 1s disclosed in the note 26 to the financial statemenis

VAT recevable balances are not discounted unless the overdue balances are expected to be recened after more than 12 months following
the period end Where intentions have bean communicated officially that VAT repayments, which are due, are to be converted into bonds
or other financial instruments, these are valued at the estimated market value of such instruments wath any adjustment charged to the
Income staterment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Equity

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of Ordinary Shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Employee benefit trust reserve

Ferrexpo plc shares held by the Group are classified in capital and reserves as the ‘employee benefit trust reserve’ and recognised at cost
Consideration receved for the sale of such shares 1s also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the
original cost taken to revenue reserves No gain or loss 1s recognised on the purchase, 1ssue or cancellation of equity shares

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired {treasury shares} are recognmsed at cost and deducted from equity No gain or loss 18
recognised In the Income statement on the purchase, sale, 1Issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments  Any difference
betwsaen the carrying amount and the consideration 1s recognised In other capital reserves

Financtal assets
Derwvative financial instruments
The Greup dees net hold any dervative financial instruments

Nen-dernvative financial instruments

Non-derwvatve financial instruments compnse nvesiments in equity and debt secunties (promisscry notes), trade and other recevables, cash
and cash eguivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and cother payables Non-dervative financial nstruments are recognised at fair value
{being the far value of the consideration given or received) plus any directly attrbutable transaction costs

All regular way purchases and sales of financial asssts are recognised on the trade date (e the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the assat) Regular way purchases or sales are those that require delivery of assets within the penod generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace

The Group has not designated any financial assets as at farr value through profit or loss { FVTPL}

Loans and receivables

Loans and recetvabies are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market Such
assets are carnied at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and losses are recognised in income when the loans and
recevables ara derecognised or impaired along with the amortisabon process

Available-far-sale financial assets

All investment, except for investments In assoclates are accounted for as avalable-for-sale  Available-for-sale financial assets are those
non-derivatve financial assets that are designated as avallable-for-sale or are not classified as loans or recevables, held-to-maturnty
Investments or financial assets at FVTPL

After initial measurement, avallable-for-sale financial investments are subseguently measured at farr value with unrealised gains or lossaes
recognised as cther comprehensive income In the available-for-sale reserve until the investment 1s derecogrised At this tme, the cumulative
gain or loss 1s recognised in other operating income, or determined to be imparred, at which time the cumulative loss 1s recognised in the
income statement in finance costs and removed from the avalable-for-sale reserve

The farr value of Investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets 1S determined by reference to qucted market bid pnces at
the close of business an the reporting date  For invaestments where thare 1s no active market, the far value 1s determinad using discounted
cash flow analysis

Other
Other nen-dervative financial nstruments are measured at amorttsed cost using the effective interest mathod less any impairment losses

Financial hatnhties

Tradle and other payables

Trade and other payables are recagnised and imitially measurad at cost Subsequently, instruments with a fixed matunity are remeasured at
amortised cost using the effective Interest rate method Armortised cost is calculated by taking into account any transaction costs and any
discount or premium on settlement Financial babiiies which do not have a fixed matunty are subsequently carmed at far vaiue
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continuad

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recegnised at the far value of the consideration received less directly atinbutable transaction costs After
imitial recogrition, nterest-beanng loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interast method
Gains and losses are recognised in the income staternent when the lliabiliies are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 1s imparred

Assets carned at amortised cost

If thera 1s objective evidence that animparment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss 1s measured as the aifference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows {excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effactive interest rata i e the effective nterast rate
computed at initial racogmiion) The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced erther directly or through use of an allowance accourt The
amount of the loss Is recognised In the ncome statement

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indmdually for financal assats that are indwdually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not indwidually significant If 1t 1s detarmined that no objective evidence of impairment
exsts for an ndmdually assessed financial asset, whether significant or nat, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit ngk charactanstics and that a group of financial assets 1s collectively assessed for impairment Assets that are ndwvidually assessed for
Impairment and for which an impairment loss 1s or continues to be recognised are not included In a collective assessment of Impairment

It, n a subseguent penod, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related abjectively to an event occurring
after the mpairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed Any subsequent reversal of an imparment loss 1s
recognised in the ncome statement to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date

Available-for-sale financial assets
For avalable-for-sale financial mvestments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 objective evidence that an investment
or a group of Investments Is impaired

In the case of equity Investments classified as avalable-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged declne in the farr
value of the investment below its cost Where there 1s evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the
acguisition cost and the current farr value, less any mparrment loss on that investment previously recognised in the iIncome statement) is
removed from other comprehensive iIncome and recegnised In the income statement

Imparment losses on equity Investments ars not reversed through the income statement, Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive Income

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contans, a lease 1s basad on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, 1 e
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangernent conveys a nght to use the
asset, even it that right I1s not specified in an arrangement

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the nsks and bengfits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitahsed at
the commencement of the lease at the farr value of the leased property or, If lower, at the present value of the mimimum lease payments

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease hability so as to achieva a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the llabiity Finance charges are recognised in the iIncome statement

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful Ife of the asset However, If there 1s no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 15 depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful ife of the asset and the lease term

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-ing basis over the lease term

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantally all the nsks and bensfits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating

leases Intial direct costs incurred N negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogrised over
the lease term on the same bases as rentalincome Contingent rents are recognised as ravenue in the penod in which they are eammed
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Borrowmg costs

Berrowing costs directly atinbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarly takes a substantal period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets All other borrowing costs are
expensed In the penod they occur Bormowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all qualifying assets where construction was comimenced on or after 1 January 2009 All other
borrowsng costs are recognised in profit or 10ss 10 the penod in which they ara incurred

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, nst of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated imparment losses, if any Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition critena are met The cost of self-constructad assets includes the cost of matanals, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of
production overheads

Upon recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are dmvded into compeonents, which represent items with a significant value that can
be allocated to a separate depreciation penod Overhaul costs also represent a component of an asset Assets are Iniially recogmsed in
assets under construction and then transferred to the appropnate categones on completion

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when they are expected to be used during more than
one period Expenditure ncurred after the assets have been put iInto operation, such as reparrs and maintanance and overhaul costs, are
normally charged to the Income statement in the peniod the costs are incurred In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure results in future economic benefits, the expenditure 1s capitalised as an addiional cost

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its estmated useful life which 1s calculated with due regard to both its own physical ife
hmitations and the present assessment of economucally recoverable reserves of the mine property at which the item 1s located Estmates of
remaining usaful lives are made on a regular basis for all mine buldings, machinery and equipment, with annual reassessments for major
itens Changes in estmates, which affect urit of production calculations, are accounted for prospectively

Except for mining assets which are depreciated using the unit of production method, depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-ine basis over
the estimated usetul life of the asset, as follows

»  Buildings 20-50 years
u Vessels 30-40 years
& Plant and equipment 3-15 years
= Vehicles 7-15 years
®  Fixtures and fitings 25-10years

Anitem of property, plant and equipment I1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anse from the
continued use of the asset Any gamn or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) I1s included 1n the income statement in the year the item is derecognised

Assets in the course of construction are captalised as a separate component of property, plant and equipment On completion, the cost of
construction 1s transferred to the appropriate category Assets under construct:on are not depreciated

On acguisition, the cost of property, plant and equipment 13 capitalised on the statement of financial positicn Depreciation commences when
the item 1s avallable for use Freehold tand 18 not depreciated

Stripping costs included in mining assets and assets under construction

Stripping costs In relation to mine exploration, evaluation and development costs Incurred up to the commencemant of the production
are included in assets under construction Stnpping work compnses overburden removed at the pre-production, mine extension and
production stages

After the commancement of production, the respective pre-production stnpping costs are transferred fo mining assets and depreciated using
the unit of production method based on the estimated economically recoverable reserves to which they relate

The production stnpping costs are generally charged to the income statement as vanable production costs Tha production stripping costs
are only capitalised if the stripping activhies are related to a bettarment of the mining property and the duration of the future benefits is
ascertaned without a high degree of judgement f capitalised, the production stripping costs are included in mining assets and depreciated
using the sarme methodology as for the capitalised pre-production stnpping costs (see above)

The cost of removal of the waste matenat dunng a ming’s production phase 1s expensed as ncurrad
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Intangible assets

Geodwilt

The policies apphied for the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of goodwil are descrabed under Goodwall and other intangible
assets and Business combination on page 96 and page 121 respectively

Other intangible assets

Otherintangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recogrution at cost The cost of other intangible assets acquired n a
business combination is its farr value as at the date of acquisition  Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

The useful lives of other intangble assets are assessed as either finite or indefirite

Amortisation
Other intangible assats, other than goodwil, pnmarnly compnse capitaised software costs, which are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useiul Iife of the asset, ranging between one and three years

Capitalised mineral icences are amortised on a unit of producton basis

Imparrrment of assets (excluding financial assets)

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 18 an indication that an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists, or
when annual imparment testing for an asset 1s required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's raecoverable amount If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 1 wrtten down t01ts recoverable amount In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a market-determined pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nsks specific to the asset Impairment losses of continuing
operations are recognised In the income statement Rafer to note 19 for details on the mparrment testing of goodwill

An assessment is mads at each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indication that previously recognised iImpairment l0sses may no
longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 1s estimated A previously recognised impairment loss
15 reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to deterrmine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment lass
was recognised If thatis the case, the carrying amount of the asset 1S Increased to 1its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogrised for the asset in
prior years Such reversal 1s recognised in the ncome statement After such a reversal the depreciation charge 1s adjusted in future pericds
to allocate the assat’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaning useful ife

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 1S not reversed 1N a subseguent penod

Inventones
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition 1s accounted for as follows

» Raw matenals - at cost on a first-in, frst-out basis

= Finished geods and work In progress — at cost of direct matenals and labour and a proportion of manufactunng overheads based on
normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

The net realisable value 1s the estmated selling price 1n the erdinary course of business, less estmated costs of completien and the estimated
costs necessary o make tha sale

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past avent, it 1s probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rehable estmate can be made of the amount
of the obligation

The amount recogrised as a provision 1s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present cbligation at the end of the
reporting penod, taking info account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the obkgation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount 1$ the present value of those cash flows Where discounting 1S usad, the
increasa in the provision due to the passage of time 18 recognised as a finance cost

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a recaivable s
recognised as an asset if 1115 virtually certain that rembursement will be receved and the amount of the recevable can be measured rehably
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Site restoration costs

Site restoration provisions ara made I respect of the estimated future costs of closure and restoration and for envirenmental rehabilitation
costs {determined by an independent expert) in the accounting pericd when the related environmental disturbance occurs Tha provision
is discounted, If mater:al and the unwinding of the discount i1s included in finance costs At the time of estabhshing the prowision, a
corresponding asset 1s capialssed where it gives rise to a future benefit and depreciated over future producton from the mine to which

it refates

The provision ts rewewed on an annual basis for changes in cost estmates, discount rates or the Iife of operations

Pension obltigations and other employee benefits

Costs relatng to these plans are accrued in the consolidated financial staternents using the projected unit credit method In respect of those
employees entitled to such payments Management defines the underlying assumptions required by actuanes to calculate the hability of the
retrement obligation at each reporting date

Gans and lossss resulting from the development of the defined bensfit obligations and market valuas of plan assets are recognised when the
cumulative unrecognised actuanal gains or losses for the scheme exceed 10% of the defined banefit obligation for unfunded plans and the
higher of planned assets/obligation for funded schemes These gains or losses are recognised as Mcome or expense over the expected
avarage remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan

The past service cost 1s recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average penod untl the benefits become vested
if the benafits are already vested iImmediately following ths introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, the past service cost ts
recognised immediately

The defined benefit pension liability 1s the aggregate of the net funded status (present value of the defined benefit abligation less plan assets)
and actuanal gains and losses and past service costs not yet recognised

Numerous amendments made to 1AS 19 'Employee bensfits’ will become effective as of 1 January 2013 The most fundamental change of
the numerous amendments made to IAS 19 15 tha removal of the so-called ‘cormdor-approach’ requinng to recognise all actuanal gains and
losses from the rerneasurement of the defined benefit obligation and the market values of the plan assets n other comprehensive iIncome 1N
ths current penod (sea note 3 for further detalls)

Details to the pension schemes within the Group are provided in note 31

Earnings per share
The basic number of Ordinary Shares 1s calculated based on the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue, excluding shares held
In treasury

Far the current and pnor year pertods, basic EPS 1s calculated by dmding the net profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity shareholders
of Ferrexpo plc by the number of Ordinary Shares as defined above The number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue excludes the shares held by the
Employea Benefit Trust and the treasury sharas held by the Group Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the number of
Ordinary Shares in 1ssue on the assumption of conversion of ali potentially dilutive Ordinary Shares All share awards are potentially dilutive
and have been included in the calculation of diuted eamings per share

Share-based payments

Equity-settied transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees s measured by reference to the far value at the grant date and Is recogrused as an
expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award Far value is
determined by reference to the quoted closing share price on the grant date

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, except for market conditions

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultmatsly vest, except for awards where vesting 1s dependent upon a market condition
In these cases, the awards are treated as vesting irespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, prowidad that all other
performance condittons are satisfied

At sach reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense 1s calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod has expired
and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditons and of the number of equity Instruments that will
ulbmately vest The movement in cumulative expense since the previous reporting date s recognised in the ncome statement, with a
corresponding entry in equity
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs}

The LTIPs are share-based schemes whereby certain senior management and executives receive rewards based on the relative Total
Shareholder Return (TSA } outperformance of the Group compared with a group of companies, which operate within a similar environment
The cost of equity-settied awards 1s measured as descnbed above together with an estimate of future social security contnbutons payable in
respect of this value Where the granting of an LTIP 1s subyect to the satisfaction of certain market conditions, a vesting charge 1s recognised
Irrespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

Where awards terminate before the performance period 15 complete, any unamortised expense IS racognised immediately

Note 3- New accounting policies
The accounting policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous year, except for the adopton of new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2011

None of the new and amended standards or interpretations affected the reported results and financial positions The adoption of the
standards or interpretations 1s descnbed below

IAS 24 Related party disclosures {Amendment)

The revised standard was 1ssued In Novernber 2009 and becarmne effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011 The
changes of the rawised standard wers made to smphify the disclosure requirements for government-related entities and clarify the defirution
of a related party The adoption of this revised standard did not have an impact on ths financial posiien or periermance of ths Group

1AS 32 Financial instruments presentation (Amendment)

The amended standard was 1ssued in October 2009 and becama effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 The
amendrnent to IAS 32 addresses the classfication of nghts 1ssues and will affect future nght 1ssues offered for a fixed amount In a foreign
currency This amendment did not have an impact on the financial position or performanca of the Group

IFRIC 14 Prepayment of a minimum funding requirement (Amendment}

Tha amendment to IFRIC 14 became effective for financial years beginnuing on or after 1 January 2011 The amendment provides guidance on
assassing the recoverabla amount of net pension assets and permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as
asset The application of this amendment did not have mpact on the financial statements of the Group

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial habihties with equity instruments (New)

The new interpretation became effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and addresses the accounting by the entity that
Issues equity Instruments in order to settle, In full or in part, a financial lability The adoption of this interprataton did not have an effect on the
financial statements of the Group

impravements to IFRSs (1Issued May 2010)

In May 2010 the IASB 1ssued its second omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarnly with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clanfying wording There are separate transitional provisions for each standard The adoption of the following armendmaents resulted in
changes to accounting policies, but did not have any impact on the financral position or performance of the Group

1AS 1 Presentation of financial statements
The amendment requires presenting an analysis of components of other comprehensive ncome erther in the statement of changes in equity
or In the notes to the financial statements The Group discloses the analysis in note 28

Other amendments resulting from iImprovements to the following standards and interpretations did not have an impact on the accounting
polictes, financial positton or performance of the Group

IFRS 3 Business combinations

IFRS 7 Financial mstrurnents disclosures

IAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements

IFRIC 13 Custorner loyaity programmes
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 3 New accounting policies continued
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has elected not to earty adept the following revised and amended standards

IAS 1 Financial statement presentation — presentation of items of other comprehensive tncome

The amended standard was 1ssued In June 2011 and becomes effectiva for financial years Deginning on or after 1 July 2012 The amendment
requires to group iterms in other comprehensive Income based on whether they will be potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss at a future point
of time or whether they will never be reclassified The Group does not Intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption and will
evaluate the mpact of the new disclosure requirement

IAS 12 Income taxes — recovery of underlying assets

The amendment to IAS 12 in respect of the deferred taxes investment property measured at far value The amendment replaces the
current requirement of IAS 12 to determine the expected manner in which an asset’s carrying amount would be recovered with a rebuttable
presumption that the carrying amount would be recovered entirely through sale This amendment was 1ssued in December 2010 and 1s
effective for annual pariods begnring on or after 1 January 2012 This amendment will have ne impact on the Group's financial posiiion
and performance

IAS 19 Employee benefits

The most fundamental change of the numerous amendments made to IAS 19 1s the removal of the so-called ‘comdor-approach’ requinng to
recognise all actuanal gains and losses from the remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation and the far values of the plan assets in other
comprehensiva iInceme in the current penod This amendment will affect the Group's financial position and performance as well as the
presentation of the defined benefit obligation The Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption of the
numerous amendments made to IAS 19 that becomes effective for annual periogds beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The removal of the
‘corrider-approach’ under the amended standard wilk result in the recognition of unrecognised actuanal losses and past service costs totalling
to US$51,815 thousand as defined pension obligation in the financal year 2012 (comparative penod)

IFRS 7 Financial instrurments disclosures — enhanced derecognition disclosure requirements

The amendment to IFRS 7 was rssued in October 2010 and requires the disclosure of information that enables the users of the financial
statements to understand the relationship between transferred financiat assets that are not derecognised in thetr entirsty and the associated
habilities as well as o evaluate the nature of associated nsks and continuing involverment in the derecognised financial assets The amendment
becomes effective for annual perods beginrung on or after 1 July 2011

IFRS 9 Financial instruments classification and measurement

The IASB has issued the first phase of IFRS @ that will replace IAS 39 The new standard applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets as defined in |1AS 33 The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The adoption of the first phase
of IFRS 8 might have an effect on the classification and measurernent of the Group's financial assets The Group will quantfy the effact in
conunction with the other phases, when 1ssued, to present a comprehensive picture The IASB will address classification and measuremenit
of financial habifities, hedge accounting and derecognition in separate phases and the completion of the new standard 1s expected {0 be in the
first half of 2012

IFRS 10 Consofidated financial statements

The new standard provides additonal guidance to assist in the determination of which entities are controlled and are required to be
consolidated This standard replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consclidated and separate financial statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements The standard becomes effective for annual penods baginring on or after 1 January 2013 and the Group
does not intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption The impact on the accounting for its associated company TIS Ruda
will be assessed

IFRS 11 Jomnt arrangements

The new standard replaces |AS 31 Interasts in joint ventures and SIC 13 Jantly-controlled entiies — non-monetary contributions by venturers
and becomsgs sffactive for annual penods beginming on or aftar 1 January 2033 The standard defines contractually agreed shanng of control
of an arrangement and ths accounting for joint operations and joint ventures The Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility
of an early adoption and will review (ts arrangements i place i order 1o evaluate the potential impact

IFRS 12 Disclosure of involvernent with other entities

The new standard covers the disclosures that ware previously required in consolidated financial staternents under |1AS 27 Consolidated and
separate financial statements as well as those included in 1AS 31 Interests in joint ventures and IAS 28 Investments in associates The Group
does not Intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption, but expects that a number of additional disclosures will be required
under the new standard

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The new standard becomes effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and provides guidance on how to measure farr
value under IFRS and when far value s required or permitted  The Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early
adopton and 1s currently assessing the impact of the new standard on nts financial position and performance
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Note 3: New accounting policias continued

IFRIC 20 Stnpping costs i the production phase of a surface mme

The new interpretation covers the accountng for the necessary removal of mine waste materials \n order to gain access to the minerat

ore deposit dunng the production phase of a mine The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting and sepaiation of the costs

of stripping actvities resulting in the production of inventory in the current penod or improved access to further mineral ore deposits that
will be mined In future penods The new inferpretation applies to annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The Group does not
ntend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption and is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial
position and performance

Note 4: Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make esttmates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financral statements and accompanying notes These estimates are based on
information avallable as at the date of authcnsing the consolidated financial staterments for Issue  Actual results, therefore, could differ
from those estimates

In particular, information about significant areas of estmation, uncertainty and critical jJudgements made by management In preparing the
consolidated financial nfermation are descrbbed n the following notes

Property, plant and equipment

The determination of farr value and value-in-use requires management to maks estimates and assumptions about expected production

and sales volumes, commodity prices (considenng current and historical prices, price trends and refated factors), reserves, operating costs,
closure and rehabilitation costs and future capital expenditure These estimates and assumptions are subject to nsk and uncertanty, hence
there 1s a possibiity that changes in crcumstances will alter these projections, which may impact the recoverable amount of the assets

In such circumstances, some or all of the canrying value of the assets may be impawed and the impairment would be charged against the
income statement The total of property, plant and equipment amounted to US$924,690 thousand as of 31 December 2011 (2010
US$647,137 thousand)

Pre-production stnpping costs

Overburden and other mine waste materials have to be removed prior to the production of the mine in order to gain access to the iron ore
body These actvities are referred to as pre-producton stripping costs and are capitalsed under assets under construction The pre-
production stnpping costs are capitalised based on calculations which require the use of judgement and estimates in terms of estmated
tonnage of overburden and waste matenal to be removed dunng the life time of the mine and the expected recoverable reserves that can be
extracted Tha change of the mine plan {Iife and design) in the future may result N changes to the expected stnpping ratio (waste to mineral
reserves ratio) and require adjustment of the capitalised pre-production stripping costs At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of
capritalised pre-production stnpping costs was US$151,393 thousand {2010 US$61,243 thousand)

Imparrment testing of goodwill and intangible assets

As outlined In note 19 the impaument testing of goodwillis based on significant judgements and assumptions made by the management
when performing the annual impairment testing of these non-current assets Changes to be made to these assumptions may alter the results
of the mparment testing, the impairment charges recorded in profit or loss and the resutting carrying values of the non-current assets tested
The carrying amount of the goodwill amounted to US$98,453 thousand as of 31 December 2011 (2010 US$98,747 thousand)

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the farr valus of financial assets and labiiities recorded in the statement of financial positon cannot be derved from active markets,
they are determined using valuation tachniques ncluding the discounted cash flow modeal The inputs to these modsls are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required In establishing far values The
Judgements iInclude constderations of inputs such as hquidity nsk, credit nsk and volathty Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported far value of financial nstruments  Detalled inforrmation an the carrng amounts of financial assets and labilities
are given in note 37

Defined benefit pension hability

The valuation for defined benefit superannuation schemes requires management to make judgements as to the nature of benefits provided
by gach scheme and thereby determine tha classification of each scheme For defined bensfit schemes, management Is required to make
annual estmates and assumptions about future retums on classes of scheme assets, future remuneration changes, employee attntion rates,
administration costs, changes in benefits, inflation rates, exchange rates, Iife expectancy and expected remaning penods of service of
smployees In making these estmates and assumptions, management considers advice provided by external adwisers, such as actuaries

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of defined benefit pension liabiity was US$13,329 thousand (2010 US$17,819 thousand)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 4 Use of estimates continued

Provision for site restoration

The Group's accounting peolicy for the recognition of site restoration provisions requires swgnificant estimates and assumptions such as
requirements of the relevant legal and regulatory framework, the magnitude of possible contamination and the timing, extent and estimated
future costs of required closure and rehabilitation activity These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the
armounis currentty provided At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of the provision for site restoration amounted to US$3,018 thousand
(2010 US$2,746 thousand)

Deferred income tax

The Group's accounting policy for taxation requires management’s jJudgement in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certan deferred
tax labibities are recognised on the statement of financial positon Deferred tax assets, including those ansing from unrecouped tax losses,
capital losses and temporary differences, are recognised only where it 1s considerad more ikety than not that they will be recovered, which 1s
dependent on the expectad generation of sufficient future taxable profits A deviation between expected and effective future taxable profits in
the different local junsdictions may have an adverse impact on the recognised deferred tax batances in the consclidatec financial statements
of the Group

Assumptions about the generation of expected future taxable profits depend on management's estimates of future cash flows These depend
on estimates of future production and sales volumes, commodity prices, reserves, operating costs, closure and rehabilitation costs, capital
expenditure, dividends and other capital management transactons Judgements are also required about the application of income tax
legrslation These judgements and assumptions are subject to nsk and uncertainty, hence there 1s a possibility that changes in circumstances
will alter expectatons, which may impact the amount of recognised deferred tax balances in the consolidated financial staterment of the Grroup
and the amounts of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised In such circumstances, some, or all, of the carrying
amount of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may reguire agjustment, resultng in a cerresponding credit or charge to the income
statement At 31 December 2011, the Group’s consolidated financial statements showed deferred tax assets of US$23,426 thousand (2010
US$13,495 thousand) and deferred tax liabilihes of US$2,232 thousand (2010 US$2,432 thousand)

Note 5: Segment information

The Group 1s managed as a single entity which produces, develops and markets its pnncipal product, iron cre pellets, for sale to the
metallurgical industry While the revenue generated by the Group 1s analysed, there are no separate measures of prcfit reported to the
Group's Chief Operating Decision-Maker (‘CORM’) In accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’, the Group presenis its results in
a single segment which are disclosed in the income statement for the Group

The management monitors the operating result of the Group based on a number of measures including EBITDA, 'C1’ costs and tha net
financial ndebtedness

EBITDA
The Group presents EBITOA because it believes that EBITDA is a useful measure for evaluating its ability to generate cash and its
operating performance The Group's full definiicn of EBITDA 1s disclosed in the Glossary on page 129

Year ended Year andad
Us$o0s Motes izn 311210
Profit before tax and finance 758,528 542,225
Under recovery of VAT recevable bic] - 10,936
Write-offs and imparment losses 13 478 1.618
Lossas on cisposal of property, plant and equipment a6 1,308
Initial pubhic offering costs - 55
Share-based payments 38 891 1,366
Gain on bargamn purchase 40 - {2,623)
Depreciation and amortisation 41,003 30,415

EBITDA 800,946 585,257
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Note 5 Segment information continued

‘C1' costs

‘C1' costs represents the cash costs of production of iren pellets from own ore dvided by production votume of own ore, and excludes
non-cash costs such as depreciation, pensiun costs and inventory movements, costs of purchased ore, concentrate and proauctcn cost
of gravel

Yaar ended Yaar andad
US$000 3tz 11 311210
Cast of sales - pellet production 600,790 481 857
Depreciation and amortisation {28,639) (24,662)
Purchased concentrate and other items for resale {102,808} (101,351}
Processing costs for purchased concentrate {7,873) {11,042
Production cost of gravel (572) {88)
Inventory movements 431 18,6808
Pension service costs 5,334 (2 049)
Other {7,099) (2,754)
C1 cost 459,514 358,519
Own cra produced {tonnes) 9,063,398 9 033 000
C1 cash cost per tonne {US$} 5070 39 69

Net financial indebtedness
Net financial indebtedness as defined by the Group comprises cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, interest-beanng loans and
borrowings and amounts payable for equipment

Year endad Yoar endad
US%000 Notas 311211 311210
Cash and cash equivalents 27 B90,154 319,470
Current borrowings 29 (18,948) (22 563)
Non-current borrowings s {951,430) (401,290}
Net financial indebtedness (80,224) (104,384}

Disclosure of revenue and non-current assets
The Group does not generate significant revenues from external custorners attributable to the country of demicite The information on the
revenues from external customers attnbuted to the indmdual foreign countries 1s given in note 8

The Group does not have any significant nan-current assets that are located in the country of domicile of the Group The vast majonty of the
naon-current assets are located in Ukraine

Note 6 Revenue
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Year anded Year endad
58000 EREED 311210
Revenue from sales of ron ore pellets and concentrate
Export 1,699,154 1,288,665
Ukraine 742 453
Total revenue from sale of iron ore pellets and concentrate 1,699,896 1,289,118
Revenue from logistics and bunker businass 73,276 -
Revenueg from services provided 4,002 674
Revenue from other salas 10,748 5,108

Total revenue 1,788,012 1,294,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 6 Revenue continued

Export sales of ron ore pellets and concentrate by geographical destination wera as follows

Yaar ended Yaar ended
us$000 3tzn 311z10
China 569,924 320,572
Austria 453,586 405,511
Serbia 158,687 156,806
Slovakia 121,041 143,478
Czech Republic 118,793 a9 235
Japan 88,875 45,318
Turkey 83,722 82,168
India 47,119 14,153
Germany 28,898 24,833
Hungary 27,509 16,575
Other - 18
Total exports 1,699,154 1,288,665
During the year ended 31 December 2011 sales made to three customers accounted for approximately 50 2% of the sales revenue
{2010 62 5%}

Sales made to two customers individually amountad to more than 10% of the total sales These are disclosed below

Year ended Yagr endad
US5000 3tz 311210
Customer A 453,586 405 511
Customear B 279,728 300284
Note 7 Cost of sales
Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2011 consistad of the following

Year anded Yaar andad
US$000 32N 311210
Materials 75,246 67 661
Purchased ora and concentrate 102,908 101,351
Electricity 121,364 101,528
Personnel costs 51,677 47,930
Spara parts and consumables 20,968 16,616
Dapreciation and amortisation 28,639 24,662
Fuel 47,343 31299
Gas 63,485 48,236
Repairs and maintenance 63,801 45 230
Rovyalties and levies 10,437 8,489
Cost of sales from logistics business 23,363 -
Bunker fusl 25,391 -
Inventory movemants (481} (18,608)
Other 15,403 7,463
Total cost of sales 549,544 481,857

Year ended Year andad
55000 3112 1% 311210
Cost of sales — pellet production 600,790 481,857
Cost of sales - logisiics and bunker business 48,754 —
Total cost of sales 649,544 481,857
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Note 8 Selling and distnbution expenses
Seling and distnbution expenses for the year ended 31 Cecember 2011 consisted of the following

Yaar ended Yea ended
US3000 3izn 311210
international freight for pellets 119,572 74,885
Rallway transportation 89,185 81,451
Port charges 37,724 31,339
Other pellet transportation costs 13,453 11,892
Costs of logistics business 36,671 -
Gravel delivery costs 1,783 1,816
Advertising 5,911 3,472
Depreciation 8,231 1,757
Other 4,421 4,494
Total seliing and distribution expenses 317,951 212,006
Note 9 General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Yaar endad Vear anded
USECC0 31211 311210
Parsonnel costs 26,912 26,362
Bulldings and maintenance 2,182 2,475
Taxes other than incomea tax and cther charges 1,480 1,581
Professional fees 7,799 4,840
Depreciation and amortisaton 3,968 3867
Communication 1,149 899
Vehicles maintanance and fuel 1,553 1,222
Repairs 1,365 815
Audit fees 1,445 1,094
Non-audit fees 510 1,385
Security 1,859 1,613
Other 1,747 3.012
Total general and administrative expenses 51,969 49,175

Auditor remuneration

Auditor remuneration paid 1n respact of the audit of the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary companies and for the provision of

other services not In connection with the audit s disclosed below

Year endad Yoar endad
ussoon 311211 311210
Audit services
Farrexpo plc Annual Report 741 680
Subsidiary entities’ 704 414
Total audit services 1,445 1,094
Non-audit services
Tax advisory 139 80
Assurance related servicas 117 102
Other services? 254 1,213
Total non-audit services 510 1,395
Total auditor remuneration 1,955 2,489

$  The prior year balance dees not include the agrasd feas for audit services in relation to Helogistcs dua ta the first consohdation as of 31 December 2010 The agreed fees of US$246 thousand 1s

however included in the amount of the hatxhires essumed for the acquired group  See note 20 for further detalls
2 Other services for the yaar ended 31 December 2010 inciude fees pad for due dilgenca sarvices and assurance services related o raising new debts for the Group
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 10: Other income
Other iIncome for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Year ended Year ended
us$000 M1z 311210
Sale of surplus maintenance spares 2,334 2,908
Lease ncome 1,597 762
OCther income 3,012 844
Total other iIncome 6,943 4515

Note 11: Other expenses
Other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Yaar endad Year anded

US3000 nz2n 311210
Community support donations 12,393 4,418

Movements in aliowance for doubiful recevables (2,406} (3.689)
Research 362 658
Other personne! costs 1,962 1,551

Other 4,780 2,086
Total other expenses 17,091 5,938

The allowance for doubtful receivables relates to recevables from certain customers in Russia and other former CIS countries recorded in the
fimnancial year 2008 Following a stabilisation in the markets durning the financial years 2010 and 2011 the recarded allowance has been partally
reteased in both reporting penods

Note 12 Foretgn exchange gains and losses
Foreign exchange gains and losses for the yaar ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Year anded Year ended
Us$000 nzn J1i1210
Operating foretgn exchange losses
Revaluation of trada raceivablas 252 222
Revaluation of trada payahlas {t,612) {1,300}
Total operating foreign exchange losses {1,360) {1,078)
Non-operating foreign exchange losses
Revaluation of interest-bearing loans (102) 258
Revaluation of cash and cash equivalents 605 {767)
Other {2,437 (3,379)
Total non-operating foreign exchange losses {1,934) (3,888)

Other non-operating foreign exchange losses were pnncipally refated to the revaluation of income tax payables (n Swiss Francs

Note 13 Wnte-offs and impairment losses
Imparment losses refate to adjustments made aganst the carrying value of assets where this is fugher than the recoverable amount
Write-offs and impairment losses for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Year endad Year anded

Us$o0c Notes m2n 3131210
Write oif/reversai} of inventories 105 (254}
Write-off/revarsal) of property, plant and squipment 175 {251)
Imparment of available-for-sale financial assets 20 198 2123

Total write-offs and impairment losses 478 1618




Note 14 Investments in associates
As at 31 December 2011 investrnents in associates comprnised
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As at As at

Couniry of Ownarship anizn 311210

Principal actvily INGOrporation % US5000 US5000

TIS Ruda Port developmant Ukrane 48 6 19,186 21,132
For the year ended 31 December 2011 the summansed financial information for the associate was as follows

Total assels Total tabilitres flavenus Net profit

Asat As at As at As at Yaar anded Year enced Year anded Year endled

UsSE000 izn 311210 1211 311210 KiRERk) 311210 anizn 311210

TIS Ruda 25,993 26,648 4,936 1,840 22,205 18,486 4,032 8 326

The information above 1s for 100% of the associate named and not as a parcentage based on Group's ownarship The movement in the
investment In the year represents the Group's share of profit of US$2,012 thousand in TIS Ruda (2010 US$4,155 thousand} TIS Ruda
paid a dvidend amounting to US$2,207 thousand duning the financial year 2011 2010 US$2,831 thousand} 1o the Group

TIS Ruda operates a port on the Black Sea which the Group uses as part of its distnbution channel

Note 15 Finance income and expense
Finance ncome and expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Yoor endad Yaar ended
US5000 FAREAL 311210
Finance iIncome
Interest income 2,505 1,357
Qther finance revenue 6 ~
Total finance iIncome 2,511 1,357
Finance sxpense
Interast expense on financal labiiles measurad at amortised cost (46,376) {24,509}
Interest on defined benefit plans (5,765) (3,416}
Bank charges {14,885) (12,694}
Other finance costs {1,179} (949}
Total finance expenses {68,205) {41,568}
Net finance expense {65,694} (40 211)
Bank charges include arrangement fees charged in relation to the Group's mayor bank debt facility
Note 16 Income tax expense
The income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2011 consisted of the following

Year anded Yeoar anded
US$006 311211 31210
Current iIncome tax
Current income tax charge 125,689 73,700
Amounts under provided in previous years 150 270
Total current Income tax 125,839 73,970
Deferrad income tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {10,788) {4 494)
Effect from changes in tax laws and rates 913 3,526
Total deferred Income tax (9,875) (968)
Total income tax expense 115,964 73,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 16 Income tax expense contnued
Other comprehensive income contained taxes on the following items charged or credited to it for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2011

Year ended Yoar ended
US3000 H1ZNn 311210
Exchange differences ansing on hedging of foreign operations {153) 27
Net losses/{gains} on avallable-for-sale investments {437) 465
Total Income taxes charged to other comprehensive income (590) 492

A breakdown of the deferred tax balances s contaned in note 22

The effective Income tax rate differs from the corporate income tax rates The weighted average statutory rate was 15 3% for 2011 (2010
13 1%) This 1s calculated as the average of the statutory tax rates apphcable in the countries in which the Group operates, weighted by the
profits/{losses) before tax of the subsidianes in the respective countries, as included in the consolidated finangial information The seffective
tax rate 1s 16 8% (2010 14 7%)

A reconcihation between the Income tax charged in the accompanying financial nformation and income before taxes multipled by the
weighted average statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2011 15 as follows

Year ended Yoar ended

uss3oon 311211 311210
Profit before tax 690,900 498,126
Notronal tax computed at the weighted average statutory tax rate of 15 3% (2010 13 1%) 105,531 635 254
Derecogrution of deferred tax asset (30) (802)
Effect from difference in local tax rates 722 3526
Effect from utiisation of non-recognised deferred tax assets {781) (274}
Effect from capitalised tax loss carry forwards (63) (293)
Expensas not deductible for tax purposas 9,186 7,338
Tax exempted Income {912) (623}
Non-recognition of deferred taxes on current year losses 2,284 5585
Effect from change in permanent differences - (2079)
Tax related to pnor years 150 270
Other (123) 230
Total Income tax expense 115,964 73,002

Note 17 Earnings per share and dividends paid and proposed
Basic earnings per share {'EPS ) I1s calcutated by dmding the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc
by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

Yoar ended Year antled

H A2 311210
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
Basic earnings per share (US cents) 97 09 7234
Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 96 97 7224
Underlying earnings for the year
Basic earnings per share (US cents) 97 47 7268
Diluted earnings per share (US cents} 97 35 7291

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the {ollowing data

Year ended Year encad

Thousand nzn arizio
Weighted average number of shares

Basic number of Qrdinary Shares outstanding 584,811 584 568
Effect of gitutive potential Ordinary Shares 730 854

Diluted number of Ordinary Shares outstanding 585,541 585,422
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Note 17 Earnings per shara and dividends paid and proposed continued
The basic number of Ordinary Shares 1s calculated by reducing the total number of Ordinary Shares in issue by the shares held in treasury
{refer to note 28)

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjustng the weighted average number of Ordimary Shares in issue on the assumption of
corversion of all potentially ditutive Ordinary Shares All share awards are potentizlly cilutive and have been included in the calculation
of diluted earmings per share

‘Underiying earnings’ i1s an alternative earnings measure, which the Diractors beleve provides a clearer picture of the underlying financial
performance of the Group's oparations Underlying earnings 1s presented after non-controlling interests and excludes adjusted tems
The calculaton of underlying earnings per share 1s based on the foflowing earnings data

Yeouor snded Year andad

US8000 Motes EIRFARI 311210
Profit attributable to equity holders 567,822 422 306
Write-offs and impairment losses 13 478 1.618
PO costs - 55
Gain on bargain purchase a0 - (2 623)
Losses on disposal of property plant and equipment 46 1,305
Non-operating foreign exchange losses 12 1,934 3.888
Tax on adjusted tems {282) {346)
Underlying earnings 569,998 426 803

Adjusted items are those items of financial performance that the Group believes should be separately disclosed on the face of the income
statement to assist in the understanding of the underlying financial perfarmance achieved by the Group Adjusted items that relate to the
operating performance of the Group include imparrment charges and reversals and other exceptional items Non-operating adjusted items
include gains and losses on disposal of Investments and businesses and non-operating foreign exchange gains and losses

Dividends paid and proposed

Yoor ended

US$000 311211

Dividends proposed

Final dividend for 2011 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,301

Total dividends proposed 19,301

Dividends paid during the period

Interim dividend for 2011 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,301

Final dividend for 2010 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,362

Total dividends paid 38,663
Yaar anded

USs000 311210

Dividends proposed

Finat dividend for 2010 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,289

Total dividends proposed 19 289

Divnidends paid during the period

Intenm dividend for 2010 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19 292

Final dividend for 2008 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 16,289

Total divtdends paid 38 581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 18 Property, plant and equipment
As at 31 December 2011 property, plant and equipment comprnsed

Mining Plant & Fixtures Assals under
Us$000 Land assats' Buldings Vessals equipment Vahicles and littings gonstruction' Total
Cost
At 1 January 2010 3,110 15,187 129,938 - 181,179 110,400 4,678 130,486 584,978
Additions - 1,248 5,308 - 1,691 709 318 156,501 165,775
Acquisition of subsidiaries 14 - 162 61 863 163 5 79 3,062 865 348
Transfers - 3,189 17,153 - 29,888 62,059 561 {112,850} -
Disposals - - (1,498} - 1.,797) (3 009) {1,897) {468) {8.669)
Translation differences 10 44 381 - 560 323 7 252 1577
At 31 December 2010 3,134 19,668 151,444 61,863 221,684 170,487 3,746 176,983 809,009
Additions 3,329 65 18 227 64 584 164 330,215 334,666
Acquisition of subsidianes - ~- 10 164 4 58 3 - 239
Transfers 1408 682 27 215 9 579 57 000 B9 494 1,468 (166,848) -
Disposals - - 611} (686) (1.911) (1.813) {44) (731) {5,7986)
Translation differences (11) {69) (538} {1,535} (783) {600) {(12) (530) (4,078)
At 31 December 2011 7,860 20,346 177,538 69,612 276,058 238,210 5,325 339,091 1,134,040
Deprociation
At 1 January 2010 - 801 23,376 - 77,912 27,896 2872 21 132,878
Depreciation charge - 334 7531 - 18,068 8,875 861 - 35,670
Disposals - - (772) - (1 556} (2,.593) (1.892) - {B813)
Transfers - - - - - - - - -
Impairment - - (271} - - - - 20 {251}
Translatron differences - 2 73 - 228 82 3 - 388
At 31 December 2010 - 1,137 29,937 - 94,653 34,260 1,844 LY | 161,872
Deprectation charge 3 373 8,575 4,240 21,442 16035 975 - 51,643
Disposals [tc)} - (344) - {+ 729 (1 650} {39 - (3.765)
Transfers - - 293 - (168) (21} (104) - -
Impairmant - - 186 - - - (1 175
Translation differences - {4) {112) - (334) (120) (5} - {(575)
At 31 December 2011 - 1,506 38,535 4,240 113,864 48,504 2,671 30 209,350
Net book value at
31 December 2010 3134 18,531 121 507 61,863 127 031 136,227 1,902 176,942 647 137
31 December 2011 7,860 18,840 139,003 65,372 162,194 189,706 2,654 339,061 924,690

1 Mining assets and assets under conslruction conshitule mine stnpping costs which are accountad kr under the Group $ atcounting pohcy culined innote 2 Capitalised pra produchicn
stnpping costs are included n assats undar construction whereas the producton Stnpping COsts ara shown undar miNing assets

The carrying value of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at 31 December 2011 was USS7,792
thousand (2010 US$27.457 thousand} Duning the year, a sale and lease-back transaction for assets of plant and equipment was completed
and 1s considered to be a finance lease No gain or loss was realised on the sale of the assets subject 1o this finance lease Leased assets and
assets under huwre purchase contracts are pledged as security for the related finance lease and hire purchase habilities

LIS$128,624 thousand (2010 US$88,498 thousand) of property, plant and eguipment have been pledged as secunty for labiiies

The gross valus of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is stillin use 1s US$39,781 thousand (2010 US$38,847 thousand)




Note 189 Goodwill and other intangible assets
As at 31 December 2011 goodwill and other intangible assets comprised
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Other

ntangibla
usiooo Soodwil assels Total
Cost
At 1 January 2010 98,458 2,711 101,169
Additions - 633 B33
Acguisition of subsicianes - 1.837 1,637
Disposals - {63) (63
Translation differences 289 7 296
Al 31 December 2010 98,747 4,925 103,672
Effect from PPA adustments - (398) {398)
At 1 January 2011 98,747 4,527 103,274
Additions - 2,205 2,205
Acquisition of subsidiaries 56 - 56
Disposals - 3n (37
Translation differences (350) (41) (391)
At 31 December 2011 98,453 6,654 105,107
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2010 - 315 815
Amartisation charge - 203 203
Disposals - (63) (63)
Translation differences - 2 2
At 31 December 2010 - 857 957
Amaortisation charge - 931 931
Disposals - {19} (19)
Translation differences - (2) 2
At 31 December 2011 - 1,867 1,867
Net book value at
31 Decembar 2010 98,747 34968 102,317
31 December 2011 98,453 4,787 103,240

The goodwll acquired through business combinations in previous penods has been allocated for mparrment purposes to one cash-generating
unit, as the Group only has ene operating segment, being the production and sale of ron ore This represents the lowest level within the

Group at which goodwili 1s monitored for internal management purposes

Duning the financial year 2010, the Group acquired Helogistics Holding GmbH and 1ts subsidianes This resulted 1n a gain on bargain

purchase of US$2,623 thousand recognised in the iIncome statement and nct affecting the balance of capitalised goodwill as of 31 December

2010 Further detalls on the business combination are given in note 40

Goodwill from business combinations are not amortised, but reviewed for impairment losses at every balance sheet date and whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Imparment testing was performed at 31 December 2011 based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections over the remaining
estimated Iife of the mine (26 years), a common practica in the mining ndustry The cash flow projection was based on the financial budget

caovering the next four years and approved by sanior management

The major compenent of other intangible assets as at 31 December 2011 comprises purchased software
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 19 Goodwill and other intangibie assets continued
Key assumptions
The principal key assumptions are

Estimates/assumptions Basis

Future production Proved and probable reserves and resource estimates
Commodity prices Contract prnices and longer-term price estimates

Cost of raw rnaterials and other production/distributicn costs Expectad future costs

Exchange rates Current market exchange rates

Discount rates Cost of capital nsk adjusted for the resource concernad

Cash flows are projected based on management expectations regarding the development of the iron ore and steel market and the cost of
producing and distnbuting the pellets

The Company takes into account two principal key assumptions, seling price and total production costs Within this, both macro and locat
factors which influence these are considered

In determining the future long-term selling prce, the Company takes into account external and internal analysis of the longer-term and
shorter-term supply and demand dynamics in the locai regien and throughout the world along with costs of production of competitors and
the marginal cost of ncremental production in a particular market The Company considers local supply demand balances affecting its
major customers and the effects this could have on the longer-term price The assumptions for ron ore prices ranged from US$84 per
tonne to US$153 per tonne of Fe 62% fines CFR North China (2010 US$84 per tonne to US$134 per tonne)

Cost of production and shipping s considered taking into account local Inflationary pressures, major exchange rate developments between
local currency and the US Dollar, and the longer-term and shorter-term trends in energy supply and demand and the effect on costs along
with the expected movements in steel related commaodity prices which affect the cost of certan production Inputs

For the purpese of the goodwill impairment test, the future cash flows were discounted using the real pra-tax discount rate of 10% (2010
10%) per annum These rates reflect the trme value of money and nsk associated with the assat, and 15 in Iine with the rates used by
competitors with a similar background

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Management believes that due to the high value of the projects and resulting reserve base no reasonable change in the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to matenally exceed its value-in-use

Note 20 Available-for-sale financial assets
As at 31 December 2011 avalable-for-sale financial assets comprised

Ownershn GCarnyng value

As at As at As at As at
Us$o00 31z 1210 a1z 11 311210
Non-current
investments avallable-for-sale — equity Instruments
QJSC Stahanov 314% 314% 860 2,728
Vostock Ruda 110% 110% 430 628
LLC Atol 995% 9 95% - -
CJSC AMA 9 00% 9 00% - -
CJSC Amitek 900% 9 00% - -
Total non-current 1,290 3,356

All investments relate to companies incorporated in Ukraine
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Note 20 Available-for-sale financial assets contnued

Impairment testing

Ferrexpo Petroleum

The unguoted equity iInvestments in LLC Atol, CJSC AMA and CJSC Amtek, companies engaged in the exploration and development of

oll and gas fields in the Poltava Region of Ukraing, were fully impaired dunng previous financial years based on a discounted cash flow
projection The key assumptions used in this calculation wers gas/condensate pnces, gas/oll/condansate cenversion rates, production
volumes, producton costs, tax rates, projected capital expenditure, the Ukrainian Hryvrnia to US Dollar exchange rate and the discount rate

There are noindicatons at 31 December 2011 that require a reversal of any impairment losses booked in previous periods

OJSC Stahanov

The value of OJSC Stahanov decreased due to a lower guoted market price for its shares on the Ukrainian stock exchange ('PFTS') as of
31 December 2011 The decrease of the farr value In the amount of US$1,868 thousand (2010 increase of US$1,915 thousand) has besn
recorded against the net unrealised gans reserve

Further details regarding available-for-sale investments can be found in note 13 (wnte-offs and impairment losses) as well as note 34 (related
party transactions)

Note 21: Other non-current assets
As at 31 December 2011 other non-current assets compnsed

As Bt As al
Us$a00 311211 211210
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment 86,331 23,173
Loan provided to associata - 1000
Other non-current assets 7,027 593
Total other non-current assets 93,358 24,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 22 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and labiities at 31 December 2011 relate to the following

Consolidated stalemant of

financial posiicn Consolidated incoma statemant

As at As at Year anded Year anded

US5000 1211 311210 12 311210
Trade and other recevables 73 4 108 (4,019) 1,480
inventones 306 - 06 (96)
Accrued income and prepaid expenses - 294 (293) -
Property, plant and equipment 17,194 9,788 7,443 640
IPQ costs netted against share premium 227 726 (499) (499)
Tax losses recogrised 2,022 2221 {206) 293
Other financial assets 19 2 18 (104)
Trade and other payables 1 29 {29) (48}
Accrusd expenses 1,485 2.004 {511} 45
Defined bensfit pension ability 2,256 2,666 {400) (944)
Prowvision for site restoration 458 411 49 112
Other financial habilities 10 81 (K{v)] (55)
Other items 1 7 n -
Total deferred tax asseis 24,052 22 337 1,782 B24

Thereof netted against deferred tax habihties

{626) {8.842)

Total deferred tax assets as per the statement of financial position

23,426 13,495

Trade and other receivable (1,127) {1 490) 43 (992)
Inventornies - {3,952) 3,962 {1,424)
Accrued income and prepaid expensas {218) 3111} 2,896 (628)
Property plant and equipment (944) {2,479} 1,524 (224)
Intangible assets - (112) 11 266
Other non-current assets - 49} 48 101
Other financial assets (256} - {256}
Employee banafit trust (305} 49 {259) 3,045
Trade anc other payables - (29) 27 -
Lease obligations {8) 3 {3} -
Total deferred tax labilities (2,858) (11274) 8,093 144
Thereof netted aganst deferred tax assets 626 8,842
Total doterrod tax habihties as per the statement of financial positton {2,232) {2,.432)
Neot deferred tax assets/net change 21,194 11,063 9,875 068
The movement in the deferred iIncome tax balance is as follows

Yanr ended Yaar anded
u Mzt 311210
Opening balance 11,063 9934
Income statemant credit 9,875 968
Charges booked outside of profit or loss 590 {492)
Acquisition of subsidianes - 282
Foraign currency exchanga rate adjustrment (334) 371
Closing balance 21,194 11,063

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had deductible termporary differences on avallable tax 1oss carry forwards in the amount of US$82,453
thousand {2010 US$103,800 thousand) for which no deferred tax assets were recognised The vast majonty of the avaldable tax loss cary

forwards relates to the acquired logistics business in Austna and Hungary on 31 Dacember 2010 Tax loss carry forwards in both tax

Junsdictions do hot expire

Temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax habilities have not been recognised amount to

USs$582,370 thousand (2010 US$522,876 thousand)




Note 23 Inventories
As at 31 December 2011 inventories compnsed
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As at As at
US3$000 atizn 311210
Raw materials and consumables 78,111 70 440
Firnshed ora pellets 24,022 23,668
Work In progress 11,280 8,461
Other 4,063 2 580
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventory itams (430) (322
Total inventories 117,046 104,827
Inventory 1s held at the lower of cost or net recoverable amount
Note 24: Trade and other recevables
At 31 December 2011 trade and other recevables comprsed

As ot Asal
USE000 31121 311219
Trade recesvables 126,715 114,923
Other recevables 3,674 848
Allowance for doubtful recevables {1,484) (3 881)
Total trade and other receivables 128,905 111,880

Trade receivables at 31 December 2011 Includes US$3,249 thousand (2010 US$732 thousand) owed by related parties The detaled relatad

party disciosures are made in note 34

The movement in the provision for doubtful recevaibles dunng the perncd under review was

Yoar ended Yaar ended
usseoo nnzn 311210
Opening balance 3,881 6,455
Recognition 329 145
Reversal {2,735) (3 831)
Acqguisition of subsidiaries - 1,046
Fareign currengy translation 9 65
Closing balance 1,484 3.881

The following table shows the Group’s receivables at the reporting date that are subject to credt nsk and the ageing and imparrmenit

profils thereon

Asatati2 11 R R blas past dus but not impairad
Receivables  naither past
Grosa pastdus and due nor Less than 45 to 90 Cver 90
ussoco amount impaired wmpawrad 45 days days days
Trade receivables 126,715 1,218 111,285 11,268 1,337 1,607
Other receivables 3,674 266 2,250 36 27 1,095
Asat 311210 Recevables Receables past dus but not impairad
Racawvanles nather past
Gross past due and tue nor Less than 451090 Over 90
Us5000 amount imparac impared 45 days days days
Trade receivables 114,923 3,560 105,302 5,074 529 458
Other recenvables 848 3 234 104 4 185

The Group's exposures to credit and currency rnisks are disclosed in note 37
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 25 Prepayments and other current assets
As at 31 December 2011 prepayments and other current assets compnsed

As at

As at

US3000 M2 311210
Prepayments 1o suppliers
Electricity and gas 5,972 5,348
Materials and spare parts 4,833 2,606
Services 2,594 1,569
Other prepayments 59 946
Accrued income 7,660 8337
Other 1,602 116
Total prepayments and other current assets 22,720 18,922
Note 26 Taxes payable, recoverable and prepaid
The income tax payable balance as of 31 Decamber 2011 1s shown below
Asat As at
US8000 31211 311210
QOpenng balance {41,776} {1,364)
Income statement charge {125,839) {73,970}
Tax pad 132,176 37 827
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (81)
Foreign exchange adjustment (851) (4 188)
Closing balance (36,290) (41,776)
Splt by
Asat As at
US%000 Azn 311210
Income tax recevable balance 384 35
Income tax payable balance (36,674) (41,811
Income tax payable at the year end {36,290) (41,776)
As at 31 December 2011 taxes recoverable and prepaid compnsed
As ot As at
Us3000 31121 311210
VAT recewvable 172,434 102,860
Other taxes prepaid 517 1964
Total taxes recoverable and prepaid 172,951 104,824

A VAT recewvable results from VAT paid on domestic purchases of goods and services and on the import of equipment and services into

Ukraine, 1o the extent that this cannct be offset with VAT on domestic sales

Dunng the financial year 2011, FPM raceived VAT refunds in respect of 2010 and 2011 amounting to US$83 983 thousand

Following tax audits duning the year, VAT recewvables of US$26,033 thousand from May, June and July 2011 were disputed by tax authorities
FPM has challenged these amounts in the court and has won in the first Instance N respect to May amounts The June and July amounts are

currently subject to ongoing proceedings and a positive result 1s expected shortly

As a result of high capital expenditure dunng the year, and the case noted above, the Ukrainian VAT recevable balance has increased by
US$70,751 thousand to US$172,434 thousand as of 31 December 2011 Management expects this amount to be recovered within one year
through cash repayments, or for the amount outstanding to be offset against corporate profit tax payable or through a combination of the

above oplions

Further information on the Ukrainian VAT situation 1s provided in the risk section on page 36




Note 26 Taxes payable, recoverable and prepaid continued
As at 31 December 2011 cther taxes payable comprised
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As at

USs$000 zn 311210
Withholding tax 530 415
Environmental tax 2,373 1,045
Source tax 42 -
VAT payable - 4,250
Other taxes 5,132 8,213
Total taxes payable 8,077 13,923
Note 27 Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2011 cash and cash equivalents compnsed

Year ended Yaar ended
Us3000 3izn 311210
Cash at bank and on hand 799,361 251,572
Restricted cash - 37,768
Short-term deposits 90,787 30,123
Markgtable secunties G 7
Total cash and cash equivalents 890,154 319,470

The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the pravious financial year consisted of restricted cash of US$37,768 thousand The
restncted cash was released subsequent to the year end, following the payment of the net proceeds in relations to the acquisition of Helogistics

The Groug's exposure to interest rate nsk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and habilities are disclosed in note 37

Note 28 Share capital and reserves

USSCCo

Number of
shares

Balance at 31 December 2011 and 2010

121,628 613 967,956

Share capital represents the norminal value on 1ssue of the Company’s equity share capital, compnsing £0 10 Ordinary Shares

The fully paid share capital of Ferrexpo plc at 31 Decemnber 2011 was 613,967,956 Crdinary Shares (2010 613,967,956} at a par value of €010
paid for In cash, resulting in share capital of US$121,628 thousand (2010 US$121,628 thousand) per the statement of financial posibon

The closing balance as of 31 Degember 2011 and 2010 includes 25,343,814 shares which are held in treasury ana 3,744,658 shares held in

the employes benefit trust reserve (2010 4,018,759 shares)

MIIAHIAAO

MIAIY SSANISNA

JONVNYHIADD

SLNIWILVYIS TYIONVNIS



Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 28 Share capital and reserves continued
As at 31 December 2011 other reserves attnbutable to equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc comprsed

Net

Uniting of Tragsury Employes unraafised Total
nterast share henefit rust gans Trans'ation other
usEnoo reserve resarve I858ve rasarve rgserve raservas
At 1 January 2010 31,780 (77.260)  (11,593) 1114 {291,899} (347.858)
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - B43 543
Gains on avalable-for-sale nvestments - - - 1,863 - 1,863
Tax effact - - - {462) 27} (489)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - 1401 616 2,017
Share-based payments - - 1,421 - - 1,421
At 31 December 2010 31,780 (77 260)  (10,172) 2,515 (291,283} (344 420)
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - (3.661} {3.661)
Loss on available-for-sale nvestments - - - (1.868) - {1.868)
Tax sffact ~ - - 437 153 590
Total comprehensive income for the period - - — {1,431) {3.508) {4,939)
Shara based payments - - 756 - - 756
At 31 December 2011 31,780 {77,260) {9,416) 1,084 {294,791) (348,603}

Uniting of interast reserve

The uniting of interest reserve represents the difference between the intial mvestment by Ferrexpo AG In GJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining to
gain control of the subsidiary in 2005 and the net assets acquired, which under the pooling of Interests method of accounting are
consolidated at ther histonc cost, less non-controlling interasts

Treasury share reserve

Ounng September 2008, Ferrexpo pic completed a buyback of 25,343,814 shares for a total cost of US$77,260 thousand These shares are
currently held as treasury shares by the Group The Companies Act 2006 forbids the exercise of any rights (including voting nights) and the
payment of dmidends in respect of treasury shares

Employee benefit trust reserve
This raserva reprasents the treasury shares held by Ferrexpo AG setting up an employes benefit trust reserve The reserva 1s used to satisfy
future grants of shares in connection with the Iisting bonus, as well as future senior management iNcentive schemes

Net unrealised gains reserve
This reserve records far value changes on avalable-for-sale investments

Translation reserve
The translation raserve represents exchange differences ansing on the translation of non-US Doltar {a g Ukraimian Hryvoia) functional currency
operations within the Group into US Dollars

Shars premium
Share premium represents the premium paid by subscribers for the share capital 1ssues, net of costs directly attnbutable to the share 1ssue

Subsequent increases in the stake have been accounted for using the parent extension concept method of accounting as described in the
accounting policy section of the financial statements {note 2)
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This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearng loans and borrowings, which are measured at
amortised cost All loans are In US Dollars For more information about the Group's exposurs to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity

nsk, see note 37

Asat

As at

US5000 Notes 311211 311210
Current

Qthar bank loans - sscured ar 8,231 18,818
Commaodity loans a7 - 495
Obligations under finance leases a7 1,384 2832
Interest accrued ar 9,333 418
Total current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18,948 22,563
Non-current

Eurobond 1ssued ar 489,257 -
Syndicated bank loans - secured ar 420,000 341,938
Other bank lcans - secured ar 37,955 36,128
Commodity loans a7 - 1 898
Obligations under finance leases a7 4,218 21,326
Total non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 951,430 401,280
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 970,378 423,853

As at 31 Decemnber 2011 the Group has a syndicated US$420 milkon revolving pra-export finance faciity in place and a US$500 millicn

Eurobond

The revoling pre-export finance faciity was drawn in full on 7 October 2011 (31 Decambear 2010 fully drawn, in respect of the pre-export
finance faciity then existing) This finance facility 1s avallable for 60 months including a commitment amortisaion over the final 24 months

The matunty 1s 31 August 2016

The major bank debt faciity as at 31 December 2011 was guaranteed and secured as follows

» Farrexpo AG assigned the nghts to ravenue from certain sales contracts,

®  OJSC Ferrexpo Poitava Mining assigned all of its nights of certain export contracts for the pellets sales to Ferrexpo AG, and

» the Group pledged a bank account of Ferrexpo AG into which all proceeds from the sale of certain iron ore pellet contracts are
recaived

The unsecured US$500 million Eurobond was issued on 7 April 2011 and 1s due for repayment on 7 Aprl 2016 The bond has a 7 875%

coupon and interest 1s payable on a semi-annual basis

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has cther committed credit ines amounting to US$50,000 thousand (31 December 2010 US$65,000

thousand} These are undrawn at 31 December 2011

Note 30 Trade and other payables
As at 31 Decembear 2011 trade and other payables compnsed

Asat As at
Us5009 Notes Iz 311210
Matenals and services 31,033 41,616
Payables for equipment 4,401 4 307
Dnidends payable 56 31
Other 40 7,158 42,135
Total current trade and other payables 42,648 83,089

Trade and other payables at 31 December 2011 includes US$3,965 thousand (2010 US$3,243 thousand) due to related parties (see note 34)
included in the balanca of other payables as of 31 December 2011 1s a lability of US$37,768 thousand in relabon to an acquisition made in

December 2010 (see note 40}

The Group's exposure to currency and quidity nsk retated to trade and other payables 1s disclosed in note 37
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 31 Defined benefit pension liability

Ukraiman defined benefit plan

The Group makes defined contnbutions to the Ukrainian State Pension scheme at statutory rates based on gross salary payments for the
employees of OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining and LLC Ferrexpo Yenstovo GOK Such expenses are charged to the income statement in the
penod the related salanes are earned The Group has also a legal obligation to compensate the Ukrainian State Pension Fund for addittonal
pensions paid to certain categones of the current and former employees of the Group Costs relating to this plan are accrued using the
projacted unit credit method in respect of those employees entitled to such payments

Additionally, the Group has a legal cbligation to its employees (in the form of a collective agreement) to make a one off payment on retirerment
to employees with a long term of service, this has also been included in the provision

All pension schemes in Ukraing are unfunded The defined benefit pension babilities are calculated by ar independent actuary applying
accepted actuanal techmigues

At 31 Daecember 2011, this defined benefit plan covered 4,850 current employees (2010 4,786 people} Thers are 1,185 former employees
currently In receint of pensions (2010 1,193 people) Dunng the financial year 2011, the local pension legislation changad and the pension
schemas manltaned by the Group in Ukraina were amended accordingly The eligibility conditions for the pension benefits fstirement ags) are
more resinctive than beiore and the calculation of the insured salary changed The latter resulted in a reduction of benefits for the employeas
and consequently the defined bensfit pension ckligation as of 31 December 2011

Swiss defined benefit plan

The employeas of the Group's Swiss operation are covered under a collective pension plan, which 1s govemed In accordance with the
regurements of Swiss law The assets of the pension schems ara held separately from those of the Group and are invested with an insurance
company The annual pension costs and the defined benefit cbligation as well as the far value of the plan assets are assessed annually by an
ndependent professionally qualfied actuary

The accumulated capital of the employees 1S subject 1o Interests determined by the local legislation and defined in the regulation of the
pension scheme

On retrement employees are enhitled to receva either a lump sum or an annual preportion of therr accumulatad capital as a pension
underpinned by certain guarantees The Group, and In certain cases the employees maka contributions 1o the pension scheme as a
parcentage of the insured salanss and depending on the age of the employees

At 31 December 2011, this defined bensfit plan covered 28 people (2010 20 peopla)

Austnan defined benefit plan

Tha Group has an unfunded retirement benefit cbligation covering the Austnan employees of Helogistics All payments under the scheme are
made by the employer as a lump sum in casses of ratirement, occupational disability and death in service or redundancy The amount payable
15 dependent on the years of servica up to a maximum of a full annual salary

Tha annual costs relating to this plan are accrued using the projected unit credit method The annual costs and the defined benefit oblgation
ars assessed annually by an ndependent professionally qualfied actuary

At 31 December 2011, four current employees (2010 37 employess) are covered by this plan Dunng the financial year 2011, a considerable
number of employees covered by this plan wera either made redundanit or transferred to another subsidiary of the Group, so that the
eligible amounts were paid out to these participants of the plan and the defined benefit pension obligation conseguently decreased as

of 31 December 2011 These events qualify as a curtailment under IAS 19, and the resulting effects were calculated and included in the
benefit expense of tha current year

The principal assumptions usad in determining the defined benefit cbligahion are shown below

Year anded 3112 11 Year anded 311210

Swiss Austrian Ukraindan Swiss Austnan Ukrainan

schame schomse schems schemae schame schame

Discount rate 2 40% 500% 1100% 2 40% 500% 11 00%
Ratail price inflation 1 00% 250% T 00% 1 50% 280% 7 00%
Expected future salary increase 3 00% 250% 10 50% 3 00% 2 50% 7 00%
Expected futurg benefit increase 0 00% 000% 000% 0 00% 000% 0 00%
Female Wia expectancy {years) 860 n/a 745 860 n/a 745

Male hfe expectancy (years) B2.9 n/a 635 829 na B35




Note 31 Defined benefit pension hability continued
Changes in the net present value of the defined benefit obligation areg as follows

Year anded 3112 11
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Year anded 311210

Swisa Austrian Ukratnian Swiss Austnan Ukrainian

USss300 scheme scheme schema Tatal schema schama schame Total
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,634 819 53,302 56,755 2234 - 23 880 26,114
Current sarvice cost 376 51 3,381 3,808 565 - 1,291 1,856
Employee contrbution 144 - - 144 102 - - 102
Interest cost 68 40 5,657 5,765 73 - 3.344 3417
Contribution by plan participants 288 - - 288 14 - - 14
Benefits paid {203) (1,347 (3,746) {5,296} (220} - {3,468) (3,688)
Actuanal loss 467 31 28,796 29,294 (383) - 28,282 27,898
Losses/gans) on curtaiment - 277 (3,760) {3,483) - - - -
Past service cost - - (19,962) (19,962) - - - -
Termination benefits - 27 - 271 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - 819 - 819
Foreign exchangs translation adjustmeant {81) 30 (216) (267) 249 - (27) 222
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,693 172 63,452 67,317 2.634 819 53,302 56 755
Opening plan assets 1,578 - - 1,579 1375 - - 1,375
Expectad return on plan assets 69 - - 59 45 - - 45
Employer contribution 450 - - 450 309 - - 309
Employas contribution 144 - - 144 102 - - 102
Contnbution by plan participants 238 - - 288 14 - - 14
Benefts paid (203) - - (203 (220) - - (220)
Actuanal loss (109) - - (109) (194) - - {194)
Foreign exchange translation adjustment {45) - - {45} 148 - - 148
Closing plan assets 2,173 - - 2,173 1,579 - - 1,579
Nat funded status 1,520 172 63,452 65,144 1055 819 53,202 55176
Unrecognised actuanal losses {1,140) (3) {56,525) (57,668} {584) - (34.048) (34 830
Unracognised past service cost - - 5,853 5,853 - - (2 664) {2,664)
Foreign exchange translation adjustmant - - - - (63) - - (63)
Closing balance defined benefit pension

hability 380 169 12,780 13,329 408 819 16,592 17,8189
Benefit expense
Current service cost 376 51 3,381 3,808 667 - 1,291 1,958
Interest cost 68 40 5,657 5,765 72 - 3344 3,418
Amortisation of actuanal 1oss 46 {1) 3,587 3,632 68 - 496 564
Expectad raeturn on plan asssts (69) - - (69) {49) - - {45)
Recognised past sarvice cost - - (11,528) {11,528) - - 382 382
Employse contribution - - - - (102} - - {102)
Termination benelits - n - n - - - -
Losses/(gains) on curtaliment - 306 {1,116) {810) - - - -
Current year benefit expense 41 667 {19) 1,069 860 - 5513 6,173
Net movement on defined benefit pension

hability
Opening balance 408 819 16,592 17,819 18 - 14,511 14,629
Derecognition of labiity - - - - - - - -
Benefits expense 421 667 (19) 1,069 860 - 5,514 6,174
Benefits pard - {1,347) {3,746) {5,093) - - (3,468) (3 468)
Employer contribution {450) - - (450) (309) - - {309)
Foreign exchange translation adjustrment 1 30 47 (16) 39 - 35 75
Closing balance 380 169 12,780 13,329 408 819 16,592 17.818

Contnbutions to the defined benefit plans in 2012 are expected to be US$3,499 thousand
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 31 Defined benefit pension hability continued
The asset allocation of the plan assets of the Swiss scheme Is as follows

As at As at

iz As ot atizio Asat
ust000 Y 31121 % 311210
Scheme assets at fair value
Equities 220 478 215 339
Bonds 43 4 943 458 723
Properties 104 226 181 286
Other 242 526 148 23
Faur value of scheme assets 100 0 2,173 1000 1,579

Tha overall expected rate of return on assets 1s determined based on the market valus weighted expacted return applicable to the underying

asset category
Year ended Year anded
EIRFAYI 311210
Swiss Swiss
schamae schama
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Equites 431% 431%
Bonds 2.50% 2 50%
Properties 2 35% 2 35%
Other 4 92% 492%
Total 3 06% 3 06%
Actual rate of return on plan assels
Equities {7 90%) 091%
Bonds 3.24% 277%
Properties 180% 6 11%
Other (2 24%) 472%
Total {0 74%) 4 52%
The actual return on the plan assets for the Swiss scheme was a loss of US$40 thousand {2010 profit of US$63 thousand}
A change in the assumed discount rates would have the followang effects
Yesr endad 31 12 11
Increass Docrease
Swiss Austrien Ukrainian Swiss Austrian Ukrainian
schems schems
US8000 {40 25%} (+0 25%) (+1 00%) {-0 25%) {-0 25%) {-1 6O%)
Effect on the aggregated current service costs and interest costs (27) - {504) 27 - 566
Effact on the defined benefit abligation {171} {6} {6,250} 182 4 (7,415)
Year anded 3112 10
Increase Decrease
Swiss Austnan Usrarnean Swiss Austran Ux«ra rean
schemea schema schema schame schema schame
US$000 (+0 25%) {+0 25%) {+100%) { D 25%) (0 25%) {1 00%)
Effect on the aggregated currant sarvica costs and interest costs (13) - (128} 14 - 144
Effect on tha defined benefit cbligation {74) (186) 4 243) 78 17 4,931
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Note 31 Defined benefit pension hability continued
The tustory of unrecognised actuanal losses 15 as follows for the current and previous four penods

Yeor endad Year ended Year ended Year ended Yaar ancled

nzn 311210 N1208 311208 311207
Opening balance {34,630} {7,140) (6,294) (3.292) (945)
Change of assumptions on plan liabiliiies (11,116}  (13,600) 918 10 551 13,969
Experience adjustments on plan abitigs {18,178}  {14,299) (2 249) (16,770} (16,318)
Experience adjustments on plan assets {109} (194) (230) 84) -
Recognised losses 3,632 564 476 62 -
impact on curtalment 2,576 - - - -
Foreign exchange translation adjustment 157 39 239 3,239 -
Closing balance (57,668)  (34,630) (7,140) {6,204) (3,292)

Note 32- Provision for site restoration

The costs of decommissioning open pit mines are based on the amounts determined by third party experts based on vanous codes of
practice and laws applicable in Ukraine The provision represents the discounted value of the estimated costs of decommussioning and
restonng the mines at the dates when the deposits are expected to be depleted The present value of the provision has been calculated
using a nominal pre-tax discount rate of 8 47% per year (2010 9 22%) The labity becomes payable at the end of the useful life of the
ming, currently estimated to be 2055 Uncertainties in estimating these costs include potential changes in regulatory requirements,
decommissicning and reclamation alternatives and the levels of discount and inflation rates  The increase as of 31 Decembear 2011 1s
due to the extension of the expected useful lves of the mines

As at Ag at
Us$co0 arnn 311210
Opening balance 2,746 1,268
Unwind of the discount 216 133
Anising dunng the year 65 1328
Translation adjusiments {12) 17
Closing balance 3,015 2,748
Note 33 Accrued liabihities and deferred income
As at 31 December 2011 accrued liabiities and deferred ncome compnsed

As at As al
Us$000 a1z 311210
Accrued expenses 8,830 8,041
Accrued employes costs 20,836 13,030
Advancas from customers 47 801
Deferrad income - 1302
Total accrued llabilities and deferred income 29,713 23,174

Note 34 Related party disclosure

Dunng the periods presented the Group entsred into arm'’s length transactions with entities under the common control of the majonty owner
of the Group, Kostyantin Zhevago, with associated companies and with other related parties Management considers that the Group has
appropnats procedures in place to identify and property disclose transactions with the related parties

Entities under common control are those under control of Kostyantin Zhevago Associated companies relate to TIS Ruda LLC, in which the
Group helds an interest of 48 8% Thus I1s the only associated company of the Group Cther related parties are pnincipally those entities
controlled by Anatoly Trefilov and Qlexander Moroz Anatoly Trefilov is a member of the supervisory board of QJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining
whereas Olexander Moroz re-signed as supervisory board member as of 14 May 2010 All transactions taking place with the companies
controlled by Qlexander Moroz up to 31 May 2011, being within one year of his resignation from the supervsory board, are considered to
be transactions with a related party for the financial year 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 34 Related party disclosure conunued
Related party transactions enterad into by the Group during the periods presented are summansed in the folowing tables

Revenue, expenses, finance Income and expenses

Year ended 31 12 11 Year endad 3112 10
Entities
under Entties under

common Associated Other related common Associated Other reiated
us$oo0 control companias parties contral campanes parhies
Other sales ® 6,718 - 1,783 1398 - 2,263
Total related party transactions within revenue 6,718 - 1,783 1398 - 2,263
Maternals ® 4,638 - 8,475 4,232 - 14,9486
Purchased concentrate and othar items for resala © 24,891 - - 104 367 - -
Spars parts and consumables ¢ 4,726 - 256 2,794 - 278
Fuel® 7,980 - - - - -
Gas*® 15,435 - - 14,432 - -

Total related party transactions within cost
of sales 57,690 - 8,731 125 825 - 15,224
Selling and distribution expenses * - 16,674 13,470 - 7411 18 496
General and administration expenses @ 1,767 - 15 4,813 - 22
Total related party transactions within expenses 65,457 16,674 22,216  130.638 7.411 33,742
Finance income ™ 899 9 - 964 96 -
Finance expenses " {411) - - (443} - -
Net related party finance mcome 438 9 - 521 6 -

Entitios under common control

Tha Group entared into vanous refated party ransaclions with entiies under comman centrol A dascnption of the matenal transactions al of which wera carmad out on an arm s length basis in ihe
normal course of businass for the mambers of the Group (see note 1) ara isted below

a  Toling fees of US$2 622 thousand pad by Vosiok Ruda Lid 1o OJSC Farraxpo Poltava Mining for the produciion of pellets {2010 nil) Sales of power steam and water and other matenals to
Kisiorod PCC for US$2 128 Ihousand (2010 USS181 thousand)

b Purchases of comprassad ar and exygen from Kislorod PCC for US$4 033 thousand {2010 USS3 867 theusand)
¢ Purchases of concentrate and cther items for resale from Vostok Ruda Lid i the amount of US$12 728 thousand (2010 US$11 700 thousand)

¢ Purchases of merchant concentrata from Vostok Ruda Lid amounting to US$7 458 thousand (2010 US392 687 thousand) Vostok Ruta Lid earnat faes on the purchase and resale for thia
concentrate amounting 10 US$10 theusand (2010 US$140 thousand) This coverad costs incurred pvocunng and delivenng third party merchani concenirate supplied

¢ Handing commissions to SIA Wallmark Latvia amounting lo US$35 thousand (2010 US$69 thousand) for the purchase of goods
¢ Purchases of spare parts from Komsemolsk Cogeneration Company LLC in the amount of US$736 thousand (2010 nil)
d  Purchasas of spare parts from QJSC Berdichey Machine Budding Plant Progress of US$1 017 thousand (2010 nil) end

d  Purchases of spara parts from Valsa GTV of US$541 thousand (2010 USS553 thousand)
e Purchases of fusi for US$7 980 thousand (2010 adjand gas of US$15 455 thousand (2010 US$14 232 thousand) from OJSC Ukrzakardongaclogia
Purchases from FC Vorskla for advartisemeni markating and general public relation services for US$6 536 thousand (2010 USS3 313 thousand)

h  Transactonal banking serwces racewved from Bank Finance & Craedit (Bank FBC} Finance incoma and expanses relate to these transaclional banking servicas Further information s proviced
under transactional banking arrangements balow

Associated companles

The Group enterad nlo related pariy iransactons with its Associated Company TIS Ruda LLC which wera carnad out on an arm 8 fangth basis i the nomnal course of business for tha members of
tha Group (sea note {) Thasa are descnbed batow

{  Purchases of logistics senaces in the amount of US$16 674 thousand (2010 USS7 411 thousand) refating 1o port operabions including port charges handing costs agent commissions and
storags costs

Other related parties

The Group enterad inlo various transachions with othar related parties Descriplions of the matenal transactions are below

a  Sales of scrap metal to Farolt amounting to USS$1 201 thousand {2010 USS2 193 thousand) and ather sales of US$508 thousand (2010 USS30 thousand)
b Purchases of castwon gnnding bockes from Farclit for US$8 475 thousand {2010 US$14 946 thousand)

f  Purchases of logistics managemant servces from Slavutich Ruda Ltd related io customs clearance services and the coortination of rail transit Total billings amounted te US$13 470 thousand
(2010 US$1B 294 thousand) Slavulch Ruda Ltd eamed commussion incoma of US$809 thousand on these senacas (2010 USST55 thousand)

g Purchases of legal servicas from Kuom Atternays at Law LIO emounting to US$12 thousand as of 31 Dacamber 2011 {2010 US$115 thousand) No senices wara prowdad by Wolfram Kuors
diractly All sarvicas wera provided on an arm g langth basis by other members of Kuoni Allorneys at Law Lid
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Nota 34: Related party disclosura continued
Sale and purchases of property, plant, equipment and investments

Year andod 31 12 11 Year erndlad 3112 10
Entlties
undor Enti es undar
A iated Other ralated common Associated Other ralatad
US$000 control companies partias control compane3 partigs
Purchase of property, plant and equpment ' 14,655 - - 22 459 - -

Dunng the financial year 2011 the Group entered into the following transactions with related partias that waere not of a revenua naturg but wara inths normal courss of business As such these
transactons wera subject 1o an ndependen* confirmaton that the terms are far and reasonable i accordancsd with (he requirements of the UK Lising Rules Additionally in the casé of the
trensaction in respect of tha purchase of up to 1000 rai cars sharehoider approval was obtained on 13 March 2013 The fransaclions subjeci lo famess opirwon are bisted below

s« InDecembar 2011 tha Group purchased two dust filtars from O.JSC Berdichav Machine-Building Plant Progress for the péllet production plant amaunting ta US$438 thousand

= InNovernbar 2011 1he Group enteraed into another agraament wath QUSC DIOS for the precurement of engneenng design services i tha amouni of LIS$739 thousand

«  InSaptembar 2011 tha Group purchasad 12 dumper rail cars from QJSC Stabanov Ral Cars Plant in the amount of US$1 756 thousand

*  InAugust 2011 design senicas in relation o the conversion of a vassal were providad by Zaliv Stup Design LLC in the amount of US$483 thousand

= nJune 2011 project managament servicas in tha amount of US$105 thousand wera procured from Vorskla Steel Lid n connection with the construciion of sennce faciites

= InMay 2011 tnhe Group entarad into an agreement for the purchase of equipment {or tha crushing and banaficiation ptants fram CJSC ev Shipbullding and Shp Rapar Ptant (KSRSSZ) n
the amaunt of US$493 thousand Orders ware also placed for three press-filters for LISS8 991 thousang from OJSC Bergichev Machne-Budding Plant Progress

«  InApnl 2011 the Group entered nto an agresmant {or engneenng services 1o ba provided by OJSC DIOS in tha amount of LUSH1 650 thousand for the upgrade of the crushing and
concenirating equipmaent

® The purchase of 400 rall cars with an option {o purchase an additional 600 rail cars was approved by ihe general meeting of (ha sharaholders on 15 March 2011 In March and Aprd 20131
this authority was usad to purchase 112 rail cars from GJSGC Stahanov Rail Cars Plant amounting to US$7 950 thousand In October and Decamber 2011 ancther 600 ra cars ameunting lo
LIS540 BOC thousand were ordered from OJSC Stahanev Rail Cars Plant lgaving a balange stil to be purchased under this authonty of 288 rail cars for up 1¢ US334 560 thousand

Batween August and Dacemnber 2010 the Group purchased 300 rad cars from Trading House Wagonplant LLC in the amount of US$17 500 thousand and conductad dnling programmas by
QJSC Donbasgeclogy at the Northern deposit &f OJSC Farrexpo Poltava Miming and at LLC Ferrexpo Belanovo GOK amounting to US$4 959 thousand

Balances with related parties
The cutstanding balances, as a result of transactions with refated parties, for the penods presanted are shown in the table below

Yaar ended 3112 11 Year andad 311710
Entities
under Ent tias under

SOMMOn Aszscciated Othaerrslated COMMOan Aascciated Qtnar calated
UsS$000 control companies parties control companias parties
Invastments availlabls-for-sale ¢ 1,286 - - 3353 - -
Prepayments for property, plant and agquipment * 29,080 - - 182 - -
Total non-current assets 30,366 - - 3535 - -
Loans' - - - - 1,000 -
Trade and other recevables ™ 1,262 1,981 6 514 203 15
Prepayments and other current asssts ° 414 - 279 95 27 1
Cash and cash equivalents © 94,933 - - 156,807 - -
Total current assets 96,609 1,981 285 157416 1230 16
Trads and other payables P 2,151 549 515 1,563 12 1,668
Current habilities 2,151 549 515 1,563 12 1.668

Entities under comman control

)

Tha balance of tha nvestiments availabis for sale comprised of sharehold ngs in OJSG Stahanov Rail Cars Plant (3 14%) and Vostok Ruda Ltd {1 10%) The utmata beneficiary of these
compareas 18 Kostyantin Zhevago OJSC Stahanov Rail Cars Plant is furthar bsiad on the Ukrawuan siock axchange The changes of the values n tha table above ara related 1o far value
adstmants recorded dunng the raspectve reporing pencds The sharaholdings for all nvesiments remaned unchanged dunng tha panads disclosed above The investmentin LLC Atol was
subjact of an adadional mparment of US$2 124 thousand récorded as of 30 Juna 2C10 resulbing in a fullimpayrmant of this nvestment Further mformation is provided in note 18

Prepaymants of US$28 705 thousand were made lo 0JSC Stahanov Rad Gars Plant 1 relation to 1he purchase of rad cars and U5$302 thousand were mada to DIGS (2010 i) for enginearing
desgn seraces The prepad rad cars will be dalvered balween January and May 2012

As of 31 Dacember 2011 rade and other recavables included outstanding amounts due from Vorskla Steel Ltd of US$828 thousand {2010 nify in relation to othar sales and LIS$349 thousand
(2010 US$311 ihousand) from Kislarod PCC for the sale of power steam and water

Prapayments and othér current assels relate mamly to advance payments of LIS$194 thousand o OJSC Berdichev Maching Buiding Ptant Progress 2010 nd) and US$92 ihousand 10 QJSC
Uzhgorodsky Turbogas for spare parts The achance payments are in tha normal course as requested by any 1hird parly suppliersn the Ukrane

As of 31 Decermber 2031 cash ang cash equrvalents with Bank F&C wera LISS94 933 thousand (2010 USS156 B07 thousand) Further information i1s provided undsr transachional barking
arrangements balow

Trada and other payables amounhing 10 US$1 276 Ihousand are dus to Vostok Ruda Lid &3 of 31 Dacembar 2011 (2010 US$1 033 thousand) and related to purchased concenirate and
U5%535 thousand to compressed ar and oxygen purchased from Kislorod PCC 2010 US$416 thousand)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 34: Related party disclosure continued
Assoclated companies
| The rematming outstanding amount of the loans grantad te TIS Ruda LLC i 2007 and 2008 was fully repasd in March 2011

m  Other recenables consist a declared dacend due from TIS Ruda LLC in the amount of LS$1 749 thousand 2010 o}

QOther relatad parties

p Trade and other payables amounting to US$515 ihousand as of 31 December 2011 are in respact of distnbution servces prowidad by Slavatich Ruda Ltd (2010 US$373 thousand)
USE1 291 thousand of the pnor year halance of trade and other payables wera related 10 purchased matenat from Farolit

Transactional banking arrangements

The Group has transactional banking arrangements with Bank Finance & Credit (Bank F&C} in Ukraine which 1s under common control

of the majonty shareholder of Ferrexpe plc Finance mcoma and finance costs are disclosed in the table above The Group entered Into a
mulbicurrency reveiving loan facility agresment in Apnl 2007 wath Bank F&C which expired on 16 Apnl 2010 and has been extended to 16 April
2013 upon the same terms and conditons except for two changes The maximum facility kmit has been increased from UAHS50,500 thousand to
UAHB0,000 thousand (US$10,013 thousand at the exchange rats as of 31 December 2011} and the interest rates increased for Ukrainian Hryvmia
advances from 16% to 18% per annum The total value of pledges for this loan facility 1s US$10,608 thousand {2010 US$11,266 thousand)

Bank F&C provides mortgages and loans to employess of the Group for the acquisition, construction and renovation of apartments in Ukraine
This Is part of a social loyalty programme started by the Group in December 2011 allowing the employees of the Group to receve borrowings
at preferential interest rates OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining acts as a guarantor for the bank's borrowings to the employees of the Group and
thus deposited US$1,500 thousand at Barnk F&C Tha interest rate margin earned by Bank F&C covers the costs to administer the mortgages
and loans Detailed information on the social loyalty programmae 1s provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility Review section of this
Annual Report

Note 35 Employee benofits expenses
Employee bensiits expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 cansisted of the following

Yaar andad Year endad
ussooo zn 311210
Wages and salanes 63,302 53,774
Socsal security costs 21,832 17 037
Post-employment benefits (5319 2172
Other employea costs 2,810 2,186
Share-based payments a91 923
Total employee benefits expenses 83,516 78,092
Average number of employees was as follows
Year asnded Year ended
aizn 311210
Production 6,829 8 897
Marketing and distnbution 170 174
Administration 1,156 1,119
Other 966 724
Total average number of employees 9,121 8,914

Compensation for key management was as follows

Year sndad Year sndad

Us§oo0 31zn 311210
Wages and salaries 6,229 4,927
Social secunty costs 611 277
QOther emp'oyee costs 352 361
Total compensatton for key management 7,192 5,565

Share-based payments amounting to US$1,378 thousand (2010 ril) are included in wages and salanes

The balances above include compensation for Non-gxecutive and Executive Directors as well as for other key management personnel
Refer to the Remuneration Report for detals of compensation relating to Non-executive and Executive Directors
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Future mimmurn rentals payable under non-cancelable operating leases as at 31 December 2011 are as follows

USs$000

As at As at
31211 311210

Less than one year
Between cne and five years
More than five years

2,582 2,128
6,135 5.587
52,644 45 813

Total mmimum rentals payable

61,361 53,528

During the year ended 31 December 2011 US$2,037 thousand was recognised as an expense In the income statement in respect of

operating feasas (2010 US$1,076 thousand)

The Group leases land and buldings under cperating leases The leases on land typically run for 49 years, with a lease penod of 5 to 10 years

on buldings

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor
The Group does nat have any comrmitments from lease agreements acting as lessor

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows

USE000

Asat3112 1t
Preasnt
Mimmum value of
payments paymants

Less than one year
Betwaen one and five yaars
More than five years

1,924 1,384
4,906 4,218

Total mimimum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges

6,830 5,602
{1,228} -

Present value of mintmum lease payments

5,602 5,602

US35000

Asat 311210

Mirwmum  Present valug
paymeants of payments

Less than one year
Betwean one and five years
More than five years

5,389 2,832
20,142 13,162
8,245 8,164

Total mimmmum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges

33,776 24,158
(9618) -

Present value of minimum lease payments

24,158 24,158

Other

US$000

As at As at
min aizin

Capital commitments on purchase of property, plant and equipment

137,029 70,618

Legal

In the ordinary course of business, the Group 1s subject to legal actions and complaints Management believes that the ultmate lability, if any,
ansing from such actions or complaints will not have a matenal adverse affect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of

the Group

The Group I1s currently Involved in a share dispute which commenced 1n 2005 and which was disclosed and as relevant updated in the

Group's 2007 Annual Report and Accounts and subsequent IPQ and Eurobond prospectuses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 36 Commitments, contingencies and legal disputes continued
Legal continued
Relevant information and the current status of the dispute is stated below

In 2005, a former shareholder of OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining { FPM") initiated legal proceedings against certain nominee companies that
were ultimately controlled by Kostyantin Zhevago in order to seek the invaiidation of the agreement related to the sale of a 40 19% stake in
FPM sold to these nominee comparyes in 2002 The case was considerad several tmes by different courts in Ukraine A finat dacision in the
proceedings was taken by the Supreme Commercial Court of Ukraine on 21 April 2010 1n favour of the claimant so that the agreements on the
sale of the FPM shares were recognized as invalid on the grounds of formal defects under Ukrainian law On 6 October 2011, the clamants
filed a new court claim in Ukrama with the intention to invalidate the decision of the general shareholders mesting of FPM as taken place on

20 November 2002 and all subsequent sharsholders mestings decisions in order to obtain restitution to the sharebolding position as existed
before the 20th November 2002 and to register the shares in their names Cn 22 November 2011, Ferrexpe AG filed a claim against the
claimants at the High Court in London seeking a confirmation of ownership in FPM shares The claim was launched in order to take an active
step outside the Ukraine to resolve this long-running dispute

The management of the Group, after having taken local legal advice assesses the risk related to this share dispute to be remote as the claim
has no ments Neither the final decision by the Suprerme Commercial Court of Ukraine nor the subsequent Ukraimian claim entitles clamants
with direct enforcement nghts to tha shares of FPM currently owned by the Group through Ferrexpo AG  The restitution of the status guo ants
of the shareholding position as sought by clamants 1s impossible under Ukraintan law for vanous legal, technical ang practical reasons

It follows that except for related fegal costs, no provision was recorded for this dispute as of 31 December 2011

Tax and other regulatory comphance [
Ukrainan iegislation and regulations regarding taxation and custom regulations continue to evolve Legislation and regulations are not always

clearly written and are subject to varying interpratations and inconsistent enforcement by local, regionat and national authonties, and other

Governmental bodies Instances of Inconsistent interpretations are not unusual

The uncertanty of applicauon and the evoiution of Ukrainian tax laws, including those affecting cross-border transactions, create a nsk of
additional tax payments having to be made by the Group, which could have a matenal effect on the Group's financial position and results of
operations The Group does not believe that these nsks are any more significant than those of similar enterpnses in Ukraine

Note 37 Financial instruments
The accounting classification of each category of financial instrumenits, and ther carrying amounts, are set out below

Asatd112n

Financial
Avalable- At fair vatus liatnlities
tor-sale through measured at
Loans and financial profit or amortised
Uss000 Notes receivables agsets loss cost Total
Financial assets ‘
Cash anc cash equivalents 27 890,154 - - -  B90,154 |
Avallable-for-sale investments 20 - 1,280 - - 1,290 ‘
Trade and other receivables 24 128,905 - - - 128,905
Other financial assets 1,656 - - - 1,656
Total financial assets 1,020,715 1,290 - - 1,022,005
Financial iabihties
Trade and other payables %0 - - - 42,648 42,648
Accrued habiities and deferred iIncoms 3 - - - 29,666 20,666
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 20 - - - 970,378 970,378

Total financial habihities - - - 1,042,692 1,042,692
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Note 37 Financial instruments contnued

Asat 3112 10

Financial

Al farr valua habilives

Availabla for through measurad at

Loans and sala fnancial profit or amortrsed
55000 Notes racevablas asgels loss cost Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 7 318,470 - - - 319,470
Avallable-for-sale investments 20 - 3,356 - - 3,356
Trade and other receivables 24 111,890 - - - 111,890
Other financial assets 1,164 — - - 1,164
Total financial assets 432,524 3,356 - - 435,880

Financial habilities

Trade and other payables 30 - - - 88,089 88,089
Accrued habilities and deferred income 33 - - - 21,071 21,071
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 29 423853 423,853

I
i
[

Total financial hlabilities - - 533013 533013

Financial nsk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to tha following nsks from its use of financial nstruments
w creditrisk

n pquidity nsk

®  market nsk — including currency and commodity risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 1o each of the above nsks, the Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing nsk, and the Group's management of capital Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directers has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework

The Group's nsk management palicies are estabiished to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set appropnate nisk imits and
controls, and to monitor nigks and adherence to imits Risk management pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflact changes in
market conditions and the Group's activities The Group, threugh s traning and management standards and procedures, ams o develop
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand therr rales and obligations

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s nsk management policies and precedures and
reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework in relation to the nsks faced by the Group The Audt Committee 15 assisted in its
oversight role by Internal Audit Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of nsk managemant controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit Cornmittee and the CFO

The Group operates a centralised financial nsk management structure under the management of the Executive Committee, accountable to
the Beard The Executive Committee delegates certain responsibilities to the CFC The CFQO's responsibities include authonty for approving
all new physical, commarcial or financial transactons that create a financial nsk for the Group Additionzlly, the CFQO controls the management
of treasury nsks wittun each of the business units in accordance with a Board approved Treasury Policy

Finangial instrument nsk exposure and management

Natural hedges that can be identified and ther effectveness quantified are used i preference to financial nsk management nstruments
Dervative transactions may be executed for sk mitigation purposes only - speculation 1s not permitted under the approved Treasury Policy
- and are designed to have the effect of reducing nsk on underlying market or credit exposures Appropriate operational controls ensure
operational risks are not increased disproporticnately to the reduction in market or credit nsk

The Group has not used any financial nsk management instruments that are dervative in nature, or other hedging instruments, in this or
prior penods

Credit nsk

Trade and other recewvables

The Group through ts trading operations enters into binding contracts which contain cbligations that create exposure to credit, counterparty
and country nsks 1115 the pnimary objective of the Group to manage such nsks to reduce uncertainty of collection from buyers A secondary
objective 15 to minimise the cost of reducing nsks within acceptable parameters
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 37 Financial instruments continued

Trade finance 1S used to balance nsk and payment These rnisks include the creditworthiness of the buyer, and the political and economic
stabiity of the buyer's country Trade finance generally refers to the financing of Indvidual fransactions or a series of revolving transactions and
are often self-lquidating, whereby tha lending bank stipulates that a!l sales proceeds to be collacted are appled to settls the 10an, the
remainder returned to the Group Trade finance transactions are approved by the Group treasurer The pnimary objective 1s to ensure that the
margins pard and conditions apphcable should be the same as, or better than, those which other crganisations with similar credit worthiness
would achieve, and compared with other financing available o the Group

Credit nsk 1s the nisk associated with the possibility that a buyer will default, by faling to make required payments in a imely manner or
to comply with other conditicns of an obligation or agresment Where appropnate, the Group uses letters of credit to assist In mitigating
such nsks

Counterparty nsk crystalises when a party to an agreement defaults Where letters of credit are used to minimise this risk, the Group uses
a confirming bank with a similar or higher credit rating to mitigate country and/or credit risk of the 1ssuing bark

Country nsk is the potential volatiity of foreign assets, whethar receivables or wwestmants, that 1S due to political and/eor financial events in
a given country

Group treasury morutors the concentration of all outstanding nsks asscciated with any entity or country, and reports to the Group CFO on
atimely basis

Investment securihes

The Group limits its cash exposure to credit, counterparty and country risk by enly Investing in hguid securiiies and with counterparties that
are incorporated in an A+ or better (&P} rated OECD country A ratings approach s used to determine maximum exposure to each counter
party Cash not immeadiately required for production, distribution and capuital expenditures 1s invested with counter parties ratad by S&P or
Moody's at a level of long-term BBB (S&F) or short-term A3 (S&P) or better

Recognising that the principal actvities of the Group are predominantly in Ukraine, special consideration 1s given to investments with Ukraimian

counterparties Exceptions may be made under the following condittons

m the counterparty 1s resident n Ukraine, and

= ths counterparty 1s included in the Top 15 financial institutions in Ukraine based on the Group's assessment of the creditworthiness of the
financial institution

Cash and depaosits are held with the Group’s transactional bank in Ukraine, which 1s a related party financial institution Thus bank 1s registerad
with the National Bank of Ukrane for receswing and disbursing payments under Group intercompany loans, and 1s an approved Ukrainian
counterparty The Group is therefore exposed to Ukraine country nsk in this respect as well as in relation to cartain of its other activiies

Guarantees

The Group s policy 13 to provide financial guarantees under imited circumstances only o wholly-owned or substantially wholly-owned
subsidianes At 31 December 2011 Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Finance plc were jointly and severally hable under a US$420 milion toan
agreement having an outstanding balance of US$420 millon (2010 US$350,000 million)

Ferrexpo ple and Ferrexpo AG are guarantors to the US$500 millkon Eurobond ('Notas') issued by Ferrexpo Finance ple, which s due for
repayment on 7 April 2016 Additionally the Notes berefit from a surety agreement prowided by OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining

Exposure to credit sk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum axposure to credit nisk at the reporting
date was

As at As at
UE$000 3t1zn 311210
Cash and cash equwvalents 890,154 319,470
Trade and other recevables 128,905 191,890
Other financial assets 1,656 1,164
Total maximum exposure to cradit risk 1,020,715 432,524

The total recevables balance relating to the Group's top thres customers was US$53,244 thousand (2010 US$73,748 thousand) making up
57 1% of the total amounts receivable (2010 65 9%}
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Impairment profile

The Group's exposure {o credit nsk refating to trade and other recevables is disclosed in note 24

Liguichty nsk
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Liquichty sk 1s the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group’s approach 1s to ensure
that ¢ wili always have suificient iquidity 1o mest its habilites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incurnng
unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation by holding surplus cash or undrawn credit facilities

The Group prepares detaited roling cash flow forecasts, which assist it in montonng cash flow requirements and optimising its cash return on
nvestments Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand and/or ines of cradit to meet expected operattonal expensas
for a perod of 30 days, iIncluding the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme crrcumstances that cannot

raascnably be predicted, such as natural disasters

Tha following are the contractual matuntes of financial liabilties by interest type

Asat3112 11
Less than Between Betwaan

Us3c00 1 year 1to 2 yenrs 2to S ysars Total
Interest-bearing

Eurcbond i1ssued - - 489,257 489,257
Syndicated lcans - secured - - 420,000 420,000
QOther banks — secured 8,231 8,240 29,716 46,186
Cblhgation under finance lease 1,384 1,412 2,806 5,602
Interest accruad 9,333 - - 9,333
Future interest payable 51,768 51,511 118,818 222,097
Non-interest-bearing

Trade and other payables 42,648 - - 42,648
Accryed habilities and deferred income 28,663 1,003 - 29,666
Total inancial habilities 142,027 62,166 1,060,597 1,264,790

Asatdii1210
Lass than Betwaan Balween

US3c00 1 year 110 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
Interest-bearing

Syndicated loans - secured - 142,288 199 651 341 939
QOther banks — secured 19313 10,750 27 275 57,338
QObligation under finance lease 2,832 2,999 18,327 24,158
Interest accrued 418 - - 418
Future interest payable 29.812 24,305 13,703 67,820
Non-interest-hearing

Trade and other payables 88,089 - - 88,089
Accrued habiities and deferred income 21,071 - - 21,071
Total financial habihties 161,535 180342 258,956 BOG 833

Currency nsk

The Group 1s exposed to currency nsk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the respective
functional currencies of the Group Operating currencies for the Group are prmanily the Ukrainian Hryvnia, but also US Dollars, Swiss Francs,

Euro and Sterling

The Group's major ines of borrowings and the majonty of its sales are denominated 1n YS Dollars, with costs of local Ukraimian production
mainly it Hryvmia Duning the year the value of the Hryvria moved from baing pegged to a managed float

A devaluation of the Ukramnian Hryvria will reduce the operating costs of the production unit in US Dollars terms and the value of Hryvnia

payables recarded In the statement of financial position at the year end in US Dallars As the majonty of sales and recevables are

denominated in US Dollars, a devaluation n the local currency wall result in operating exchange gains recorded in the income statemant
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 37. Financial instruments continued

With 3 devaluation of the local currency, US Ooliar denominated loans held by the Ukrainian substdiary will result i non-operating exchange
losses to the extent these are not matched by US Dollar denominated assets Fixed assets are simiarly held in local currency amounts and a
devaluation In the currency will result in reduced net asset values which are recorded in reserves

The National Bank of Ukraine (NBL') manages and determines the official exchange rates An inter-bank market for exchange of currencies
exists n Ukraine and 1s monitored by the NBU The Group, through financial institutions, axchanges currencies at bank offered
rarkst rates

Trade recevables are predominately in US Dollars and are not hedged Trade payables denominated in US Dollars are also not hedged on the
market, but are matched against US Collar currency receipts This includes the interest expense which 1s principally payable in US Dollars
Trade recewvables and trade payables in Ukrainian Hryvnia are not hedged as a forward market for the currency 1s generally not available

Other Group monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foraign currencies are considered iImmaterial as the exposure to currency nisk
mairly relates to corporate costs within Switzerand and the United Kingdom

The Group's exposure to foreign currency nsk was as follows based on nohonat amounts

Asat3112 11
Ukramnian us Swiss Other

usseoo Hryvmia Dellar Eurc Franc currancies Total

Financial assets 7 73,830 19,392 487 1,027 94,743
Financial hlabihties

Qtner banks - secured - (16,930) - - {2) (16,932
Oblgation under finance lease - {5,577 - - - {5,577
Interest accrued - {43) (4 = - (47)
Total borrowings - (22,550 (4) - {2) (22,556)
Trade and other payables - {2,298) 618 (346) {1,445) (4,707)
Accrued habilities and deferred iIncoms - - - - (42) {42)
Total inancial hatilities - {24,848) (622) (346) (1,489) {27,305)
Net financial assets/{labilities) 7 48,982 18,770 141 {462) 67,438

Asal 311210
Ukrainian us Swiss Qther

USso00 Hryvria Dollar Euro Franc currencras Total

Financial assets - 111,589 38315 375 357 180,636

Financial habilities

QOther banks - secured - {(16,739) - - - (16.735)
Obligation under finance fease - (24,088) - - - (24,088)
Interest accrued - {75) - - - {75)
Total borrowings - (40,898) - - - (40 898)
Trade and cther payables - 6910) (501) (242) 67 (7,.720)
Acorued habiities and deferred income - - - -~ B1) 81}
Qther financial labilities - -~ - - 68) (68)
Total financial habilities - {47,808) (501) {242) (216) {48,767)
Net financial assets - 63,781 37.814 133 141 101,869

Interest rate nsk
The Group predominantly borrows bank funds that are at floating interest rates and 1s exposed to interast rate movements The interest rate
axposure to US Dollars remained refatively low dunng the period, and no interest rate swaps have been entered into in this or prior periods
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Note 37 Financial instruments continued
Profile
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's Interast-beanng financial instruments was

Asat31iz 11
Other
Floating Fixed non-intarest-
Us3000 intarast ntarast bearing Tatal
Financial assets
Cash and cash scuvalents 635,785 193,099 61,270 890,154
Available-for-sale investmants - - 1,250 1,290
Trade recevables - - 128,905 128,905
Other financial assets - 1,656 - 1,656
Total financial assets 635,785 194,755 191,465 1,022,005
Weighted average interest rate (%) 0 4% 07%
Financial tabilities
Trads and other payables - - 42,648 42,648
Accrued labiities and deferred income - - 29,666 29,666
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 471,475 498,903 - 970,378
Total financial habihties 471,475 498,903 72,314 1,042,692
Weighted average interest rate (%) 2.6% 7.9%
Asat 311210
Othar
Ficating non intarest
US3000 Interest  Fixed interest beanng Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 161,912 156,507 1,051 319,470
Available-for-sale investments - - 3.356 3,356
Trade receivables - - 111 890 111 890
Other financial assets - 1,000 164 1,164
Total financial assets 161,912 157,507 116 4561 435,880
Weighted average interest rate {%) 01% 17%
Financial habiities
Trade and cther payables - - 88,089 88,089
Accrued habilihes and deferred income - - 21,071 21,071
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 403 832 19,603 418 423,853
Total financial habihities 403,832 19,603 109,578 533,013

Weighted average interest rate (%) 5 7% -

The interest rate matunty profile for financial habilibes 1s shown under the lguidity nsk section The interest rats matunty profile for financial
assats 15 all current for both years, except for US$1,000 thousand of the floating rate loan to associate which matures between two to five
years as at 31 December 2010 The remaining cutstanding amount of this loan was fully repaid in March 2011

Commodity risk

The Group 1s exposed to longer-term movements in the pnce of iron ore, but does not have a commadity risk exposure to its financial assets
and llabiiies once the sale has been made Trada recevables are based on a fixed contract price, and so do not fluctuate with iron ore market
prices Similarly finished goods are held at cost, with revaluation to a spot price not applicatle for ron ore pellets, there being no tradable
exchange in the product to ascertain its market value

Sensitivity analysis

A 20% strengthening of the US Dollar against the following currencies at 31 December would have increased/{decreasead} ncome statement
and equity by the amounts shown below This assurmes that all other variables, in particular interast rates, remain constant

Note 37: Financial instruments continued
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Year andad Yaar anded

izt 311210
Income Inccme

statement/ statament/

US8000 Equity Equity
Ukraimtan Hryvna 8,164 12,756
Eurc 3,128 (7 563)
Swiss Franc 23 {27}
Total 11,315 5,166

A 20% weakening of the US Dollar against the above currencies would have an equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all the other vanables remain constant

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Greup does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilties at farr value through profit or loss, and the Group does not hold
any derivatives (& g interest rate swaps) Therefere a change In interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or [oss

Cash flow sensitivity for fixed and vanable rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis points in Interest rates would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This
analysis assumes that all other vanables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant

Year ended Year anded
UsS3000 3izn 311210
Nat finance charge 974 (2,885)

A decrease of 100 bp would increase equity and profit by US$1,682 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2011 and would have an
equal but opposite effect to the amcunt shown above for the year ended 31 December 2010 This 1s on the basis that all the other vanables
reman constant

Set out below are the carrying amounts and farr values of the Group's financial Instruments that are carred in the consolidated statement of
financlal position

Garrying amount Far valua

As at Asat As at As at
US3000 nzn 311210 EIRERI 311210
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 890,154 319470 890,154 319,470
Trade and other recevables 128,905 111,890 128,905 111,890
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1,290 3,356 1,290 3,356
Other financial assets 1,656 1,164 1,656 1,164
Total financial assets 1,022,005 435,880 1,022,005 435880
Financial habilities
Trade and other payables 42,648 88,089 42,648 88,089
Accrued labilties and deferred income 29,666 21,071 29,666 21,071
Interest-bearng loans and borrowings 970,378 423,853 986,913 423,853
Total financial habilities 1,042,602 533,013 1,059,227 533,013

The far values of interest-beanng loans and borrowings are based on the cash flows discounted using market interest rates

The far values of cash and cash equivalants, trade and other recevables and payables are approximatealy equal to their carrying amounts due
1o therr short matunty

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position
The follawing table provides an analysis of financial Instruments that are measurad subsequent to instial recognion at farr value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the farr value 1s observable

Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilties
Level 2 far value measurements are those daenved from inputs other than guoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the

asset or hability, ether directly (| @ as prices} or indirectly (| @ denved from prices)
Note 37 Financial instruments continued
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Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techniques that include iInputs for the asset or lakbility that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Asat3riz1n
ussooo Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Totat
Financial assets
Avallabla-for-sale financial assets 850 - 430 1,290
Total availlable-for-sale financial assets 860 - 430 1,290
Asal 311210
USS000 Laval 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,728 - 628 3,356
Total available-for-sale financial assets 2,728 - 628 3.356
There were no transfers between Leve! 1 and 2 in the penod
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets
Asatdiizn As at 311210
Available- Avatabla
for sale far salq
hnancial hnancial
asasls assels
Unquotad Unguotad
US$000 equities aquit as
Cpening balance 628 2,732
Total gans or losses
- in profit or loss (198) (2,104}
- In other comprehensive income - -
Purchases - -
Issues - -
Settlsments - -
Transfer out of lavel 3 - -
Closing balance 430 628

Capital management

The Board’s policy Is to maintain a strong capital base The Board of Directors monitors both the demographic spread of shareholders, as
well as the return on capital, which the Group defines as total shareholders’ equity, excluding non-controling Interests, and the level of
dwvidends to Ordinary Shareholders Please refer to the Statement of Changes in Equity for detalls of the capital position of the Group

The Board seeks to maintan a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and advantages
and secunty afforded by a sound capital posit:on The Board continues to support maintaining a sound capital base balanced against these

market constraints

The Board maintains a dmdend policy consistent with the Group's profile, reflecting the investment activittes the Group 1s making on major
projects for future production growth and the cash generated by existing operations, whilst maintaining a prudent level of dvidend cover

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidianes are subject to externally imposed camital requirements other than a bank covenant

requrement to maintain consehdated equity In respect of the Group of US$500,000 thousand including non-controlkng interests Compliance

15 ensured by balancing dividend payments against the earmings of the Group

For more information about the Group's interest-beanng loans and borrowings, see note 29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 38 Share-based payments
Long-term incentive plan (‘LTIP")
The following share awards were granted under the LTIP In the previous financial years, the LTIP vesting panod i1s three years

No [000) 2011 LTIP 210 LTIP 2009 LTIP Total
Year ended 3112 11 415 - - 415
Year ended 311210 - 330 - 330
Year ended 3112 09 - - 320 320

The LTIP 1s subject to a performance condition based on the Total Shareholder Return {TSR') compared to a comparator group, measured
over the vesting pericd, as described 1In the Director's Remuneration Report

The following expenses have been recognised in 2011 and 2010 in respect of the LTIP

US$000 2011 LTIP 2010 LTIP 2009 LTIP 2008 LTIP Total
Year endad 3112 11 592 319 198 {353) 756
Year ended 311210 178 188 557 - 923

The fair value of these awards was assessed at therr grant date using a simulation or ‘Monte Carlo® medel consistent with the mathematics
underlying the standard Black-Scholes options prcing model, extended to allow for the performance conditicns Each simulation of the model
projects the Company's and comparator's share prices (with reinvested dividends) over the vesting period, allowing for the velatiities and
correlations between the shares as estmated from histonical data From this projection the proportion of awards vesting, and the value to
employees, 15 calculated 100,000 simulations were run to calculate the fair values The farr value 1s set as the average value over all the
simulations

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
1z 311210 121 311210
WAFY (S) WAFV (8] Ne {000} Nu {000)

LTip
Beginning of the year 392 411 905 810
Awards granted during the year 428 328 415 330
Forfatted during the year 552 347 {64} (235)
Lapsed durnng the year 261 - {10} -
Vested during the year 552 - (341) -

Qutstanding at 31 December 338 392 905 905
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Note 39 Operating profit by function

Balora Before
adjusting Adjusted Ysar ended adjusting Adjustad Year andad
Ussooe Notas itams items 311211 Hams tems 311210
Revenue ¢ 1,788,012 - 1,788,012 1,294 900 - 1,294,900
Caost of sales 7 (649,544) - (549,544) (481,857} - (481,857)
Gross profit 1,138,468 - 1,138,468 813,043 - 813043
Selling and distribution expenses g (317,951) - (317,951) (212,0086) - (212,0086)
General and admunistrative expenses a (51,969) - (51,969) {49,179 - (49,175)
Other income 10 6,943 - 5,943 4,515 - 4,515
Other expenses 1 (17,091) {523y (17.614) (5,938) (11,291) (17,229)
Operating foreign axchange gain 12 (1,360) - {1,360) (1 078) - {1,078)
Operating proht 757,040 {523) 756,517 549,361 (11,281) 538,070
Share of profit of associates 12 2,012 - 2,012 4,155 - 4,155
Total profit from operations and associates 759,052 (523) 758,529 553516 (11,291) 542,225
Summary of adjusted tems
Yaar ended Year ended
US$000 Notes 311211 311210
Operating adjusting items
Under recovery of VAT receivable 26 - {10,936)
Write-offs and impairment losses 13 (478) {1,818
Gain on bargain purchase 40 - 2,823
intial public offering costs - (55
Losses on disposal of property plant and equipment {45) {1,305)
Total operating adjusting items {523) {11,291

Note 40" Business combination

Subsidianies acquired in current year

On 1 October 2011, the Group acquired 77 6% of Transcanal S R L {'Transcanal’) The consideration of US$557 thousand has been
transferred in cash to the previcus shareholders of the 77 6% stake There 1s no contingent consideration to be paid by the Group to the
previous shareholders of Transcanal Transacton costs of US$40 thousand have been incurred and expensed by the Group These costs are
in¢cluded 0 general and administrative expenses

The far value of assets acquired amounted to US$803 thousand and labiibes assumed to US$158 thousand The acquisition resulted in a
goodwill of US$56 thousand as of the date of the acquisttion The intial accounting for the acquisiton of Transcanal has been definitely
determined at the end of the reporting pencd

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest In Transcanal at the proporticnate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquireg’s identifiable net assets

Had this business combination been effected at 1 January 2011, the revenue of the Group would have been US$588 thousand higher, and
the profit for the year would have been US375 thousand higher The Directors of the Group consider these pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the combined group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for companson
in future penods
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 40: Business combination continued
Pnor year business combination

On 31 December 2010, tha Group acquired Helogistics Holding GmbH and its subsidianes (‘Hetogistics’) in order to develop the Group's
distnbution and logistics capabilities No consideration has been transferred in cash for this acquisition to previous shareholders of
Helogistics The Group acquired bank debts amounting to US$95,472 thousand for a consideration of US$38,045 thousand transferred in

cash to the lending banks

The accounting for the acquisition of Helogistics as of 31 December 2010 (acquisition date} was only prowvisionally determined in respect of the

far values of the vessels acquired and certain habilties assumed Durnng the financial year 2011, the necessary valuatons and assessments
have been receved so that the accounting for this acquisition has been finaised The details of the adjustments of the provisionally

determined far values of assets acquired and liabiities assumed are shown below

Prowigional far Acquirad
ussooc valuas Adjusimants Comments values
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 65,348 - 65,348
Financial agsets 4 - 4
Intangible assets 1,637 {398) 1 1,239
Deferred tax assets 5,258 (3.101}) 2 2,157
Current assets
Inventories 2252 - 2,252
Trade and other recevables 3096 - 3096
Prepayments and other current assets 4,179 1,177 3 5,356
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 7 - 7
Cash and cash sguivalents 582 - 582
Assets classified as held for sale 3,149 - 3,149
Total assets acquired 85,512 (2,322) 82,190
Non-currant habilities
Definad benstit pansion liability (819) - 819)
Deferred tax labilitias (1,875) - (1,875}
Current liabilittes
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {38.726) - (38,726)
Trade and other payables {14,596) - (14.596)
Incoms taxes payable (81) - 81)
Accrued labiities and deferred income {15,911} 2322 4 {13,589)
Total habilities assumed {72,008) 2,322 (69,686)
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired as at 31 December 2010 13,504 - 13,504

1 Whnie off of kcenses

2 Wnis olf of deferred tax assel capitaised on avalable lax loss carry forwards
3 Releasa of allowanca cn VAT recavable balances after complstion of tax audits
4 Release of vanous lax related accruals after complation of tax audits
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Note 40 Business combination continued
The adjustment of the Iniial accounting of the acquisition had the following impact on the inially recorded gain on bargain purchase

Prowisicnal Acgured
US$000 accouUNnting Adjustments values
Conskleration paid in cash
Vahue of pre-existing loan balances 10,881 - 10 881
Less far value of identifiable net assets acquired {13.504) - (13,504)
Bargain purchase on acquisition as at 31 December 2010 2 623 - 2,623

There was no contingent consideration to be paid by the Group to the previous shareholders of Helogistics

Loans amounting to US$10,881 thousand were provided by the Group to Helogistics prior to the acquisition These loan balances were
considered to be settled for the purpose of the business combination The amount of US$10,881 thousand reflects the fair value of the loans
granted As a result of overcapacity in its market, Helogistics sustained continual losses allowing Ferrexpo to acquire Helogistics at a
consideration below the estimated farr value of the assets acquired and Yabilities assumed, resulting in the recognition of a gain on bargain
purchase amounting to US$2,623 thousand

No tax iImpact 1s expected on the gain on bargain purchase ansing on this ransaction
Note 41. Events after the reporting period

No matenal adjusting or non-adjusting events have occurred subsequent to tha year end other than the proposed dividend disclosed in
note 17

MIIAYIAO

M3IAIH SSINISNG

JONVNYHIAOD

SINIWILVYLIS TVIONVYNID



plc
TR CLAFRN B IVL PN FRY |

1o

Parent Company Balance Sheet

Asat Ag L

it Mitas iz Higm
Fixed nasots
Non current mvestments
Subsichary undertakings 2 147,496 147 196
Total fixed assects 147,496 t47, 496
Current assets
Dabiors — amounts faling dusg
Amounts due from subsidarias 590,520 134 441
Deforred tax assets 3 227 1156
Prepayments and ather current assets 1,851 1,185
Other taxes racoverable and prepaid - 3
Cash at bank and i hand 459 20
Total current asaets 592,857 136 785
Creditors — amounts fabing due within ona year
Trade and other craditors 3 442 512
Accruals and deferred income (] 503 900
Incoma taxes payable 1,308 16
Total creditors 2,253 1,428
Net assets 738,100 282,853
flapresented by
Capital and reserves
Shara camtal + 121,628 121 628
Shara premuan 1 185,112 186,112
Treasury shave reserve 1 (77,260) (77 260}
Ernployoo banadit st ragervo K] (9,4t6) (10172}
Ratamed eanungs )1 518,038 63 545
Total capital and ressrves v 738,100 282,853

All labiibes hetd by the Company are current in naturg

g fuaneal statements were approved by the 13oard of Diectors on 13 Maich 2012

4

Kostyantin Zhevago Christaphar Mawo
i { '

i

3 ' * t '
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

Note 1 Parent company accounting policies

Bas:s of preparation

The Parent Company financial statements of Ferrexpo pic are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 and were approved for 1ssue
on 13 March 2012 The financial statemeants are prepared undsr the historical cost convention and are prepared In accordance with applicable
UK accounting standards No profit and loss account 1s presented by the Cornpany as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

The Company I1s exempt from the disclosure reguirements of FRS 29 FAinancial instruments, under its section 2D (a) as the antity 1s included
in publicly available conschdated financial statements, which include disclosures that comply with FRS 29/IFRS 7

Disclosures and narratives have not included information required by that standard, as the Group's consohdated financial staternents,
inwhich the Company 1s included, provide equivalent disclosures for the Group under [FRS 7 ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’

Investments
Equity investments in subsidianes ars carned at cost less any provision for impairments

Deferred income tax

Deterred income tax I1s recogrised in respect of all iming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the reporting date where

transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result in an obligation to pay more, or a nght to pay less or to receive more, tax,

with the following exceptions

w prowision 1s made for deferred tax that would arse on remittance of the retained earmings of overseas subsidiaries, asscciates and joint
ventures only io the extent that, at the reporting date, dvidends have been accrued as receivable, and

s delerred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the Directors consider that itis more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying trming differences can be deducted Deferred tax 1s measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the pencds in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency and presentation currency 1s US Dollars Transactions in foreign currencies are inihially recorded in the
functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting data Non-monetary items that are
measured n terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the inital transactions
Non-monetary items measured at farr value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the far value
was deterrmined

Financial instruments
Dernvative financial instruments
The Company does not hold any derivative financial nstruments

Non-denvatve financial instruments

Non-denvative financial instruments comprise Investments in equity and debt secunties (promissory notes), trade and other recevables, cash
and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and other payables Non-denvative financial nstruments are recognised at far value
(being the fair value of the consideration given or received) plus any directly atinbutable transaction costs

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recegnised on the trade date te the date that tha Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset Regular way purchases or sales ara those that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace

The Company has not designated any financial asset as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other
Other non-denvative financial instruments are measured at amortused cost using the effective Interest method less any impairment losses
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

Note 1 Parent company accounting policies continued

Loans and recewvables

Loans and recavables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted 1n an active market, do not
qualfy as trading assets and have not been designated as either far value through profit or loss or avallable-for-sale Such assets are carried
at amortised cost using the effective Interest method If the time value of money 1s significant Gains and losses are recognised in income when
the loans and recevables are derecognised or mpatred, as well as through the amortisation process

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s mpared Investments in subsidianes
undertakings are held at cost The Company assesses investrments for imparment whenaver events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an investmant may not be recoverable If any such indication of iImpairment exists, the Company makes an
estimate of its recoverable amount (valuation) Where the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable amount, the investment is
considered mparad and 1s wntten down to its recoverable amount

Assets carned at amortised cost

If there 15 objactive evidence that an impairment loss on loans and recevables carred at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
less 1s measured as the difference between the assst's carrying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective interest rate (1e the effective interast rate
computed at inhial recogrition) The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced, with the amount of the loss recognised in administration costs

If, In a subsequent penod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occumng
after the iImparment was recognised, the previously recegnised impairment l0ss 1s reversed  Any subsequent reversal of an mpairment loss

15 recognised in the profit and loss account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date

Derecogrition of financial assets and habihties

A financial asset or hability 15 generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires Where an
existing financial hability 1s replaced by another from tha same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original bability and the recognition of a new
hability, such that the difference in the respective carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred are recognised in profit or foss

Share-based payments

Equity-settied transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference 1o the farr value at tha grant date and 1s recognised as an
expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant employses become fully entitied to the award Fair value 1s
determinad by referance to the quoted closing share price on tha grant date

In valung equity-settied transactions, ne account Is taken of any vesting conditions, except for market condtions No expense is recogrised
for awards that do not ultmately vest

At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod has expired
and management’s best estimate of the achieverment cr otherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity instruments that will
ultmately vest The maovement In cumulative expense since the previous reporting date 1s recognised in the Income statement, with a
corresponding entry N equity

All costs related to the share-based payments of the Group are recorded In Ferrexpo pic Note 39 provides further information on the valuation
related to the share-based payments and the costs recorded

Empioyee benefit trust reserve

Ferrexpo plc shares held by the Company are classified in capital and reserves, as ‘employee benefit trust reserves’ and recognised at cost
Consideration receved for the sale of such shares 1s also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the
onginal cost taken to revenue reserves No gain or loss s recogrised on the purchase, sale 1ssue or cancellation of equity shares
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As at
311210

Non-current investments

147,496

147,498

The balance above relates to the Company's investment in Ferrexpo AG which s a 100% owned subsidiary based on Switzerland Dunng the
previous financial year, the Company purchased 3,178,877 shares of Ferrexpo AG which have been previously held in treasury by the

subsichary

Note 3 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2011 relate to the following

As ot As at
Us$000 Izt 311210
Defarred tax assets
Tax loss recognised - 430
Timing difference on IPO ¢osts N 227 726
Total deferred tax assets 227 1158
Nota 4 Capital and reserves
Employee
Issuad Shara Traasury benefit trust Ratained Total
uss00Q capital premuum  Share reserve rasarve BAMMINGS equity
At 1 January 2010 121 628 185,112 (77.260) (11,593) 96,583 314,470
Profit for the penod - - - - 5544 5,544
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 5,544 5,544
Equity dividends paid to shareholders - - - - (38,582) (38,582)
Share-based payments - - - 1,421 - 1.421
At 31 December 2010 121,628 185 112 {Ff7260) (10,172) 63,545 282,853
Profit for the penod - - - - 483,154 493154
Total comprehensive incoma for the year - - - - 493154 483,154
Equity dwvidends paid to shareholders - - - - {38,663)  (38,663)
Share-based payments - - - 756 ~ 756
At 31 December 2011 121,628 185,112 (77,260) {9,416) 518,036 738,100
Note 5 Trade and other craditors
Trade and other creditors at 31 December 2011 relate to the following
As at As al
usS$I00n anzn 311210
Trade and othar creditors
Falling due within ona year 442 512
Total trade and other creditors 442 512
Note 6 Accrued liabilities and deferred income
Accrued labiities and deferrad incorme at 31 Decembar 2011 relate to the following
As at As al
USS000 N2Nn 311210
Accruad habilities and defarred income
Falling due within one year 503 200
Total accrued Liabilities and deferred iIncome 503 800
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

Note 7. Related party disclosures
There are no related party transactions and balances to be disclosed All transactions and balances are with subsicharies, which are
wholly-owned

Note 8 Auditor remuneration
The audit fee In respact of the parent company was US$16 thousand (2010 US316 thousand)

Note 9 Events after the reporting penod
No matenal adjusting or non-adjusting events have occurred subsequent to the year end cther than the proposed dmdend disclosed
1N note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the refinancing of the Group descnbed below




Glossary

2010 Code
Act

AGM
Articles

Audit Committee

Belanovo or Belanovskoye

Benchmark Price

Beneficiation Process

BIP

Board
bt

Capesize

Capital Employed
CFR

Ct Costs

CIF

CIs

Company

CPI

CSR

CSR Committee
DAP

DFS

Directors

Draghne Excavators

EBITDA
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The UK Coerporate Governance Code published in 2010

The Companies Act 2006

The Arnual General Meeting of the Company

Articles of Association of the Company

The Audit Committee of the Company's Board

An rron ore deposit located immediately to the north of Yeristovo

International seaborne traded iron ore pncing mechanism understood to be offered to the market by major iron
ore producers under long-term contracts

A number of processes whereby the mineral is extracted from the crude ore (see page 4)

Business Improverment Programme, a programme of projects to Increase production output and efficiency at
FPM

The Board of Directors of the Company

Bilkon tornes

Capesize vessels are typically above 150,000 tonnes deadweight Ships in this class include oil tankers,
supertankers and bulk carners transporting coal, ore, and other commodity raw matenals Standarc capesize
vessels are able to transit through Suez Canal

The aggregate of equity attributable to shargholders, non-controling interests and borrowings

Delivery ncluding cost and freight

Represent the cash costs of production of iron pellets from own ore, dvided by production volume, from own
ore, and excludes non-cash costs such as depreciation, pension costs and inventory movements, costs of
purchased ore, concentrate and production cost of gravel

Delwvery including cost, Insurance and frexight

The Commonwealth of Independent States

Ferrexpo plc, a public company incorporated n England and Wales with Imited llability

Consumer Price Index

Corporate Safety and Social Responsibility

The Corporate Safety and Social Responsibiity Committee of the Board of the Company

Delvery at place

Detailed feasibilty study

The Directors of the Company

Heavy machinery used to excavate material A dragiine consists of a large bucket which 1s suspended from
a boom

The Group calculates EBITDA as profit from continuing operations before tax and finance plus depreciation
and amortisation and non-recurnng exceptional items iIncluded in other Inceme and other expenses, and the
net of gains and losses from disposal of investments and property, plant and equipment
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Glossary continued

EBT

EPS

Executive Committee
Exacutive Directors
FBM

Fe

Ferrexpo

Ferrexpo AG Group
Fevamotinico Sarl

FOB

FPM

FRMC

FTSE 250

FYM

Group

Growth Markets

Helogistics

HSE

IAS

IASB

IFRS

IPO

Iron ore concentrate
Iron ore sinter fines

Iron ore pellats

JORC

K22

Employee Banefit Trust

Earnings per share

The Exacutive Committes of management appointed by the Company’s Board

The Executive Directors of the Company

Ferrexpo Belanovo Mining, also known as BGOK, a company incorporated under the laws of Ukraine

Iron

Tha Company and its subsicianes

Ferrexpo AG and its subsidianes including FPM

A company incorporated with imited hatility in Luxembourg '
Delivered free on board, which means that the seller’s obligation to delwer has been fulfiled when the goods |
have passed over the ship's rail at the named port of shipment, and all future obligations in terms of costs and

nisks of loss or damage transfer to the buyer from that point onwards .

Ferrexpo Poltava Miming, alsc known as Ferrexpo Poltava GOK Cerporation or PGOK, a company
incorporated under the laws of Ukraine

Financial Risk Management Committes, a sub-committee of the Executive Committes

Financial Times Stock Exchange top 250 companies

Ferrexpo Yenstovo Mining, also known as YGOK, a company incorporated under the laws of Ukraing

The Company and its subsidianes

These are predominantly in Asia and hava the potential to deliver new and significant sales volumes to the Group

Helogistics Holding GmbH and #s subsidianes, an inland waterway transport group operating on the Danube/
Rhine corndaor

Health, safety and environment

International Accounting Standards

International Accounting Standards Board

International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU
Imtial public offenng

Product of the benaficaticn process with enriched Iron content
Fine iron ore screened to -6 3mm

Ballad and fired agglomerate of iron ore concentrate, whosa physical properties are well suited for
transportation to and reduction within a blast furnace

Australasian Joint Ore Reserves Committee — the internaticnally accepted code for ore classification

GPL ore has been classified as either K22 or K23 quality, of whsch K22 are 1s of higher guality {rcher) |




KPI

kt
LIBOR
LLC
LTIFR
LTIP
m:i
Majority Shareholder
mm
mt
mtpa

Natural Markets

Nominations Commttee
Non-executive Directors
NOQPAT

OHSAS 18001

Ordinary Shares

Cre

Panamax

PPI

Probable Reserves

Proved Reserves

Rail car

Relationship Agreement

Remuneration Committee

Reserves
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Key Performance Indicator
Thousand tonnes

The London Inter Bank Offered Rate
Limited Liabilty Company

Lost-Time Injury Frequency Rate
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Cubic metra

Fevamotinico S arl, Tha Minco Trust and Kostyantin Zhevago itogether)
Milimetre

Milion tonnes

Million tonnes per annum

These include Turkey, the Middle East and Western Europe and are those markets where Ferrexpo has a
competitive advantage over more distant producers, but where market share remains relatively fow

The Norminations Committae of the Company’s Board

Naon-executive Directors of the Company

Net operating profit after tax

International safety standard ‘Cccupational Health & Safety Management System Specification’
Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each in the Cornpany

A mineral or mineral aggregate containing precious or useful minerals In such guantibies, grade and chemical
combination as to make extraction economic

Meodem panamax ships typically carry a weight of between 65,000 to 90,000 tonnes of cargo and can transit
both Panama and Suez canals

Ukraimian producer price index
Those measured and/or indicated mineral resources which are not yet ‘proved’, but of which detalled technical
ang economic studies have demonstrated that extraction can be justified at the tme of determination and

under spscific economic conditions

Measured mineral resources of which detalled technical and economic studies have demonstrated that
extraction can be justfied at the tme of determination and under specific economic conditions

Railway wagon used for the transport of iron ore concentrate or pellets

The relationship agreement entered into amoeng Fevamotinico S arl, Kostyantin Zhevago, The Minco Trust
and the Company

The Remuneration Committee of the Company's Board
Those parts of mineral resources for which sufficient information is available to enable detalled or conceptual

mine planning and for which such planning has been undertaken Reserves are classified as either provad or
probable
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Glossary continued

Uss$/t US Dallars per tonne

Sinter A porous aggregate charged directly to the blast furnace which 1s nermally produced by fring fine ron ore
and/or ron ore concentrate, other binding materials, and coke breeze as the heat source

Spotprice The current price of a product for immediate delivery

Sterling/€ Pound Sterling, the currency of the United Kingdom

STIP Short-Term Incentive Plan

Tallings The waste matenal preduced from ore after economically recoverable metals or minarals have been extracted

Changes in meatai pnces and improverments In technology can somsatimes make the talings economic to
process at a later date

Tolling The process by which a customer supplies concentrate to a smelter and the smelter invoices the customer the
smelting charge, and possibly a refining charge, and then returns the metal to the customer

Ton AUS short ton, equal to 0 9072 metric tonnas

tonne ort Metric tonne

Treasury Shares A company's own issued shares that it has purchased but not cancelled

TSF Talings storage faciity

Traditional Markets These lie within Central and Eastern Europe and include steei plants that wers designed to use Ferrexpo peliets

Ferrexpo has been supplying some of these customers for more than 20 years Ferrexpo has well-established
logistics routes and infrastructure to these markets by both nver barge and ral These markets include Austna,
Czech Republic, Hungary, Sertya and Slovakia

TSR Total shareholder return The total return earned on a share aver a penod of trme, measured as the dvidend
per share plus capital gan, dwvided by initial share price

Underlying Earnings An alternative measura which the Diractors balieve provided a clearer picture of the underlying financial
performance of the Group's operations Underlying earnings 1s presented as profit attnbutable to equity
shareholders before adjusted ttems Adjusted tems are those items of financial performance that the Group
believes should be separately disclosed on the face of the Income staterment to assist n the understanding
of the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group Adjusted items that relats to the operating
performance of the Group include imparment charges and reversals and other exceptional items Non-
operating adjusting items include profits and losses of investments and businesses as well as IPC costs
and non-operating foreign exchangs gains and losses

UAH Ukraimian Hryvrua, the currency of Ukraine

Ukr SEPRO The quality certification system in Ukraing, regulated by law to ensure conformity with safety and
environmental standards

VAT Value Added Tax

Value-in-use The implied value of a material to an end user relative to other options, e g evaluatng, In financial terms, the

praductrvity In the steel making process of a particular quality of ron ore pellets versus the productivity of
alternative qualities of iron ore pellets

WMS Wet magnetic separaton

Yenistovo or Yenstovskoye The deposit being developed by FYM
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